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OPINION OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

To the General Meeting of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.
Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group, whose parent
entity is Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. with its registered office in Grajewo, ul. Widrowa 1 (“the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s and Supervisory Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management of the Parent Entity is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union and with other applicable regulations and preparation of the
report on the Group’s activities. Management of the Parent Entity is also responsible for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

According to the Accounting Act dated 29 September 1994 (Official Journal from 2013, item 330
with amendments) (“the Accounting Act”), Management of the Parent Entity and members of the
Supervisory Board are required to ensure that the consolidated financial statements and the report
on the Group’s activities are in compliance with the requirements set forth in the Accounting Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with section 7 of the Accounting Act, National
Standards on Auditing issued by the National Council of Certified Auditors and International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

1
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management of the Parent Entity, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.
Group have been prepared and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and are in compliance with the respective regulations that apply to the
consolidated financial statements, applicable to the Group.

Specific Comments on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Report on the Group’s Activities

As required under the Accounting Act, we report that the accompanying report on the Group’s
activities includes, in all material respects, the information required by Art. 49 of the Accounting
Act and by the Decree of the Ministry of Finance dated 19 February 2009 on current and periodic
information provided by issuers of securities and the conditions for recognition as equivalent
information required by the law of a non-Member State (Official Journal from 2014, item 133)
and the information is consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of KPMG Audyt Spétka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscia sp.k.
Registration No. 3546

ul. Chtodna 51

00-867 Warsaw

Signed on the Polish original

Monika Bartoszewicz

Key Certified Auditor

Registration No. 10268

Limited Liability Partner with power of attorney

18 March 2015
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General

Identification of the Group

Name of the Group
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. Group
Registered office of the Parent Company of the Group

ul. Widrowa 1
19-203 Grajewo

Registration of the Parent Company in the register of entrepreneurs of the
National Court Register

Registration court: District Court in Biatystok, XII Commercial Department of the
National Court Register

Date: 9 May 2001

Registration number: KRS 0000011422

Share capital as at
the end of reporting period: ~ PLN 16,375,920.00

1.1.4 Management of the Parent Company

1.2

1.2.1

The Management Board is responsible for management of the Parent Company.

As at 31 December 2014, the Management Board of the Parent Company was comprised of
the following members:

¢ Wojciech Gatkiewicz — President of the Management Board,
e Rafal Karcz — Member of the Management Board,
e Dariusz Tomaszewski — Member of the Management Board.

According to the resolution of the Supervisory Board dated 16 February 2015,
Mr. Wojciech Gatkiewicz was recalled from the position of President of the Management

Board, and appointed for the position of Member of the Management Board — Transformation
Director.

According to the resolution of the Supervisory Board dated 16 February 2015,
Mr. Michael Wolff was appointed to the position of President of the Management Board.

According to the resolution of the Supervisory Board dated 16 February 2015,
Mr. Gerd Schubert was appointed to the position of Member of the Management Board —
Operations Director.

Information about companies comprising the Group
Companies included in the consolidated financial statements
As at 31 December 2014, the following companies were consolidated by the Group:

Parent Company:

e  Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.



1.2.2

1.3

1.3.1

1.3.2

14

RN

Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. Group

The supplementary report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Sor the financial year ended 31 December 2014

TRANSLATION

Subsidiaries consolidated on the full consolidation basis:

e Pfleiderer Prospan S.A.,

¢ Silekol Sp. z 0.0.,

¢ Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.,

e Jura Polska Sp. z 0.0.,

e Unifloor Sp. z 0.0. in liquidation,

¢ Grajewo 000.

Jointly controlled entities (equity accounted investees):

e Blitz 11-446 GmbH.

Entities excluded from consolidation

As at 31 December 2014, the following subsidiaries of the Group were not consolidated:

e Pfleiderer Services Sp. z 0.0.

Key Certified Auditor and Audit Firm Information

Key Certified Auditor information

Name and surname:
Registration number:

Audit Firm information
Name:
Address of registered office:

Registration number:
Registration court:

NIP number:

Monika Bartoszewicz
10268

KPMG Audyt Spétka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscia
sp.k.

ul. Chtodna 51, 00-867 Warsaw

KRS 0000339379

District Court for the Capital City of Warsaw in Warsaw,
XII Commercial Department of the National Court Register
527-26-15-362

KPMG Audyt Spétka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscia sp.k. is entered in the register of
audit firms, maintained by the National Council of Certified Auditors, under number 3546.

Prior period consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 were
audited by KPMG Audyt Spétka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscia sp.k. and received an

unmodified opinion.

The consolidated financial statements were approved at the General Meeting of the Parent

Entity on 30 June 2014.

The consolidated financial statements were submitted to the Registry Court on 3 July 2014.
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Audit scope and responsibilities

This report was prepared for the General Meeting of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. with its
registered office in Grajewo, ul. Widrowa 1 and relates to the consolidated financial
statements comprising: the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The consolidated financial statements were audited in accordance with the contract dated
8 October 2014, concluded on the basis of the resolution of the General Meeting dated
23 June 2010 on the appointment of the auditor.

We conducted the audit in accordance with section 7 of the Accounting Act dated
29 September 1994 (Official Journal from 2013, item 330 with amendments) (“the
Accounting Act”), National Standards on Auditing issued by the National Council of Certified
Auditors, and International Standards on Auditing.

We audited the consolidated financial statements at the Group entities during the period from
17 to 28 November 2014, from 19 to 30 January 2015 and additional procedures have been
performed outside the Parent Company’s head office in the period from
23 February to 13 March 2015.

Management of the Parent Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and with other applicable regulations and
preparation of the report on the Group’s activities.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion and to prepare a supplementary report on the audit
of the financial statements.

The Management Board of the Parent Company submitted a statement, dated as at the same
date as this report, as to the true and fair presentation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, which confirmed that there were no undisclosed matters which could
significantly influence the information presented in the consolidated financial statements.

All required statements, explanations and information were provided to us by Management of
the Group and all our requests for additional documents and information necessary for
expressing our opinion and preparing the report have been fulfilled.

The scope of the work planned and performed has not been limited in any way. The method
and scope of our audit is detailed in working papers prepared by us and retained in the offices
of the Audit Firm.

The Key Certified Auditor and the Audit Firm fulfill the independence requirements as
described in Art. 56 points 3 and 4 of the Act on Certified Auditors and their Self-
Governance, Audit Firms authorized to Audit Financial Statements and Public Oversight
dated 7 May 2009 (Official Journal from 2009 No. 77, item 649 with amendments).
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1.6 Information on audits of the financial statements of the consolidated
companies
1.6.1 Parent Company

The separate financial statements of the Parent Company for the year ended
31 December 2014 were audited by KPMG Audyt Spétka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia
sp.k., certified auditor number 3546, and received an unmodified opinion,

1.6.2 Other consolidated entities

Entity's name Authorised auditor Financial year end Type of auditor's opinion
KPMG Audyt Spétka z ograniczona

Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. odpowiedzialnoicia sp.k., Warszawa 31 December 2014 Unmodified opinion
KPMG Audyt Spétka z ograniczona

Silekol Sp. z 0.0. odpowiedzialnoscia sp.k., Warszawa 31 December 2014 Unmeodified opinion
KPMG Audyt Spétka z ograniczong

Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.0. odpowiedzialnoicia sp.k., Warszawa 31 December 2014 Unmodified opinion

Jura Polska Sp. z o.0. Not audited 31 December 2014 Not audited

Usifloor Sp. z 0.0. in liquidation Not audited 31 December 2014 Not audited

Grajewo 000 Not audited 31 December 2014 Not audited
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Financial analysis of the Group
Summary analysis of the consolidated financial statements
Consolidated statement of financial position

ASSETS 3L.12.2014 31.12.2013
PLN "600 % of total PLN '000 % of total

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 679,019 55.8 623,837 55.8
Intangible assets 2,665 0.2 1,607 0.1
Goodwill 107,829 8.9 107,829 9.6
Investments in subsidiaries 52 - 52 -
Other long-term investments 5,075 0.4 18,738 17
Investment property 3,860 03 3,995 04
Deferred tax assets 17,390 1.4 14,652 1.3
Advances paid on fixed assets 4,787 04 5,578 0.5
Government grant receivables 69,336 57 14,627 13
Fair value of hedging instruments 626 0.1 - -
Non-current assets 890,639 732 790,915 70.7
Inventories 181,016 149 177,692 15.9
Trade receivables and other 122,908 10.1 112,310 10.0
Income tax receivable 984 0.1 21,110 19
Cash and cash equivalents 18,512 1.5 16,450 15
Other short term financial assets 2,347 02 216 -
Fair value of hedging instruments 587 - 100 -
Current assets 326,354 26.8 327,878 293
TOTAL ASSETS 1,216,993 100.0 1,118,793 100.0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 31.12.2014 % of total ~ 31.12.2013 % of total
PLN '000 PLN '000
Equity
Share capital 16,376 1.4 16,376 1.5
Share premium 289,806 238 289,806 259
Reserve capital 293,812 24.1 207,809 18.6
Revaluation reserve 619 0.1 619 -
Cash flow hedge reserve 1,213 0.1 - -
Foreign currency differences on translating foreign operation (458) - (84) -
Retained earnings 155,002 12.7 137,749 123
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 756,370 62.2 652,275 58.3
Total equity 756,370 622 652,275 583
Liabilities
Loans and borrowings 63,696 52 86,801 7.7
Employee related payables 10,986 09 8,020 0.7
Provisions 815 0.1 786 0.1
Deferred tax liabilities 13,674 i.1 9,700 0.9
Deferred income due from government grants 87,347 7.2 29,340 2.6
Non-current liabilities 176,518 i4.5 134,647 12.0
Loans and borrowings 44,655 3.7 67,730 6.1
Income tax payable 5,320 04 500 -
Trade and other payables 206,289 16.9 240,260 215
Employee related payables 23,349 15 22,032 20
Deferred income due from government grants 4,492 0.4 1,349 0.1
Current liahilities 284,105 233 331,871 29.7
Total liabilities 460,623 378 466,518 417
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,216,993 1000 1,118,793 1000
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2.1.2 Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

1.01.2014 - % of total 1.01.2013 - % of total

31.12.2014 sales 31.12.2013 sales
PLN '000 PLN '000
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue 1,522,819 100.0 1,462,139 100.0
Cost of sales (1,220,172) 80.1 (1,200,057) 82.1
Profit on sales 302,647 199 262,082 17.9
Other operating income 13,004 0.8 8,802 0.6
Distribution expenses (111,659) 7.3 (94,260) 64
General and administrative expenses (55,401) 3.6 (64,157} 4.4
Other operating expenses (5.658) 0.4 (3,728) 0.3
Results from operating activities 142,933 9.4 108,739 74
Financial income 1,414 0.1 3,479 0.2
Financial costs (16,333) 1.1 (31.538) 2.1
Net financing costs (14,919) (1.0) (28.,059) (1.9)
Profit before tax 128,014 8.4 80,680 55
Income tax expense (24,758) 1.6 (10,639) 0.7
Net profit from continuing operations 103,256 6.8 70,041 4.8
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit from discontinued operations (net of income tax) - - 97,517 6.7
Profit for the period 103,256 6.8 167,558 11.5
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Foreign currency differences on translating foreign operation (374) - 14,163 1.0
Cash flow hedge - effective portion of changes in fair value 1,213 - - -
Foreign exchange translation differences from net investment - - 3,829 0.2
Other comprehensive income for the period 839 - 17,992 12
Total comprehensive income for the period 104,095 6.8 185,550 12.7
Profit attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company - - 15,017 1.0
Non controlling interests 103,256 6.8 152,541 10.5
Net profit 103,256 6.8 167,558 11.5
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 104,095 6.8 170,578 11.7
Non controlling interests - - 14,972 1.0
Total comprehensive income for the period 185,550 12.7
Basic and diluted earnings per share (PLN) 2.08 N 3.07 -
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Selected financial ratios

2014 2013 2012(*)

1. Return on sales

rofit for the period from continuing operations x 100% 6.8% 4.8% 1.2%

revenue
2. Return on equity

profit for the period x 100% 15.8% 34.6% 6.6%
equity - profit for the period

3. Debtors' days
average trade receivables (gross) x 365 days 21 days 19 days 23 days

revenue
4. Debt ratio

liabilities x 100% 37.8% 41.7% 67.6%
equity and liabilities

5. Current ratio

current assets 1.1 1.0 1.1

current liabilities

* - data restated

® Revenue includes revenue from sales of finished products, merchandise and raw materials.
* Average trade receivables represent the average of trade receivables at the beginning and at the end
of the period, with no deduction made for allowances.
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Detailed report

Accounting principles

The Parent Company maintains current documentation describing the accounting principles
applied by the Group and adopted by the Management Board of the Parent Company.

The accounting principles are described in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
to the extent required by International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Entities included in the Group apply common accounting principles consistent with the
accounting principles applied by the Parent Company.

The financial statements of the entities included in the consolidated financial statements were
prepared at the end of the same reporting period as the financial statements of the Parent
Company.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. Group were prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union and with other applicable regulations.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared on the basis of the consolidation
documentation prepared in accordance with the requirements the Decree of the Ministry of
Finance dated 25 September 2009 on principles for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements of a capital group by companies other than banks and insurance companies
(Official Journal from 2009 No. 169, item 1327).

Method of consolidation

The method of consolidation is described in note 6 a) of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Goodwill arising on consolidation

The method of calculating goodwill arising on consolidation is described in note 6 ¢) of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation of equity

The share capital of the Group is equal to the share capital of the Parent Company.

Other equity items of the Group are determined by adding the equity balances of subsidiaries
included in the consolidated financial statements in the proportion reflecting the Parent
Company’s share in the subsidiaries’ equity as at the end of the reporting period to the
corresponding positions of the equity of the Parent Company.

Only equity of subsidiaries arising after the Parent Company obtained control of the subsidiary
is included in the equity of the Group.

10
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Consolidation eliminations

Intercompany balances within the Group were eliminated on consolidation.

Sales between entities and other intercompany operating revenues and expenses and financial
revenues and expenses were eliminated on consolidation.

The consolidation eliminations were based on the accounting records of Pfleiderer
Grajewo S.A. (or subsidiary entities) and agreed with information received from the
subsidiaries.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

All information included in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising of
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, is, in all
material respects, presented correctly and completely. This information should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Management Board of the Parent Company on the Group’s
activities

The report of the Management Board of the Parent Company on the Group’s activities
includes, in all material respects, the information required by Art. 49 of the Accounting Act
and by the Decree of the Ministry of Finance dated 19 February 2009 on current and periodic
information provided by issuers of securities and the conditions for recognition as equivalent
information required by the law of a non-Member State (Official Journal from 2014, item
133) and the information is consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of KPMG Audyt Spétka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia sp.k.
Registration No. 3546

ul. Chiodna 51

00-867 Warsaw

Signed on the Polish original

Monika Bartoszewicz

Key Certified Auditor

Registration No. 10268

Limited Liability Partner with power of attorney

18 March 2015
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Letter of the President of the Board

Dear All,

The year 2014 was for Pfleiderer Grajewo a peribdstable development. The growth
dynamics of the furniture production in Poland evet a two-digit level compared to the
previous year. The favourable development of theketaresulted mostly from the demand
growth on the domestic market as well as growingpeixto the Western Europe. Conversely,
Eastern markets were placed on an opposite sidineis unstable geopolitical situation
reflected in reduced number of sales orders.

In 2014, an increase of sale revenues by 4% wawsded when compared to the previous
year, which is mainly a result of volume growth aménge in the product mix. The prices of
basic raw materials used in the manufacturing @E®cee. wood and resin, remained
relatively stable compared to the previous yeai|lenthe electricity and fuel costs decreased.
The capacities of the key production lines wererlgetully utilised ensuring therefore
optimum distribution of fixed costs. The above n@med circumstances in conjunction with
the implemented operational efficiency improvemgridgramme, sales activities, as well as
the cost discipline enabled to increase the salitgbility by 2pp.

The operating profit improved significantly, reaotpinearly PLN 143 m in 2014, which
constitutes an increase by PLN 34 m compared tyehe 2013. This change is an effect of
increased sales revenues, improved profitabilitd alower increase in distribution costs
compared to the sales dynamics, which is, in tataleffect of successfully implemented
operational efficiency improvement programme. Meego this growth stems from an
increase in strategic marketing expenditures suipygothe wholesale network.

The net profit for majority shareholders from coning operations reached PLN 103 m,
which constitutes an improvement of 87% over thevipus year. This is an effect of both
improved operational business results as well @saed debt servicing costs.

The investment programme aimed at the plants’ musiion, adjusting the production
potential to the market demand, improving costcedficy totalled at PLN 114m and
contributed to the improvement of the financialfpemance.

In January 2014, the parent entity Pfleiderer Gvaj&A finalised the purchase of minority
share in its subsidiary, MDF Grajewo. Eventuallyflelderer Grajewo SA acquired
100% of shares in all the subsidiaries. In the samath a long-term contract securing the
supply of urea — one of strategic raw materials sigsed with one of the strategic suppliers.

In November, a permit for subsidiary, Pfleiderer MBp. z 0.0 operations in Suwalki Special
Economic Zone was prolonged until the end of 20B& previous permit had been valid
until October 2016.

In December a 2-year contract for the deliverypobducts to the strategic partner - FM Forte
S.A. of an approximate value of PLN 306 m was signe



The 2015 strategy of the Group is targeted at thigaiion of a process of multi-layer
integration of organisational structures within #ieiderer Group. The unification of the
processes and activities will lead to increasirggrtiarket and cost competitiveness, exploring
new market potentials, transferring the technolagg releasing a number of synergies from
common operations. A common HR development plahbgilset up across the organisation.

Yours faithfully,

Michael Wolff
President of the Board
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PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

MANAGEMENT BOARD'S STATEMENT

Pursuant to the Regulation of the Minister of Fz&on current and periodic information to be puiais

by issuers of securities and conditions for recogmias equivalent of information whose disclosisre
required under the laws of a non-member stateddagdruary 19th 2009 (consolidated text: Dz.U. of
2014, item 133), the Management Board of Pfleid&mjewo S.A. (the Parent) represents that to the
best of its knowledge the full-year consolidatetbficial statements for the year ended December 31st
2014 and the comparative data have been prepaaiipliance with the applicable accounting policies
and give a fair and clear view of the Pfleidereajéwo Group’s assets and financial results, angtliea
annual consolidated Directors’ Report on the P#ed Grajewo Group’s operations gives a fair vidw o
its development, achievements and standing, inatpdidescription of the key risks and threats.

The Management Board of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.Ae (Barent) represents that the audit firm which
audited the full-year consolidated financial statats was appointed in compliance with applicables|a
and that both the audit firm and the auditors wedgmed the audit meet the conditions required to
issue an objective and independent opinion on titited full-year consolidated financial statemeints,
accordance with the applicable laws and profesbginadards.

Michael Wolff
President of the Management Board

Rafat Karcz Gerd Schubert

Member of the Management Board, Chief Financial Member of the Management Board, Chief
Officer Operating Officer

Wojciech Gitkiewicz Dariusz Tomaszewski

Member of the Management Board, Chief Member of the Management Board, Sales
Transformation Officer Director

Grajewo, March 18th 2015



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

Annual consolidated financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income

Continuing operations Note

Revenue 1
Cost of sales

Gross profit

oo

Other income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Operating profit

g1 0 0 B~

Finance income
Finance costs
Net finance costs 7

Profit before tax

Income tax expense 9
Net profit from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Net profit from discontinued operations 18

Net profit for the reporting period

Attributable to non-controlling interests
Attributable to owners of the parent

Other items of comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translating foreign openati
Effective portion of gains on fair-value measuretrarhedging
instruments

Exchange differences on net investments in sub&dia

Other items of comprehensive income

Comprehensive income for the period
Comprehensive income for the period attributable to
Owners of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income for the period

Basic earnings per share (PLN) 19
Diluted earnings per share (PLN) 19

Total Total
Jan 1—- Jan 1-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
1,522,819 1,462,139
(1,220,172) (1,200,057)
302,647 262,082
13,004 8,802
(111,659) (94,260)
(55,401) (64,157)
(5,658) (3,728)
142,933 108,739
1,414 3,479
(16,333) (31,538)
(14,919) (28,059)
128,014 80,680
(24,758) (10,639)
103,256 70,041
0 97,517
103,256 167,558
0 15,017
103,256 152,541
(374) 14,163
1,213 0

0 3,829

839 17,992
104,095 185,550
104,095 170,578
0 14,972
104,095 185,550
2.08 3.07
2.08 3.07

Notes to the full-year consolidated financial staats

4



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP

(all amounts in PLN thousand)
Statement of changes in equity

Financial year ended December 31st 2014

Exchange
Statutory differences on
Share reserve  Revaluation translating foreign Cash flow Retained
capital Share premium  funds reserve operations hedges earnings Total
As at Jan 1 2014 16,376 289,806 207,809 619 (84) 0 137,749 652,275

Comprehensive income for the period
Net profit 0 0 0 0 0 0 103,256 103,256

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translating foreign openati 0 0 0 0 (374) 0 0 (374)
Effective portion of gains on fair-value measuretran

hedging instruments 0 0 0 0 0 1,213 0 1,213
Total other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0 (374) 1,213 0 839
Total comprehensive income for the period 0 0 0 0 (374) 1,213 103,256 104,095

Transactions with owners recognised in equity
Transfer of part of 2013 net profit to statutorgeere

funds 0 0 86,003 0 0 0 (86,003) 0
Transactions with owners recognised in equity 0 0 86,003 0 0 0 (86,003)
As at Dec 31 2014 16,376 289,806 293,812 619 (458) 1,213 155,002 756,370

Financial year ended December 31st 2013



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

As at Jan 1 2013

Comprehensive income for the
period
Net profit

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations
Exchange differences on net
investments in subsidiaries

Total other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive income for
the period

Transactions with owners
recognised in equity

Loss of control of subsidiary
Pfleiderer MDF OOO
Acquisition of non-controlling
interests

Transfer of part of 2012 net profit
to statutory reserve funds

Transactions with owners
recognised in equity

As at Dec 31 2013

Exchange
Exchange differences on
Statutory differences on net Non-
Share Share reserve  Revaluation translating foreign investments in Retained controlling

capital premium funds reserve operations subsidiaries  earnings Total interests Total
16,376 289,806 195,806 619 (14,292) (3,829) 42,906 527,392 57,773 585,165
0 0 0 0 0 0 152,541 152,541 15,017 167,558
0 0 0 0 14,208 0 0 14,208 (45) 14,163
0 0 0 0 0 3,829 0 3,829 0 3,829
0 0 0 0 14,208 3,829 0 18,037 (45) 17,992
0 0 0 0 14,208 3,829 152,541 170,578 14,972 185,550
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,004 5,004
0 0 0 0 0 0 (45,695) (45,695) (77,749) (123,444)
0 0 12,003 0 0 0 (12,003) 0 0 0
0 0 12,003 0 0 0 (57,698) (45,695) (72,745) (118,440)
16,376 289,806 207,809 619 (84) 0 137,749 652,275 0 652,275




PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

Statement of financial position

Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Investments in jointly controlled entities
Other non-current financial assets
Investment property

Deferred tax asset

Prepayments for property, plant and equipment
Government grants receivable
Derivatives

Non-current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Income tax receivable

Cash and cash equivalents
Other current financial assets
Derivatives

Current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Statutory reserve funds

Revaluation reserve

Effective portion of gains on fair-value measuretrafrhedging instruments
Exchange differences on translating foreign openati
Retained earnings

Equity (attributable to owners of the parent)
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Liabilities

Borrowings and other debt instruments
Employee benefit obligations

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income from government grants
Non-current liabilities

Borrowings and other debt instruments
Income tax payable

Trade and other payables

Employee benefit obligations

Deferred income from government grants
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Statement of cash flows

Note Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
10 679,019 623,837
11 2,665 1,607
3 107,829 107,829

52 52

12 5,075 18,738
13 3,860 3,995
14 17,390 14,652
4,787 5,578

15 69,336 14,627
25 626 0
890,639 790,915

16 181,016 177,692
17 122,908 112,310
984 21,110

30 18,512 16,450
12 2,347 216
25 587 100
326,354 327,878
1,216,993 1,118,793

19 16,376 16,376
19 289,806 289,806
19 293,812 207,809
619 619

1,213 0

(458) (84)

155,002 137,749

756,370 652,275

0 0

19 756,370 652,275
21 63,696 86,801
22 10,986 8,020
23 815 786
14 13,674 9,700
15 87,347 29,340
176,518 134,647

21 44,655 67,730
5,320 500

24 206,289 240,260
22 23,349 22,032
15 4,492 1,349
284,105 331,871

460,623 466,518
1,216 993 1,118,793




PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

Jan 1- Jan 1-

Note Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Net profit for the reporting year 103,256 167,558
Adjustments 90,979 (42,508)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 53,547 48,111
Foreign exchange gains (1,278) (1,605)
Interest for the period 7 14,871 26,495
Loss on investing activities 972 480
Income tax disclosed in profit or loss of the pdrio 9 24,758 10,639
Deferred income tax recognised in equity 0 0
Net result from discontinued operations after tax 116 (97,517)
Increase in trade and other receivables (4,901) (15,581)
Increase in inventories (3,324) (11,839)
Increase /(decrease) in trade and other payables 30 2,299 (3 666)
Increase in employee benefit obligations 4,283 4,205
Increase in provisions 29 a7
Amortisation of government grants 15 (1,512) (1,162)
Result on forward contracts 1,183 2,521
Increase/(decrease) in exchange differences oslatary foreign
operations (357) (79)
Other adjustments 338 (3,557)
Cash flows from operating activities 194,238 125 050
Interest received 309 1,609
Income tax paid/received (11 037) 87
Net cash from operating activities 183,507 126,746
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 549 329
Acquisition of intangible assets and property, pkamd equipment (109,676) (66,440)
Income from disposal of discontinued operations 18 26,279 618,255
Loans advanced to other entities (7,000) 0
Interest received 216 0
Net cash from investing activities (89,632) 552,144
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings and other debt instruments (46,800) (589,466)
Increase in borrowings and other debt instruments 0 31,263
Acquisition of non-controlling interests (30,341) (93,123)
Interest paid (15,293) (28,632)
Net cash from financing activities (92,434) (679,958)
Increase/(decrease) in cash 1,441 (1,068)
Cash at beginning of the period 16,450 17,518
Cash at end of the period 30 17,891 16,450




PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Notes to the annual consolidated financial statemés for the financial year ended
December 31st 2014

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

Notes to the annual consolidated financial statemés
General information

The parent entity of the Pfleiderer Grajewo GroBprént) is a listed joint-stock company registened
Poland.

The Parent, under its former name of Zaklady Phitrdivych S.A. of Grajewo, was originally
registered on July 1st 1994 by the District Co@dmmercial Court of totdm, in Section B of the
Commercial Register under entry No. 270. Subsefyemt May 9th 2001, it was registered by the
District Court of Biatystok, Xl Commercial Divisioof the National Court Register, under entry No.
KRS 0000011422. On September 18th 2002, the Grddpisagement Board received the decision of
the District Court of Bialystok on entering the &at's new name, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., in the
National Court Register.

The Parent's registered office is located at ulodMfiva 1, Grajewo, Poland.

In accordance with the Polish Classification of iBass Activities, the Parent’s business is register
under No. 1621Z7.

These full-year consolidated financial statemeritthe Pfleiderer Grajewo Group for the period from
January 1st to December 31st 2014 were approveddoe by the Parent Management Board on March
18th 2015.

Structure of the Group

The Pfleiderer Grajewo Group consists of the pafefitiderer Grajewo S.A., and its subsidiarieshim
period from January 1st to December 31st 2014jdefler Grajewo S.A. was the parent with respect to
the following entities:

Consolidated subsidiaries: Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
1. Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. Wieruszéw 100% 100%
2. Silekol Sp. z o.0. Kdzierzyn Kdle 100% 100%
3. Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.0. Grajewo 100% 100%
4. Jura Polska Sp. z o.0. Grajewo 100% 100%
5. Unifloor Sp. z o.0.

(in liquidation) Wieruszow 100% 100%
6. Grajewo O0OO Novgorod, Russia 100% 100%
Equity-accounted jointly-controlled entities:
7. Blitz 11-446 GmbH Neumarkt 50% 50%
Entities which are not consolidated and are not eqty-accounted:
8. Pfleiderer Services Sp. Grajewo 100% 100%

Re. 5indirectly through Pfleiderer Prospan SA.
Re. 6 purchase of shares on April 16th 2013.



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Notes to the annual consolidated financial statemés for the financial year ended
December 31st 2014

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

Structure of the Group as at December 31st 2014:

Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.

Parent
Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.
Subsidiary Subsidiary
(100%) (100%)
Unifloor Sp. z.0.0. “w :
likwidacji” (in liquidation) CIEE @0
Subsidiary Subsidiary
(200%) (100%)
Jura Polska Sp. z o.o. Silekol Sp. z 0.0.
Subsidiary Subsidiary
(100%) (100%)
Pfleiderer Services Sp. z 0.@
Subsidiary
(100%)

These full-year consolidated financial statemefth® Pfleiderer Grajewo Group comprise the finahci
data of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., the Parent, asidubsidiaries.

As at December 31st 2014, Pfleiderer Grajewo $h&.Parent, controlled the above entities as itthad
power to govern their financial and operating pebcby exercising the right to appoint and remove
members of their management boards.

Changes in the Group’s structure in the reporting geriod

In the period from January 1st to December 31s#20fe structure of the Group did not change nedati
to December 31st 2013.

Even though certain economic events took placénéncurrent reporting period, they did not directly
affect the Group’s structure and followed from gineviously executed agreements.

On January 20th 2014, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.haspurchaser, and Pfleiderer Service GmbH located
in Neumarkt, Germany, as the seller, signed aneaggeat for the purchase of shares in subsidiary
Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.0. located in Grajewo. Thwre purchase agreement was signed in the
performance of the preliminary purchase agreemeftecember 27th 2013, following fulfilment of a
condition provided for in the preliminary agreeméint. court registration of share capital increase
Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.). The purchase agreemmmterned 135,328 non-preference shares with a par
value of PLN 500 per share. The purchase pricéhtorshares was EUR 6,988 thousand (an equivalent
of PLN 29,070 thousand).

Following the purchase of the shares from Pfleid&ervice GmbH, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. holds

10



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Notes to the annual consolidated financial statemés for the financial year ended
December 31st 2014

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

100% of Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.’s share capital.
Pfleiderer Service GmbH is the parent of Pfleid&Geajewo S.A.

List of companies of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group,with brief description of principal business
activity:

The business of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., the Parentonsists in:

- manufacture and veneering of wood and wood-basmtlipts,
- paper finishing,
- trade at home and abroad.

Pfleiderer Prospan S.A.— a joint-stock company entered in the commerggister maintained by the
District Court of Kalisz under No. RHB1754 on Sepber 23rd 1997 as Zaklady Ptyt Widrowych
Prospan S.A. On September 17th 2001, the compasyregstered with the District Court of t6d
Srodmiescie in £6dz, 20th Division of the National Court Register undatry No. KRS: 0000042082.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 250744416
Tax Identification Number: 619-17-42-967
Registered address: ul. Bolestawiecka 10, 98W@uszow, Poland

Principal business activity:

- manufacture of melamine-faced and raw chipboardso#tmer wood and wood-based products,
paper finishing,

trade at home and abroad,

generation and distribution of heat.

Silekol Sp. z 0.0— a company entered in the National Court Registehe District Court of Opole, 8th
Commercial Division of the National Court RegistérOpole, under No. KRS 0000225788 on January
6th 2005.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 160003017

Tax Identification Number: 749-19-69-061

Registered address: ul. Mostowa nr 30 K, 47-22@lzierzyn-Kale,
Poland

Principal business activity:

The company ensures steady supplies of adhesieesinishipboard manufacture to the Parent and its
subsidiaries.

- manufacture of dyes and pigments,

- manufacture of other organic and inorganic chersjcal
- manufacture of paints and varnishes,

- manufacture of glues and gelatines.

Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0. —entered in the National Court Register by the @sCourt of Biatystok,
12th Commercial Division of the National Court Retgr in Biatystok, under entry No. KRS 174810, on
October 9th 2003.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 330994545
Tax Identification Number: 719-13-99-317
Registered address: ul. Wiérowa nr 1, 19-203&vaj Poland

11



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Notes to the annual consolidated financial statemés for the financial year ended
December 31st 2014

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

Principal business activity:

- sale and intermediation in the sale of raw and migla-faced chipboards, films and foils,
- veneering of chipboards,
- manufacture of melamine-faced and raw chipboardsotimer wood-based materials.

Jura Polska Sp.z 0.0.- entered in the National Court Register by thetrizit Court of Katowice,
Commercial Division of the National Court Registender No. KRS 149282, on November 24th 1999.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 276746151
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 629-215-85-14
Registered address: ul. Wiérowa 1, 19-203 Grajé¥adand

Principal business activity:

- transport,

- road transport of goods with specialised vehicles,
- road transport of goods with universal vehicles,

- lease of trucks,

Unifloor Sp. z 0.0. (in liquidation) — entered in the National Court Register by thstiidit Court of
Biatystok, Commercial Division of the National ColRegister, under No. KRS 0000237233, on June
29th 2005.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 200021250
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 719-149-38-49
Registered address: ul. Bolestawiecka 10, 98W@Huszéw, Poland

Unifloor Sp. z o.0. is currently in liquidation.

Pfleiderer Services Sp. z 0.0- a company entered in the National Court Regtsfethe District Court
of Bialystok, Xl Commercial Division of the Natiah Court Register in Bialystok, under No. KRS
0000247423, on December 20th 2005.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 200052769
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 719-15-03-973
Registered address: ul. Wiérowa 1, 19-203 Grajé¥atand

The company has suspended its operations.

Grajewo OOO - a limited liability company incorporated undeetlaws of the Russian Federation,
registered on August 12th 2009 by Interregionapétsion No. 9 for the Novgorod Region at the
Ministry of Customs and Taxes of the Russian Feuera

Uniform Registration Number: 1095321004130
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 5321135070
Registered address: 21/43 Studenitzeskaya Stwéelikij Novgorod, Russia

The company trades in Russia.

List of jointly-controlled entities:

12



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Notes to the annual consolidated financial statemés for the financial year ended
December 31st 2014

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

Blitz 11-446 GmbH — entered in the Commercial Register by the Ciouluremberg, under No. HRB
28 166.

HRB Registry Number: 28 166
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 201/116/21366
Registered address: Ingolstadter Strasse 51, AldtinGermany

Principal business activity:

- exports, in particular to Russia and Eastern Eyrope
- provision of investment-related services.

Composition of the Parent's Management Board and th Supervisory Board and changes
therein in the reporting period

As at the end of the reporting period, the compmsiof the Pfleiderer Grajewo Management Board was
as follows:

1. Wojciech Gytkiewicz President of the Management Board
2. Rafat Karcz Member of the Management Board
3. Dariusz Tomaszewski Member of the Managemeirdo

During the 12 months ended 31 December 2014 them wo changes in the composition of the
Management Board of the Parent. On 16 February 204 SSupervisory Board of Pfleiderer Grajewo
S.A.:
elected Mr. Michael Wolff to the Management Boafdhee Company and entrusted him a function of
President of Management Board;
elected Mr. Gerd Schubert to the Management BoatdeoCompany and entrusted him a function of
Chief Operating Officer;
recalled Mr. Wojciech @kiewicz from a function of President of ManagemBuoiard and entrusted
him a function of Member of Management Board -efRiransformation Officer.

Composition of the Supervisory Board as at Decerithet 2014:

1. Michael Wolff Chairman of the Supervisory Board
2. Jochen Schapka Member of the Supervisory Board
3. Gerd Schubert Member of the Supervisory Board
4. Richard Mayer Member of the Supervisory Board
5. Jan Waniak Member of the Supervisory Board

During the 12 months ended 31 December 2014 fofigwchanges in the composition of the
Supervisory Board of the Parent took place:

On June 23rd 2014, Mr Gerd Hammerschmidt resigredMamber of the Supervisory Board of
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., effective from June 29012

On June 30th 2014, Mr Gerd Schubert was appointeaidér of the Parent's Supervisory Board.
After 31 December 2014. following changes in thenposition of the Supervisory Board took place:

In accordance with a resolution of the Extraordin@eneral Meeting, dated 30 January 2015 Mr
Michael Wolff was recalled from the position of @fmaan of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Supervisory Board

13



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Notes to the annual consolidated financial statemés for the financial year ended
December 31st 2014

(all amounts in PLN thousand)
and Mr Gerd Schubert was recalled from the positibilember of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Supervisory
Board.

On January 30th 2015 Mr Paolo G. Antonietti and Mrchael F. Keppel were appointed to the
Pfleiderer Grajewo Supervisory Board.

On February 16th 2015 the Supervisory Board apedimilr Paolo G. Antonietti for a position of
Chairman of Supervisory Board and Mr. Michael Fpgel for a position of Vice Chairman of the
Supervisory Board.

All duties and responsibilities of the audit contaét were transferred to the Parent's SupervisogydBo

Periods covered by the consolidated financial stateents and the comparative data

These full-year consolidated financial statememtgehbeen prepared for the year ended December 31st
2014, while the comparative financial data and sioé¢ate to the year ended December 31st 2013.

These full-year consolidated financial statememts the year ended December 31st 2014 and the
comparative data comprise the financial data oki@rer Grajewo S.A., the Parent, and of its
subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These full-year consolidated financial statements/eh been prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards endblgethe European Union (“the EU IFRS").

The EU IFRS include all the International AccougtiBtandards, International Financial Reporting
Standards, and their Interpretations, except fosg¢hStandards and Interpretations, discussed below,
which are still to be endorsed by the European kiaind Standards and Interpretations which have been
endorsed by the European Union but have not cotodadnce yet.

A number of new Standards, amendments to Standadidnterpretations not yet effective for annual
periods ending on December 31st 2014 and have een lapplied in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group intends to apply them fopt#réods for which they are required to applied for
the first time.

Sandards and inter pretations adopted by the | ASB and endorsed by the EU

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits entitlediizel Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Improvements to IFRS (2010-2012)

Improvements to IFRS (2011-2013)

IFRS as adopted by the EU do not differ signifigafiom the regulations adopted by the Internationa
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), except for tbkofving standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations, which as of the date of publicatd the financial statements have not been appréwe
use:

Sandards and Interpretations adopted by the Board (IASB) and pending approval by the EU on 31
December 2014

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014)
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
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(all amounts in PLN thousand)

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Jointp&ations (Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements)

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciatiamd Amortisation (Amendments to IAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangitssets)

Agriculture: Bearer Plants (Amendments to IAS l1l@gerty, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41
Agriculture)

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (#dneents to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Inveatat its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and B$12estments in Associates)

Improvements to IFRS (2012-2014)

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Egtion (Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Intsr@s Other Entities and IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures)

Disclosure initiative (Amendments to IAS 1 Presg&ataof Financial Statements)

According to the Group, abovementioned standandsrpretations and amendments to standards would
not have a material impact on the consolidatedntired statements, if they had been applied by the
Group at the reporting date, with the exceptionF&®S 9 "Financial Instruments”, which could have a
significant impact on the classification and vaimatfinancial assets. Upon initial application, ie.
January 1, 2017 year impact of the new IFRS 15 aéjpend on the specific facts and circumstances
relating to contracts with customers, the Group garty. The Group has not yet analyze the impfct o
the new standards on its financial position andlte®f operations

Basis of accounting

These full-year consolidated financial statemertgehbeen prepared in compliance with the historical
cost convention, with the exception of financialridatives and investment property which were
measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

All amounts disclosed in these full-year consokdafinancial statements are expressed in the Polish
zloty (PLN) and rounded to the nearest thousaniéssnndicated otherwise.

The functional currency of the Parent is the Patisity (PLN).

Estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith the EU IFRS requires the Management Board
to make certain estimates and assumptions whidctatffie values disclosed in the financial statement
and the related notes. While the assumptions aimdages used are based on the Management Board'’s
best knowledge of current activities, operationd davelopments, the actual results may differ from
projections (see Note 33).

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewedroongoing basis. Any change in accounting
estimates is recognised in the period in which sth@nge occurred or in the current and future gsrio
if the estimate change relates to both the cuardtfuture periods.

Significant accounting policies

The Group’s accounting policies have been appliedsistently in all periods presented in these
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PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Notes to the annual consolidated financial statemés for the financial year ended
December 31st 2014

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

consolidated financial statements, and have begliredponsistently by the Group entities.
Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the parent.

Control is the power to govern, directly or indifgcthe financial and operating policies of a give
entity in order to obtain benefits from its acti@#. The degree of control is assessed based on the
existing and potential voting rights that are caotieexercisable.

Financial statements of subsidiaries are conselil&om the date that control commences until ® th
date the control ceases.

(i) Loss of control

On the loss of control, the Group derecognisesassets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and the other componentsqoitg related to the subsidiary. Any surplus oridef
arising on the loss of control is recognised infiprar loss. If the Group retains any interest e t
previous subsidiary, then such interest is measatednir value at the date that control is lost.
Subsequently, the retained interest is accounteds@n equity-accounted investee or availablesdéde-
financial asset depending on the level of influerstained.

(iif) Consolidation adjustments

Balances of intra-Group settlements among the Gsoaptities, transactions between the Group’s
entities and all related unrealised gains or Igsasswell as the Group’s income and expenses are
eliminated while preparing the consolidated finahstatements. Unrealised losses are eliminatéaein
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the etttatthere is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currencies
(i) Transactions in foreign currencies

Any transaction expressed in a foreign currenciyasslated to the respective functional currenofes
Group entities at exchange rates effective aseatrémsaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreigrencies are translated as at the end of feetneg
period at the exchange rate effective for a givamency as at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities valued at hisab cost in foreign currencies are translated at
exchange rates effective as at the transaction date

Foreign currency differences resulting from rettatnen are recognised in profit or loss of the pdri
except for foreign currency differences arisingnireetranslation of a qualifying cash-flow hedgette
extent the hedge is effective and foreign curretranslation differences on net investments in
subsidiaries.

Exchange rates used to translate items of thens¢ateof financial position:
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

EUR 4.2623 4.1472
usb 3.5072 3.0120
GBP 5.4648 4.9828
RUB 0.0602 0.0914
RON 0.9510 0.9262

Exchange rates used to translate items of thensgstieof comprehensive income:
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
EUR 4.1893 4.2110
USD 3.1784 3.1653
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GBP 5.2225 4.9528
RUB 0.0821 0.0990
RON 0.9440 0.9543

(i) Translation of foreign operations

As at the end of the reporting period, assets mfdities of foreign subsidiaries are translataetbithe
Polish zloty at the exchange rate effective abi@treporting date. Income and expenses are tradsdat
exchange rates effective as at the dates of theactions. The resulting foreign currency diffeeshare
recognised in other comprehensive income and piregé@m equity as a separate item of foreign cuyenc
translation reserve. At the time of disposal ofoeefgn entity any accumulated currency-translation
differences are transferred to profit or loss a$ @iethe gain or loss on disposal.

(iii) Net investments in foreign operations

Foreign currency differences relating to monetagynis receivable from or liabilities due to a foreig
operation, whose settlement is neither plannedonmsable in the foreseeable future, are considered
form part of net investments in foreign operati@msl are recognised in other comprehensive income
and presented in equity as translation reserve.

Financial instruments
(i) Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise lgarsceivables, as well as liabilities measured at
amortised cost.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Groupcbmes a party to the instrument's contractual
provisions. Financial assets are derecognised frwnstatement of financial position if the Group’s
contractual rights to cash flows from the finan@akets expire or if the Group transfers the firznc
asset to another party without retaining contrawvstantially all risks and rewards of the asset.

The Group may transfer financial assets in a way sbhme of the assets will not be derecognisatielf
Group transfers a financial asset in a way thaeither retains nor transfers substantially aksiand
rewards of ownership but it retains control of fimancial asset then the Group continues to resagai
financial asset to the extent of its continuingalement in the asset. The extent of the entity's
continuing involvement in the transferred assehésextent to which the entity is exposed to th& df
changes in the value of the transferred asset.

If the entity continues to recognise an assetédcetttent of its continuing involvement, it alsoagnises
the related liability, which is measured in suclvay as to reflect the rights and obligations tlnet t
entity retained with respect to the asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised from thdesteent of financial position if the Group’s obligats
specified in the contract expire or are dischamyechncelled.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets wittdfir determinable payments that are not quotedh in
active market. They are initially carried at famlwe plus directly attributable transaction costsgl
subsequently measured at amortised cost, usingffibetive interest rate method, less any accundlate
impairment losses.

The fair value of trade and other receivables timated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted using the market interest rate as aldbteof the statement of financial position.

Loans and receivables include trade and othervalleis, as well as cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in handdemnd deposits at banks. Cash and cash
equivalents reported in the statement of cash flimdude the abovementioned cash and cash
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equivalents or cash and cash equivalents additjoreduced by outstanding bank overdrafts, whiah ar
an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost iaitially recognised at fair value less any dilec
attributable transaction costs, and subsequenthsuored at amortised cost using the effective istere
rate method.

Financial liabilities are recognised on the tradéedwhich is the date on which the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instraime

The Group’s financial liabilities measured at ansad cost comprise borrowings and other debt
instruments as well as trade and other payables.

The fair value for disclosure purposes is determhingsed on the present value of future cash floova f
repayment of principal and interest, discountechgighe market interest rate as at the date of the
statement of financial position.

(ii) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses financial derivatives, mainly forvaontracts, to hedge its currency-exchange risk
exposures related to its operating, financing vedting activities.

Initially, financial derivatives are recognised fir value; any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred; thereatiey are measured at fair value. Gains and losses
measurement at fair value are recognised in poofibss of the period. However, if financial detivas

are classified as hedging instruments, the recogndf gains or losses on remeasurement to faureval
depends on the type of the item hedged with sudkal&es.

At inception, the Group formally documents the tielaship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item. The documentation describes the régkagement objective and a strategy for undertaking
the hedge, as well as methods to be used by thegpGomassess the hedge effectiveness.

The Group makes an assessment, both at inceptbimasubsequent periods, whether it is justified to
expect that the hedging instruments will remairghity effective” in offsetting changes in fair valoe
cash flows of the respective hedged items attriiletto the hedged risk, during the entire period fo
which the hedge was undertaken, as well as whettteal results are within a range of 80-125%. Cash
flow hedges are applied for highly probable foré¢eensactions bearing risk of changes in cashdlow
whose effects would be recognised in profit or losthe period.

The fair value of a currency forward is estimatgddiscounting the difference between the transactio
price and the current forward rate for the perindileg on the contract execution date, applyingsk:- ri
free rate (based on T-bill rates).

Cash-flow hedges

If a financial derivative is designated to hedgtatility in cash flows related to a specific risermected
with a recognised asset, liability or a highly pable forecast transaction which could affect profit
loss, the portion of the gain or loss on the heglgistrument that is determined to be an effedtivdge

is recognised in other comprehensive income andepted as a separate hedging reserve in equity.
Gains or losses previously recognised in other cehgnsive income are transferred to the current
period’s profit or loss in the same period and lie tsame item in which hedged cash flows are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive incdime ineffective portion of changes in fair vahfe

a derivative instrument is recognised immediatelthe current period’s profit or loss.

If a hedging instrument no longer meets the cetési hedge accounting, it expires or is sold, teated
or exercised, or its designation is changed, ttmi@ceases to apply hedge accounting prospectiiely.
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the forecast transaction is not to be effectedgtins or losses previously recognised in the rsizie of
comprehensive income are immediately recognisegrdfit or loss. Otherwise, amounts previously
recognised in the statement of comprehensive ina@aeecognised in profit or loss in the same plerio
or periods in which the hedged transaction affpobéit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Owned property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognised atligiiqn or production cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Acquisition cost comprises the price for which aegi asset was purchased (i.e. amount due to tiee, sel
less any deductible taxes: VAT and excise tax)lipaharges (in the case of imports), and costsctly
related to the purchase and adaptation of the dssetse, including the cost of transport, loading,
unloading and storage. Rebates, discounts and eilmdiar reductions decrease the asset acquisition
cost. The production cost of property, plant andimgent or a tangible asset under construction
comprises all expenses incurred by a company tetaart, install, adapt or improve such asset,
including non-deductible VAT or excise tax, untietday on which the asset was available for use in
manner intended by the management. The productomt comprises also the estimated cost of
dismantling and removing items of property, pland &quipment, as well as of restoring them to their
initial condition, if such obligation exists. Addihally, the production cost includes borrowing tsos
associated with the acquisition or production ofitam of property, plant and equipment or a tareibl
asset under construction. If a specific item ofpenty, plant and equipment consists of separate and
material components with different useful livesslsgomponents are treated as separate items.

Gain or loss on disposal of an item of propertgnplor equipment is estimated as a difference lmiwe
the disposal proceeds and the carrying amounteditéim, and is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Reclassification to investment property

When the designation of a property changes fromepvaecupied to investment property, the property is
measured at fair value and reclassified to investmpsoperty. Any gain on remeasurement is recognise
in profit or loss, to the extent that it reversgg@vious loss on impairment loss on the speciaperty.
The remaining gains are recognised in other congmslie income and presented in equity as
revaluation reserve. Any losses are recognisedaddis pr loss.

(i) Property, plant and equipment used under leas agreements

Lease agreements under which an entity assumetastibly all the risks and benefits resulting from
the ownership of the property, plant and equipman classified as finance lease agreements.

Upon initial recognition, items of property, plard equipment acquired under finance lease agréaemen
are measured at the lower of their fair value aspnt value of the minimum lease payments, and
subsequently reduced by depreciation and impairioseés.

Lease agreements under which the lessor retairstastally all risks and benefits resulting frone th
ownership of the leased asset are classified aatipgleases. Property, plant and equipment usddru
operating lease agreements are not recognizee istdtement of financial position.

(iv) Subsequent expenditure

The Group capitalises subsequent expenditure ohnvit is probable that the Group will obtain fugur
economic benefits associated with the expendi@ther expenditure is recognised in profit or loss a
incurred. Repair and maintenance costs are expassiedurred.

(v) Depreciation
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Items of property, plant and equipment, or sub&thand individual elements thereof, are deprediate
over their useful economic lives using the stralgié method, taking into account the residual galu
Leased assets are depreciated over the shortee tddse term and their useful economic life unteiss
reasonably certain that the Group will obtain owhg by the end of the lease term. Land is not
depreciated.

The Group has adopted the following useful econdivés for particular categories of tangible assets

Buildings 25-40 years
Plant and equipment 2-25 years
Vehicles 5-8 years
Other tangible assets 4-8 years

The correctness of the applied useful lives, deatien methods and residual values of propertynipla
and equipment is reviewed as at the end of eadrtieg period and adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Any business combination other than combinationashpanies under common control is accounted for
with the acquisition method.
Goodwill is recognised on the date of obtainingdbstrol as::

- the fair value of consideration transferred, plus

- the recognised amount of any non-controlling irgexén the acquiree; plus

- if the business combination is achieved in statesfair value of the pre-existing equity interizst
the acquiree, less

- the net recognised amount (generally fair valuejhef identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

Following the initial recognition, goodwill is regnised at cost less any accumulated impairment$oss

(i) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets with definite useful life acqdiie a separate transaction have a definite periace
and are recognised at acquisition cost less acatetul amortisation charges and accumulated
impairment losses.

(i) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on existing intangible asietcapitalised only when it increases future
economic benefits to be generated by the asseer@tkpenditure is recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

(iv) Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised with the straiglet-method over their useful economic lives, unless
their useful economic lives are indefinite. Goodhiginot amortised; instead, it is tested for innpent

at the end of each financial year or when the atiha of possible impairment occurs . Other inthlegi
assets are amortised from the date that they aitable for use. The estimated useful economicslivke
intangible assets are as follows:

Licences 2-3 years
Computer software 2 years

The correctness of the applied useful economics)iamortisation methods and residual values of
intangible assets is reviewed as at the end of egurting period and adjusted where appropriate.

Investment property
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Investment property is held to earn rental incomd/ar for capital appreciation. Investment propésty
not held for sale as part of normal operations, indt used in the manufacturing process, supply of
goods and services, or for administrative purpasegstment property is initially measured at casig
subsequently at fair value. Any gains or lossesiragifrom changes in fair value are recognisedafitp

or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are recognised at the lower of cost medrealisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course udibess, less estimated cost to complete and ¢stima
costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventory is determined in the follogiimanner:

Materials and merchandise — at acquisition costetb®n the weighted average method.

Finished goods and work in progress — cost of dimterials and labour and an appropriate portfon o
indirect production costs, calculated on the basisormal production capacity; based on the weihte
average method.

Impairment losses

() Non-derivative financial assets

An impairment loss on a non-derivative financiadetsis recognised if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events thatiroed after initial recognition of the asset, ethi
may have an adverse impact on future cash flovede®lto the financial asset and it may be estimated
reliably.

The amount of an impairment loss on a financiaklgteasured at amortised cost is estimated as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amountgr@sed in the statement of financial position amel t
present value of the future cash flows, discountsidg the original effective interest rate. Impatmh
losses on financial assets available for sale @mgpated by reference to the assets’ present faieva

Each material financial asset is tested for impamimas at the end of each reporting period. Other
financial assets are divided into groups with samdredit risk and assessed for impairment coitebti

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed if a subsequergaserin the recoverable amount can be objectively
attributed to an event occurring after the impaimhrecognition date. In such a case, the amouttieof
reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of non-financial assets othantinventories, investment property and deferaad t
asset are reviewed at the end of each reportingdoéw determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then #sset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodswill
tested annually for impairment at year end.

The recoverable amount of assets of cash-genenatiitg) is higher of an asset's fair value lesssctust
sell and its value in use. Value in use is caleddly discounting present value of estimated futash
flows with a pre-tax interest rate that reflectsrent market assessments of the time value of mandy
the risks specific to the asset. In the case adtasghich do not generate independent cash floalagv

in use is estimated for the assets’ smallest ifiabke cash-generating unit. An impairment loss is
recognised when the carrying amount of an asseasit-generating unit recognised in the statement of
financial position is higher than its recoverablmoant. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets which generates caibwis that are largely independent of the castvdlo
from other assets or groups of assets. Impairnessek are recognised in profit or loss. Impairnoéiat
cash-generating unit is initially recognised aseardase in goodwill allocated to that cash-genagati
unit (a group of cash-generating units), and subsetly as a decrease in the carrying amount of the
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other assets belonging to that cash-generating(argtoup of cash-generating units) recognisedén t
statement of financial position on a pro-rata basis

Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. dtber assets, at the end of each reporting period
impairment losses recognised in prior periods eveewed to determine if there is any evidence tiney

no longer exist or have decreased. An impairmess k@cognised in prior periods is reversed if the
estimates used to determine the asset’'s recovembtmint have changed. An impairment loss is

reversed only up to the carrying amount of the ta@s&t of amortisation and depreciation) that would

have been determined had no impairment loss beegmeed.

Discontinued operations and disposal groups

Assets and liabilities representing a disposal grethich are expected to generate benefits threagg

or distribution rather than through continued uaee classified by the Group as held for sale or
distribution, provided that the assets are availdbl immediate sale in their present condition trel
probability of such a transaction is high. Diredbigfore reclassification as held for sale or distibn,

the assets (or components of a disposal groupyeameasured in line with the Group’s accounting
policies. Subsequently, the assets or disposabgrate recognised at the lower of their carryingam

or fair value less cost to sell.

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is alloddiest to goodwill, and subsequently as a decréase
the carrying amount of other assets on a pro-rasépprovided that the loss of goodwill does rifitch

the value of inventories, financial assets, detbrtax assets, employee benefit assets, investment
property, which continue to be recognised in acaocé with the Group’s accounting policies.
Impairment on assets initially recognised as hetdshle or distribution is charged to profit ordder

the period. This also applies to gains or lossssltiag from subsequent change of value. Gainsaon f
value remeasurement are recognised only up tontloeiat of previously recognised impairment losses.

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipmlessified as assets held for sale or distribusicn
not amortised or depreciated.

Discontinued operations are understood as Groymesations which were disposed of or classified as
held for sale or distribution, constituting:

- aseparate major line of business or geographieal af operations,

- apart of a single co-ordinated plan to disposa séparate major line of business or a geographical
area of operations,

- asubsidiary purchased solely for resale.

Operations are classified as discontinued opermatfofowing their disposal or once they meet the
criteria to be classified as held for disposalthé operations are classified as discontinued tipes
the comparative data in the statement of compréengome is restated as if the discontinuatiakto
place at the beginning of the comparative period.
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Equity

(i) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are disclosed under equity. Casdstly attributable to the issue of ordinary slsaaad
stock options, adjusted by the effect of taxescecquity.

(i) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as liabilities in the @ein which the dividend resolution was adopted.

(i) Non-controlling interests

The Group presents non-controlling interests air fm®portionate share of the acquiree’s identiBab
net assets.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiaaydb not result in a loss of control are accoufeds
transactions with owners in their capacity as ownadjustments to non-controlling interests areebas
on proportionate amount of the net assets of theidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwill and n
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan

Under the applicable regulations, the Group is irequto withhold and pay contributions for future
pension benefits of its employees. The benefitsifarstate plan which is a defined contribution plan
connection with the above, the Group’s liabilities each period are recognised based on the
contributions payable in a given year.

(ii) Other non-current employee benefits - retiremat bonuses

In accordance with the remuneration rules, empleyaePfleiderer Grajewo S.A, Pfleiderer Prospan
S.A., Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.0., Silekol Sp. z pand Jura Polska Sp. z 0.0. are entitled to receiv
retirement bonus (upon retirement).

The Group’s retirement bonus obligations are ddtexth by estimating the amount of future
remuneration of the employee at the time of theleyge's retirement, and by estimating the amount of
the future bonus. Retirement bonuses are discodatpdesent value. Retirement bonus obligations are
recognised pro rata to the employee's expectedHerigervice.

The value of future liabilities is calculated bygaalified actuary using the projected unit costhuodt
The employee turnover is estimated based on fusiorilata and projections concerning future
employment levels.

Any changes between the balance of employee bestdigations as at the beginning and the end of a
reporting period are recognised in profit or loss the reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has #itljalbegal or constructive obligation) resultirigpm
past events and when it is probable that a disehair¢his liability would cause an outflow of ecaonic
benefits, and the amount of the liability may biealdy estimated. If the effect of time value of n&y is
significant, the amount of provisions is determimgddiscounting projected future cash flows to prits
value at pre-tax rates reflecting the current magkémates of the time value of money and ridkany,
related to a specific liability. If the discountingethod is applied, an increase in provisions salt of
lapse of time is presented in finance costs.
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Revenue

(i) Revenue from sales of finished goods/merchanéisnd services

Revenue from sales of finished goods/merchandisecisgnised at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns, trade dist®and volume rebates.

Revenue is recognised when significant risks amarés incidental to the ownership of finished goods
and merchandise have been transferred to the cesst@and if the revenue amount may be reliably
estimated. The revenue is not recognised if theréueconomic benefits, determination of the costs
incurred, or the possibility of return of finishgdods/merchandise is highly uncertain, or if thétgis
involved in the management of the sold finisheddgdmerchandise on a continuing basis.

Revenue from provision of services includes maimlyenue from transportation services, which are
recognised when a service is completed.

(i) Government grants

A government grant is recognised in the stateméfihancial position only when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and tloeiiswill comply with any conditions attached te@ th
grant. Grants received as compensation for coseady incurred are recognised as income on a
systematic basis in the periods when the costsecklo the grants are incurred. Grants received as
compensation for costs of assets are recognisedoiit or loss on a systematic basis as other ircom
over the useful economic life of the asset.

In addition to monetary government grants, the @ralso recognises government grants in the form of
exemption from income tax as tax receivables anérdm income (government grant) related to
subsidiary's activities in a Special Economic Zohlee government grant is in the form of exemption
from income tax until the earlier of the two: usktbe investment tax credit (maximum amount
calculated on the basis of the regulations apgicabspecial economic zones) or expiry of the &pec
Economic Zone. In order to assess the amount ofdlwernment grant to be utilised in the following
financial years, the Group estimated the total anhaf the potential tax payable on the tax-exempt
income generated by it from the business condugtethe Special Economic Zone based on the
approved budgets for the following financial yedrse Group amortises the government grants. For tha
purpose, the Group compiles a list of the propgrtgnt and equipment (with the applied depreciation
rates) where capital expenditure made on suchsagsahe particular years is taken into account in
calculating the amount of the government grantthé period of conducting operations in the special
economic zone. Based on the above data, the Gsiipates the weighted average depreciation rate for
the property, plant and equipment. In the followingporting periods the Group amortises the
government grants recognised as deferred incomegufie weighted average depreciation rate
calculated for the property, plant and equipmem #tquisition of which served as the basis for
establishing the amount of the government grants.

The Group also amortises government grant assetsdcteivable). The Group reduces the government
grant asset by the amount of the government griliged in the reporting period, in correspondence
with income tax expense (note 15).

Operating lease payments

Payments under operating lease agreements condhydéte Group are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis dutie lease term.

Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments made under finance leasesapportioned between finance costs and
reduction of the outstanding liability. Finance tsoare allocated to each reporting period as taiolat
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaiaimgpunt of the lease liability.

24



p)

a)

PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Notes to the annual consolidated financial statemés for the financial year ended
December 31st 2014

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

Net finance income and costs

Finance income includes interest income on fundested by the Group, gains on hedging instruments
that are recognised in profit or loss, foreigh exaye gains (excluding gains from foreign exchange
differences classified to other operating incomej eeclassifications of net gains previously recsegh

in other comprehensive income. Interest incomedsgnised in profit or loss on an accrual basisgusi
the effective interest rate method.

Finance costs include interest expense on borr@yingwinding of the discount on provisions and
deferred consideration, losses on hedging instrtendrat are recognised in profit or loss, foreign
exchange losses (excluding gains from foreign exgbadifferences classified to other operating
income), and financial assets impairment (othen tirade receivables), reclassification of net lssse
previously recognised in other comprehensive incdnterest expense that is not directly attribugetbl
the acquisition, construction or production of alifying asset is recognised in profit or loss gsthe
effective interest rate method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are posted erbagis as either finance income or finance costs.
Income tax expense

Corporate income tax recognised in profit or lossnprises current and deferred tax. Current and
deferred income tax is recognised in profit or Jogsless it relates to business combination, items
recognised directly in equity or as other comprshanincome.

The current tax is the expected tax payable orivabke for the year, determined using the tax rates
applicable at the end of the reporting period, amauding any adjustments of the tax due for the
previous years.

The deferred income tax is determined in relatmmalt temporary differences existing as at the ehd
the reporting period between the tax value of aszed liabilities and their carrying amount recsgdi
in the statement of financial position and disctbsethe consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax asset is not recognised for:

- Temporary differences on initial recognition of essor liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither atowyior taxable profit or loss;

- Temporary differences related to investments insiglidries and jointly controlled entities to the
extent that the Group is able to control the timifigeversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the forebéeéuture;

- Taxable temporary differences arising on initiadagnition of goodwill (only deferred tax liability)

Deferred tax asset is recognised in relation taadluctible temporary differences as well as unaged
losses carried forward, in the amount of the prababxable income which would enable these
differences and losses to be used. Carrying ammiuatdeferred tax asset is reviewed as at the énd o
each reporting period and is subject to appropriatieiction to the extent it is no longer probalblat t
taxable income sufficient for a partial or full lieation of this deferred tax asset would be geeera

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability aewated using tax rates expected to be effectivibe
time of realisation of particular asset or liahilibased on tax rates (and tax legislation) agtual
legally in force as at the end of the reportingqukr

The measurement of deferred tax reflect the tasequences that would follow the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting petiodecover or settle the carrying amount of itsetss
and liabilities.
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Earnings/(Loss) per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings)(fmssshare for ordinary shares. Basic earnings)lo
per share are calculated by dividing the profisgloattributable to holders of ordinary shareshw®y t
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstgraliring the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per
share is calculated taking into account the prddiss) attributable to holders of ordinary shatég,
average number of ordinary shares, and instrunféraisy) with a dilutive effect.

Determination and presentation of operating segmest

The Group determines and presents operating segnieised on the information that is internally
provided to its chief operating decision makers.

An operating segment is a Group component thatgasyam business activities from which it may earn
revenue and incur expenses, including revenue gpenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Group's other components. Operating results obgierating segments for which financial information
can be identified are reviewed regularly by the ag@ament to make decisions about resources to be
allocated and to assess the segments' performance.

Segment results reported to the management indes directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable hasedlocated items comprise mainly administrative
assets of the entity, office expenses and incomadsets and liabilities.

Capital expenditure of a segment includes experalitn purchase of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets other than goodwill.
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Operating segments
The Group comprises the following reporting op@gsegments to which the Group entities are akuatat

Operating Companies included

segments the segment Principal business activity

Poland Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. Production of chipboard
Jura Sp. z o0.0. Transport services — mainly topanies of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group
Silekol Sp. z o0.0. Production of resins and adkessi- mainly for the Group’s purposes
Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. Production of chipboard
Unifloor Sp. z o.0. w likwidaciji (in liquidation)
Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.  Production of thin MDFalod
Grajewo OO0 Trading activities in Russia

Information on geographical segments
Revenue by country of customer’s registered office:

Jan1 - Jan 1-
Country Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Poland 1,004,167 926,050
Germany 188,084 178,235
Lithuania 67,045 86,422
Russia 61,727 82,819
Sweden 41,062 36,608
Czech Republic 24,978 29,150
Latvia 16,074 14,299
Romania 14,997 8,061
Belarus 14,480 17,818
Ukraine 11,538 12,848
Netherlands 10,764 9,556
Slovakia 10,190 10,175
Denmark 7,109 6,863
Hungary 7,085 5,270
Kazakhstan 6,572 7,628
Finland 4,615 4,957
San Marino 4,512 1,237
Switzerland 4,467 0
Italy 3,960 3,520
Azerbaijan 2,984 5,258
Moldova 2,441 2,294
Estonia 1,760 1,351
Serbia 1,718 1,652
United Kingdom 1,619 795
Austria 1,294 852
Georgia 851 1,293
Republic of South Africa 327 1,396
Other countries < PLN 1m 6,399 5,732
Total 1,522,819 1,462,139

Products and Services
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Jan 1- % share Jan 1- % share

By product group Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Revenue from sale of products: 1,451,582 95.32% 1,392,914 95.27%
Chipboardgraw boards, melamine-faced boards, fibre mats,

MFP) 792,644 52.05% 762,830 52.17%
MDF boards(raw MDF, enamelled MDF, fibre mats) 303,393 19.92% 261,298 17.87%
Glues(basic resin, specialised resin, formalin) 258,226 16.96% 238,514 16.31%
Other(films, faoils, edge banding, packaging, and other) 97,319 6.39% 130,272 8.91%
Revenue from sale of materials 7,017 0.46% 9,816 0.67%
Revenue from sale of merchandise 24,152 1.59% 24,083 1.65%
Revenue from rendering of services 40,068 2.63% 35,327 2.42%

Total sales 1,522,819 100.0% 1,462,139  100.0%

Key customers

Given the nature of the Group’s business and iessructure, it is not possible to identify kexstomers.
In the financial years ended December 31st 2014 @ecember 31st 2013, none of the customers

accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s totlssa

Segment information

Following the disposal in early 2013 of subsidiarihich met the geographical segment criterion
(Russia), the Group identifies only one operati@agment - Poland.

In these consolidated financial statements, susidiGrajewo OOO is presented in the 'Poland’
geographical segment as it does not meet the dgatardi criteria to qualify as a separate operationa

segment.

Segments’ profit comprises profit generated by essgment, without allocating finance income andsos
and income tax, as these items are monitored aGtbap level and cannot be allocated. Inter-segment

sales are executed on an arm'’s length basis.
Reporting segment's revenue for the reporting antparative periods
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Operating segments

Poland Russia Inter-segment eliminations Total consolidated
Eliminations Eliminations
o . . . . Inter-segment of Inter- of
Continuing operations Discontinued operations oS . . segment . .
eliminations dlscontl_nued eliminations dlscontl'nued
operations operations

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2014 2013 2013 2014 2013
Segment’s revenue from sales to third-
party customers 1,522,819 1,465,551 0 18,357 0 0 0 (21,769) 1,522,819 1,462,139
Revenue from inter-segment transactiot 0 0 3,412 0 0 (3,412) 0 0 0
Total revenue 1,522,819 1,465,551 0 21,769 0 0 (3,412) (21,769) 1,522,819 1,462,139
Total costs*** (1,379,886) (1,356,877) 0 (19,364) 0 0 3,477 19,364  (1,379,886) (1,353,400)
Operating profit/(loss) 142,933 108,674 0 2,405 0 0 65 (2,405) 142,933 108,739
Finance net income/costs (14,919) (28,059)
Tax (24,758) (10,639)
Net profit/(loss) 103,256 70,041
Segment’s assets 1,180,107 1,066,615 0 0 0 0 (34) 0 1,180,107 1,066,581
including: non-current assets 873,249 776,271 0 0 0 0 9) 0 872,623 776,262
current assets 306,858 290,344 0 0 0 0 (25) 0 307,484 290,319
Unallocated assets * 36,886 52,212
Total assets 1,216,993 1,118,793
Segment’s operating liabilities 333,278 301,788 0 0 0 0 0 0 333,278 301,788
Unallocated liabilities ** 127,345 164,730
Capital expenditure
property, plant and equipment 111,224 84,278 0 0 0 0 0 0 111,224 84,278
intangible assets 2,436 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,436 0
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (52,419) (47,262) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (52,419) (47,262)
Amortisation of intangible assets (1,128) (849) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1,128) (849)

* Unallocated assets include cash, income tax vabé& and deferred tax assets.

** Unallocated liabilities include income tax payapdeferred tax liability, borrowings and othebtastruments.
*** Total costs include: cost of sales, distributioosts, administrative expenses, other operaticgnie and expenses
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Seasonality of operations

Sales of chipboard are subject to seasonal fliongtcaused mainly by the seasonality of busiitess
the construction sector. Typically, sales fall re tsecond quarter and peak in the second halfeof th
calendar year.

Goodwill
Impairment test of cash generating unit containinggoodwiill

As at December 31st 2014, the Parent’'s ManagemeatdBestimated the recoverable amount of
goodwiill.

Goodwill was allocated to a cash-generating urfle{gerer Prospan S.A.). Recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit was determined based on alaaém of its value in use, defined with respect t
the operations of Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. The taticms take into account the cash flow projections
adopted in the five-year financial budgets approvedhe Management Board. Cash flows extending
beyond the period of five years are extrapolated 2t5% growth rate. The key assumptions used to
calculate the unit’s value in use were as follows:

- terminal growth rate beyond the five-year periodered by the budget — 2.5%;
- discount rate — 8.8%.

The Management Board made budget assumptionsddmpairment test based on past performance
and on the Management Board’'s market developmeartdsts. The discount rate was applied to
reflect the risks specific to a given operatingmsegt. A rate of return on 10-year treasury bonds wa
assumed as the risk-free rate. The projected dagls vere derived from the budgets for the years
until 2019 approved by the Management Board. Cémshsf for further fourteen-year periods are
determined by extrapolating the results for 2018 fixed growth rate of 2.5%. The test did not edve
any impairment of goodwill as at December 31st 2014

Management did not identify any key assumptionangles of which could cause the carrying amount
become equal to the recoverable amount..

Other income

Jan 1- Jan 1—-

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 925 0
Reversal of impairment loss on receivables 2,363 1,589
Compensations and penalties received 308 212
Release of unused accruals and deferred income 1,099 1,149
Government grants 1,512 1,154
Other income 7,463 4,698
Total 13,004 8,802

Other income (PLN 7,463 thousand) comprises reveinom sales of C® emission rights of
PLN 3,211 thousand, and foreign exchange gaingd Nf2507 thousand.

Other income of PLN 4,698 thousand relate mainlggerating foreign exchange differences of PLN
2,395 thousand.
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5. Other expenses

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on trade receivables
Receivables written-off

Damages paid

Recognition of accruals and deferred income
Other expenses

Total

6. Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages payable

Employee benefits

Increase in retirement bonus obligations

Increase in obligations related to employee claims
Increase in unused holiday entitlement obligations
Change in bonus obligations

32

Jan 1- Jan 1-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
1,051 175
920 773
315 36
184 204
2,101 1,226
1,087 1,314
5,658 3,728
Jan 1—- Jan 1—-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
87,878 79,496
22,904 21,118
3,220 963
29 a7
378 393
(681) 2,480
113,728 104,497
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Finance income and costs

Disclosed in profit or loss of the period:

Jan 1- Jan 1-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Interest income 718 1,981

Net foreign exchange gains (financial portion) 0
Gains on forward contracts 685 1,498
Finance income 1,414 3,479
Interest expense (15,360) (28,476)

Losses on forward contracts (493) 0
Net foreign exchange loss (financial portion) 0 (1,492)
Investment revaluation (251) (305)
Other finance costs (229) (1,265)
Finance costs (16,333) (31,538)
Net finance costs (14,919) (28,059)

Recognised in other comprehensive income
Jan 1- Jan 1-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Exchange differences on net investments in subgdia 0 3,829
0 3,829
8. Operating expense, by nature of expense
Jan 1- Jan 1-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Raw materials and consumables 896,804 891,527
Depreciation and amortisation *) 53,547 44,204
Services 166,323 163,281
Taxes and charges 15,939 16,265
Employee benefits expense 113,728 104,497
Merchandise and materials sold 132,764 123,439
Other costs 18,840 18,186
Total costs 1,397,945 1,361,399
Change in inventories of finished goods and aceraatl
deferrals (8,107) (1,501)
Work performed by entity and capitalised to assets (2,606) (1,424)
Total operating expenses 1,387,232 1,358,474
Including

Distribution costs 111,659 94,260
Administrative expenses 55,401 64,157
Cost of sales 1,220,172 1,200,057

*) Depreciation and amortisation in 2013 was reduced by PLN 3,909 thousand, i.e. the amount of the reversed

provision for accumulated depreciation of tangible asset.
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Income tax expense

Note
Income tax expense
Current portion of income tax

Deferred income tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary
differences
Tax loss
14
Tax expense recognised
in the consolidated income statement

Jan 1- Jan 1l -

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
23,522 1,921
23,522 1,921
(2,907) (758)
4,143 9,476

1,236 8,718
24,758 10,639

Reconciliation of income tax on profit before taxlse statutory tax rate to income tax calculated a

the effective tax rate:

Jan 1- Jan1l-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Profit before tax 128,014 80,680
Tax at domestic rate 19.00% 24,322  19.00% 15,329
Effect of foreign tax rates 0.00% 1 0.02% 14
Recognition of deferred tax assets/deferred tax
liability not recognized in previous years 0.25% 323 (6.14%) (4,956)
Coverage of accumulated loss generated outside
the zone 0.00% 0 (0.05%) 43
Non-tax-deductible expenses — permanent
differences 0.34% 430 0.44% 352
Non-taxable income — permanent differences
(0.25%) (318) 0.18% (143)
Effect on income tax 0.34% 436 (5.83) (4,690)
Income tax at effective tax rate
19.34% 24,758 13.17% 10,639
Income tax disclosed in the consolidated
income statement 24,758 10,639
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10. Property, plant and equipment

Gross value

As at Jan 1 2013

Increases

Decreases

Transfers

Reclassification of tangible assets

Effect of exchange differences on translating slibsies

As at Dec 31 2013

As at Jan 1 2014

Increases

Decreases

Transfers

Reclassification of tangible assets

Effect of exchange differences on translating slibses

As at Dec 31 2014

Land

Plant and

Tangible assets

Buildings equipment Other under construction Total

350,797 838,245 27,752 12,099 1,228,893
0 17,857 94 66,327 84,278

425 5,842 1,533 0 7,800
2,730 41,832 4,110 (48,910) (238)

0 1,894 0 (1,894) 0

1 0 (8) 0 (7)
353,103 893,986 30,415 27,622 1,305,126
353,103 893,986 30,415 27,622 1,305,126
0 0 0 113,660 113,660

0 14,511 1,564 0 16,075
11,428 93,066 8,699 (115,379) (2,186)
0 (2,509) 0 0 (2,509)

0 0 (29) 0 (29)
364,531 970,032 37,521 25,903 1,397,987
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Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
As at Jan 1 2013

Depreciation

Decreases

Reversed provisions for accumulated depreciation of
tangible assets

Effect of exchange differences on translating slibges

As at Dec 31 2013

As at Jan 1 2014

Depreciation

Decreases

Effect of exchange differences on translating slibges

As at Dec 31 2014

Net value
As at Dec 31 2013

As at Dec 31 2014

Land, buildings Pla_nt and Other Tangible assets Total
equipment under construction

131,153 491,278 22,802 0 645,233
9,697 35,554 2,011 0 47,262
248 5,546 1,502 0 7,296
0 (3,909) 0 0 (3,909)
0 0 (1) 0 (1)
140,602 517,377 23,310 0 681,289
140,602 517,377 23,310 0 681,289
9,891 39,495 3,033 0 52,419
0 13,309 1,425 0 14,734
0 0 (6) 0 (6)
150,493 543,563 24,912 0 718,968
212,501 376,609 7,105 27,622 623,837
214,038 426,469 12,609 25,903 679,019
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As at 31 December 2014 the net value of fixed assédtich are used as security for bank loans and
other borrowings amounted to PLN 353.588 thous@&rdgs value of PLN 728.724 thousand).

Property, plant and equipment under finance lease

As at December 31st 2014 and December 31st 20a&bup held no property, plant and equipment
under finance lease agreements.

Tangible assets under construction
Investment projects

The Group continues a long-term investment progrardesigned to align its production capacities to
market needs and to enhance its cost effectivaresproductivity.

In 2014, the capital expenditure in 2014 was PN,860 thousand.
Impairment of non-financial non-current assets

The Management Board tested non-current non-fishrcsets for impairment as at December 31st
2014. The analysis revealed no impairment indisatdrthe Parent and at the subsidiaries Pfleiderer
Prospan S.A., Silekol Sp. z 0.0., and Jura Spoz o.

However, impairment indicators were identified #lielerer MDF Sp. z 0.0., and the Management
Board carried out an impairment test of non-curessiets as at December 31st 2014.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and egeig was determined based on the value in use.
The calculations take into account the cash flonjgmtions approved by the Management Board.
Cash flows extending beyond the period of five geme extrapolated at a 2.5% growth rate. The rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth ocathé manufacturing sector in Poland.

The key assumptions used in the impairment tesioafcurrent assets as at December 31st 2014 to
calculate the value in use were as follows:

- Terminal growth rate beyond the five-year periodered by the budget — 2.5%;
- discount rate — 8.8%.

The Management Board made budget assumptionsdampairment test based on past performance
and on the Management Board’'s market developmeetcdsts. The discount rate was applied to
reflect the risks specific to a given operatingrsegt. A 2.6% rate of return on 10-year treasurydson
was assumed as the risk-free rate. The projectsil ftaws were derived from the budgets for the
years until 2019, approved by the Management Bdaagh flows for further sixteen-year period are
determined by extrapolating the results for 2018 fated growth rate of 2.5%.

The estimated recoverable amount exceeds the mgmynount of MPLN 32 (2013: MPLN 80).

The test did not reveal any impairment of non-auresssets as at December 31st 2014.

Following the test for impairment of non-financi@n-current asset, a sensitivity analysis of tis¢ te
was performed to sanction the assumptions usettiédest.

The sensitivity analysis revealed impairment pa&tiitt any of the assumptions listed below changes
individually, provided that other assumptions remamnchanged:

- 8% EBITDA decrease
- PLN 30 m working capital increase in the subseqyeats
- 1,35 pp discount rate increase
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11. Intangible assets

Licences,
computer
software and

Gross value other
As at Jan 1 2013 24,558
Decreases 652
Transfers 238
As at Dec 31 2013 24,144
As at Jan 1 2014 24,144
Transfers 2,186
As at Dec 31 2014 26,330
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
As at Jan 1 2013 22,340
Amortisation 849
Decreases (652)
As at Dec 31 2013 22,537
As at Jan 1 2014 22,537
Amortisation 1,128
As at Dec 31 2014 23,665
Net value
As at Dec 31 2013 1,607
As at Dec 31 2014 2,665

As at the end of the reporting period intangibleesés were not used as security for bank loans and
other borrowings.

12. Other financial assets

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Other financial assets
Financial assets available for sale 75 75
shares in companies not listed on a regulated iesumarket 75 75
Other financial assets 0 18,663
Non-current receivables 0 18,663
75 18,738

Other non-current financial assets of PLN 18,668uffand disclosed in the comparative period
comprise a part of receivables which, under execagreements, was held in escrow account and
represented deferred income from the sale of shar@assian subsidiaries. As at December 31st
2014, the receivables are recognised as currerdiaoldsed under trade and other receivables.

38



13.

PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Supplementary notes to the full-year consolidatediriancial statements for the financial
year ended December 31st 2014

(all amountsin PLN thousand)

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Loans granted
Long-term portion of loans 5,000 0
Current portion of loans 2,347 216
Total: 7,347 216

As at December 31 2014 the Group had receivables from loans grafuedi Spare Sp. z 0.0 in the
amount of PLN 7,347 thousand. The amount compilieas of PLN 7,000 thousand and interest
incurred for 2014 of PLN 347 thousand. In the stetiet of financial position the Group presents the
amount of loans falling within 12 months from theporting date in the amount of PLN 2,347
thousand as other current financial assets, whdeémaining amount due in a period longer than 12
months in the amount of PLN 5,000 thousand is neizegl as other non-current financial assets.

Interest on loans is accrued on a quarterly bagisctassified as financial income. Loan grante@ to
Spare Sp. z 0.0. is denominated in PLN and thedsteate is based on 1M WIBOR plus margin.

Investment property

As at December 31st 2014, the Group disclosed imad property of PLN 3,860 thousand
(December 312013: PLN 3,995 thousand).

The investment property includes land held in perdeusufruct, located at ul. Bolestawiecka in
Wieruszéw, with a total area of 2,7835 ha, whichaasDecember 312014 was not used for
production purposes, sale of goods, rendering vics or for administrative purposes, and was not
intended for sale in the ordinary course of theupt® business.

Until November 2% 2010, the land had been classified as farmland asrnthe S-8 express way has
been built in the direct vicinity of the propertiie Group's Management Board treats the property as
potential source of future rental income and expextconsiderable capital appreciation of the
property. For this reason, in Q4 2010 a proceduas initiated to change the property’s status from
agricultural zone land to construction zone land.N@vember 2%' 2010, the Group received a zoning

permit from the Mayor of Wieruszéw to construct tre land a commercial property, with a

maximum building footprint area of 2,500 squarenet

As at December 312014, a qualified property appraiser engaged lyGhoup estimated the fair
value of the land, which is carried as investmeaoperty, at PLN 3,860 thousand (fair value — level
2). The Group charged the cost of change in thievédue of the investment property, in the amount o
PLN 135 thousand, to profit or loss for the repatperiod.

As at the end of the reporting period, the invesinpeoperty was not used as security for bank loans
or other borrowings.
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14. Deferred income tax asset and liability

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Loans advanced

Other non-current financial assets
Current assets

Inventories

Other current financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash

Derivatives

Non-current liabilities

Provisions

Employee benefit obligations
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Employee benefit obligations
Total tax loss brought forward
Deferred income tax asset/liability

Deferred income tax asset and liability offset

Deferred income tax asset/liability
in the statement of financial position

Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013 3DeaN13 Dec 31 2013

18,158 19,115 (957) 15,470 17,762 (2,292)

513 (513) 0 539 (539)

0 7 @) 0 0 0

4 0 4 4 3,546 (3,542)

1,682 0 1,682 1,323 0 1,323

0 158 (158) 0 73 (73)

1,315 4,168 (2,853) 1,522 1,944 (422)

84 0 84 2 0 2

0 0 0 0 19 (19)

155 0 155 149 0 149

1,890 0 1,890 1,353 0 1,353

2,185 191 1,994 2,553 82 2,471

0 0 0 15 0 15

2,395 0 2,395 2,383 0 2,383

0 0 0 4,143 0 4,143

27,868 24,152 3,716 28,917 23,965 4,952
ATB) (10,478) (14,265) (14,265)
17,390 13,674 14,652 9,700
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Changes related to temporary differences duringeperting period:

As at Recognised Recognised As at As at Recognised Recognised As at
Jan 1 in profit or loss in equity Dec 31 Jan 1 in profit or loss in equity Dec 31
2013 2013 2014 2014
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment (8,851) 6,559 0 (2,292) (2,292) 1,335 0 (957)
Investment property (597) 58 0 (539) (539) 26 0 (513)
Loans advanced (1) 1 0 0 0 ) 0 @)
Other non-current financial assets 4 (3,546) 0 (3,542) (3,542) 3,546 0 4
Current assets
Inventories 1,690 (495) 128 1,323 1,323 359 0 1,682
Other current financial assets (93) 20 0 (73) (73) (85) 0 (158)
Trade and other receivables 3,507 (3,929) 0 (422) (422) (2,431) 0 (2,853)
Cash and cash equivalents a7 19 0 2 2 82 0 84
Investments in related entities (14,034) 14,034 0 0 0 0 0 0
Derivatives 0 (19) 0 (19) (19) 19 0 0
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities under bank borrowings and
other debt instruments 1,025 (1,025) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Provisions 140 9 0 149 149 6 0 155
Employee benefit obligations 1,205 148 0 1,353 1,353 537 0 1,890
Current liabilities
Liabilities under bank borrowings and
other debt instruments (181) 181 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trade and other payables 2,554 (83) 0 2,471 2,471 477) 0 1,994
Provisions 179 (164) 0 15 15 (15) 0 0
Employee benefit obligations 1,822 561 0 2,383 2,383 12 0 2,395
Total tax loss brought forward 13,716 (9,573) 0 4,143 4,143 (4,143) 0 0
2,068 2,756 128 4,952 4,952 (1,236) 0 3,716
Income tax attributable to discontinued operations (11,474) 0
Total income tax as disclosed in the statemenbofzehensive
income (8,718) (1,236)
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Government grants receivable and deferred income wer government grants
Government grants receivable includes economistassie received under the following titles:

Pursuant to a project co-financing agreement caleclubetween Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0. (a
Group company) and the Minister of Economy of Oeto®0" 2006, the subsidiary received PLN
23,051 thousand as an investment grant to co-fenéime construction of an MDF plant with a
biomass-fired boiler house.

The grant comprises PLN 22,202 thousand to covatataxpenditure and PLN 849 thousand to
cover two-year labour costs following the creatwdrb5 new jobs. These amounts were received
by the Group in 2007 and recognised as deferreatriac The amount of PLN 22,202 thousand is
released to other income along with depreciatiargds on the property, plant and equipment to
which the grant relates.

The amount of PLN 849 thousand was released ter atftome over the period of two years
starting on January*2007.

On November 10 2005, Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0. received a permitconduct business
activities in the Suwatki Special Economic Zone §SE”), thus becoming eligible to receive
additional public assistance in the form of a coap® income tax exemption, provided that the
company satisfies certain conditions (which arewbsed below).

Under the permit to conduct business activitiesthe Suwatki Special Economic Zone the
company is eligible to receive public assistanc&ofporate income tax exemption is a form of
public assistance. The permit is valid until Sefdiemlst 2016, provided that the company meets
certain conditions.

In its decision of November™72014, the Minister of Economy deemed Pfleiderer AVEp. z
0.0.'s permit to conduct business activities inS&SE invalid in the part pertaining to the term of
the permit, and determined that the permit will isxpon the date on which the SSSE is to
discontinue its operations (currently Decembet 3026). The permit's conditions include the
requirement to incur capital expenditure of attidadR 78m by December 32009, to employ
at least 120 people by Januafy2D10, to maintain the headcount until Decembér28114, and

to satisfy other requirements imposed by the laageming the SSSE. As at the end of the
reporting period, the company met all the requineisie The exemption is effective for
subsequent years until the company recovers 508teofapital expenditure of up to EUR 50m,
50% of half of the amount of expenditure in excasSEUR 50m and up to EUR 100m, and 34%
of half of the amount of expenditure in excess GRELOOmM.

In connection with the foregoing, the Group recsgdi government grant assets and liabilities
(current and non-current) as government grant vabés and deferred income under government
grants. The Group reduces its government granivaaes by the value of the government grants
used in the form of the corporate income tax ex@amptin 2014, the Group used PLN 7,953
thousand of government grants.

Deferred income under government grants is relelbased on the average weighted depreciation
rate applicable to the property, plant and equigntes acquisition of which served as the basis
for determining the amount of government grants.
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The table below presents the structure of the defencome under government grants and the
amounts released to other income in 2013 and 2014.

Corporate income tax

Type of public assistance Investment grant exemption Total

As at Jan 1 2013 16,331 12,050 28,381
Amortisation of government grants (826) (328) bun
Reassessment of government grants 0 3,462 3,462
As at Dec 31 2013 15,505 15,184 30,689
As at Jan 1 2014 15,505 15,184 30,689
Amortisation of government grants (822) (690) wp
Reassessment of government grants 0 62,662 62,662
As at Dec 31 2014 14,683 77,156 91,839
Non-current portion 13,866 73,481 87,347
Current portion 817 3,675 4,492
Total 14,683 77,156 91,839

As at December 31st 2014, the Group reduced thgilmgramount of government grant in the
form of corporate income tax exemption. The valfigg@avernment grant assets and liabilities
increased by PLN 62,662 thousand, which resultechfa change in the estimated corporate
income tax which will not be paid due to the examptfor the period of the company’s
operations in the Suwaltki Special Economic Zonee Hmount was estimated based on the
updated budget projections for the period of 5 geapproved by the Management Board. The
Management Board made certain budget assumptidnshwerve as a basis for the estimation of
the government grants amount based on historisalteeand the expected market development.
The rate does not exceed the long-term averagetlgroate for the manufacturing sector in
Poland. As required by IFRS adopted by EU, thereggd amount of government grant is not
discounted. Further, the carrying amount of govermingrant asset was reduced by PLN 7,953
thousand, that is the amount of unpaid corporatente tax related to the Group’s operations in
the Suwatki Special Economic Zone in 2014.

The table below presents the structure of the gwwent grant receivables.

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Corporate income tax exemption 69,336 14,627
Total 69,336 14,627
Non-current portion 69,336 14,627
69,336 14,627
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Inventories

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Materials and merchandise 106,437 101,600
Semi-finished products and work in progress 142 92
Finished goods 74,104 67,151
Advances for deliveries 333 8,849
Total 181,016 177,692

Inventories are disclosed in the statement of fifdmosition at net realisable value, i.e. net of
write-downs of PLN 8,938 thousand (December 31482@LN 6,961 thousand).

As at the end of the reporting period, inventogswot used as a security for bank loans and
other borrowings.

Trade and other receivables

Dec 31 2014  Dec 31 2013

Trade receivables 41,719 40,558
Trade receivables from related parties 36,724 38,826
Current prepayments and accrued income 6,418 7,025
Current VAT receivables 16,422 15,114
Other receivables 21,625 10,787
Total 122,908 112,310

Other receivables, in amount of PLN 21,625 thousamcdude in particular receivables which
are, under executed agreements, blocked in the dadunts and relate to receivables from sale
of shares in the Russian subsidiaries. The valubade receivables as at 31 December 2014 is
PLN 19,180 thousand. As at 31 December 2013 Rduelw®locked on this account amounted to
PLN 26,956 thousand. The amount of PLN 18,662¢hod was presented as a long-term asset
and the remaining part in the amount of PLN 8,283usand as a short-term receivables in the
statement of financial position.

As at December 31st 2014, trade receivables welgcesl by impairment losses of PLN 9,259
thousand (December 31st 2013: PLN 10,647 thousand).

Trade and other receivables include the followingricial receivables:

Note Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Trade receivablt 41,719 40,558
Trade receivables from related pat 36,724 38,826
Other receivable 21,625 10,787
Total 25 100,068 90,171

Factoring of receivables

As at December 31st 2014, the Parent and its daliest Pfleiderer Prospan S.A., Pfleiderer
MDF sp. z o.0., Silekol Sp. z 0.0. were partiedaaftoring agreements. Typically, the Group
enters into factoring agreements of up to one year.

The existing factoring agreements are capped noourse facilities. The factoring agreements
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with BZ WBK Faktor Sp. z 0.0. were concluded foriadefinite period, while the term of the
agreements with PEKAO Factoring Sp. z o.0. is defiThe agreements are automatically rolled
by another 12 months if neither party notifies tiber party of its intention not to extend an

agreement, provided that such notice will be sertater than two months before the expiry of a
given agreement.

As at December 31st 2014, the terms of and crediiisl under the agreements were as follows:

Factor: Limit;
EEKAO Factoring Sp.Z 5 100,000 thousand

Factoree: Expiry date:

Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. March 31st 2015

PEKAO Factoring Sp. z
0.0.
BZ WBK Fakép. z 0.0.
BZ WBK Faktor.$po.0.

PLN 50,000 thousand

PLN 80,000 thousand
PLN 15,000 thousand

Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.0.

Pfleiderer Prospan S.A.
Silekol Sp. z o.0.

February 28th 2015

indefinite term
indefinite term

Under the factoring agreements, the factors fingd@¥% or 100% of the receivables' nominal
value, and the cost of financing (WIBOR or EURIB@Rmargin) is paid by the Group. If the
debtors fail to pay their liabilities, the factaasha claim towards the insurer under the insurance
agreement with respect to 90% of the value of #weivables, and the remaining 10% of the
receivables is covered by the Group.

As the Group’s exposure equals to 10% of the retd®s sold to the factor, that portion of the
receivables and the related liabilities continue b® recognised in the Group’s financial
statements. The remainder of the receivables (9088 derecognised from the Group’s
statement of financial position.

The table below presents the amounts of the tracksvables sold under the factoring agreement
and carrying amounts of the receivables and tlae@lliabilities which continue to be recognised
in the statement of financial position:

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Total trade receivables 215,191 220,212
Receivables derecognised from the statement ofdiabposition (136,748) (140,828)
Net trade receivables 78,443 79,384

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Factoring receivables as at the end of the regpperiod 180,638 182,157
Payments made by customers, not submitted to therfa 28,692 25,607
Balance after payments, including: 151,946 156,550
Derecognised receivables (90%) 136,751 140,828
Receivables recognised in the statement of finantia
position up to the commitment amount (10%) 15,195 15,722
Settlement of factoring services Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Factoring receivables as at the end of the regpperiod 180,638 182,157
Other settlements with the factor — cash in transit (297) 298
Payments received (137,530) (144,993)
Factoring liabilities as at the end of the reportiry period 42,811 37,462

Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

On October 19th 2012 the Parent (as the sellen)lagkh Pro Holding Subholding | B.V. and
SWEDSPAN Holding B.V. (as the buyers) entered iateonditional agreement for sale of a
100% interest in Pfleiderer OOO of Russia as weltle assets belonging to Pfleiderer MDF
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000, its subsidiary in Russia, and joint venturézBL1-446 GmbH in Germany. On January
23rd 2013, the parties signed the final agreementthe sale of shares and assets of the

subsidiaries and assets of the joint venture. titiad, following the conclusion of an agreement
dated December 30th 2013, the Group sold its sha@essociate, Pfleiderer MDF OOO.

Net assets at Jan 23 2013

Property, plant and equipment (571,534)
Inventories (47,881)
Trade receivables (50,818)
Cash and cash equivalents (5,376)

(675,609)
Deferred tax liabilities 1,654
Borrowings and other debt instruments 57,167
Trade and other payables 72,172
Net assets attributable to discontinued operations (544,616)

Other items recognised in profit/(loss) on the trasaction:

Transaction costs (30,087)
Exchange differences on translating foreign openati (11,779)
Exchange differences on net investments in subgdia (3,829)
Non-controlling interests (5,004)
Other (including foreign exchange differences) 6,163
Income tax expense (38,288)
Adjusted net assets attributable to discontinued ogrations (627,440)

Income from disposal of asset and liabilities tecdunted operations, received in cash (a) 691,857
Income from asset disposal held in blocked accaundtother income not received as at

Dec 31 2013 (b) 34,418
Current income tax on discontinued operations (c) (68,226)
Cash from discontinued operations (d) (5,376)
Net cash flows (a+c+d) 618,255
Income (a+b) 726,275
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Cash flows from discontinued operations

Net cash from operating activities
Net cash from investing activities
Net cash from financing activities
Net cash for the period

Net profit from discontinued operations

Revenue
Expenses

Operating profit

Net finance costs

Profit before tax

Tax

Profit from discontinued operations after tax

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations

Tax on gain on disposal of discontinued operations

Net profit from discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

The net profit from discontinued operations, of PARI517 thousand, is wholly attributable to
owners of the parent. The net profit from contiguioperations, of PLN 70,041 thousand,

Jan 1- Jan 1-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
0 (4,380)

26,279 618,255

0 0

26,279 613,875

Jan 1—- Jan 1—-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
0 21,769

0 (19,364)

0 2,405

0 (2,983)

0 (578)

0 (740)

0 (1,318)

0 137,123

0 (38,288)

0 97,517

0 1.97

0 1.97

includes PLN 55,024 thousand attributable to owoéthe parent.
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Equity

Dec 31 2014  Dec 31 2013
Par value of share capital 16,376 16,376
Number of ordinary shares 49,624,000 49,624,000
Par value per share (PLN) 0.33 0.33
Earnings per share attributable to owners
of the parent 2.08 3.07

All shares issued by the Group are ordinary shddesders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive approved dividends, and one vote per diedeat the Parent General Meeting. All shares
confer the same rights to share in the distribytioany, of the Parent's assets.

Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. is a subsidiary of PfleateBervice GmbH, which holds 65.11% of the

shares in Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. In the periodnfrdanuary 1st to December 31st 2014, the
number of the Company shares held by its sharehdMleiderer Service GmbH, did not change.

The ultimate shareholder of Pfleiderer Grajewo Ssfan investment fund, Atlantic S.A. located

in Luxembourg..

19.1.  Share capital

The share capital is made up of 49,624,000 ordisheres with a par value of PLN 0.33 per
share. As at December 31st 2014, all shares werk ym Shareholders have the right to
dividend. and and are entitled to one vote pereshald at the General Meeting..

In the period from January 1st to December 31st20iere were no changes in the share capital.

In the period from the registration of the shareitz in 1994 to December 1996 the Group
operated in a hyperinflationary environment. IAS (Fhancial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies) requires that each component of egeitgept retained earnings and revaluation
surplus) be restated by applying a general pridexnfrom the period of hyperinflation. Such
retroactive restatement would cause share capithbttutory reserve funds to increase by a total
amount of PLN 28,863 thousand and retained earmtogsecrease by the same amount.

19.2.  Share premium

Share premium is created from the excess of prac&edh issuance of shares above their par
value. In 2014, there were no changes in shareipnem

19.3.  Statutory reserve funds

Statutory reserve funds are created with distriimgifrom net profit (i.e. at least 8% of net profit
until statutory reserve funds reach one-third @& $hare capital) and other arising from profits
distribution.

In 2014, the Group transferred PLN 86,003 thoudemd its 2013 net profit to statutory reserve
funds.

19.4. Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve includes the effects of theviaiue measurement of land held in perpetual
usufruct by a subsidiary Pfleiderer Prospan S.A.

Until November 22 2010, the land was classified as farmland propemy its fair value was
estimated by an independent appraiser at PLN IH&gand. The land was initially recognized
in the statement of financial position in the amoohPLN 540 thousand. The surplus between
the book value and the fair value of land in theoant of PLN 619 thousand Group recognized
on a revaluation reserve, which as at Decembe2@®4 amounted to PLN 619 thousand.
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19.5. Exchange differences on translating foreign operabins

Exchange differences on translating foreign openati comprise all foreign exchange

gains/(losses) arising on translation of the finanstatements of a foreign subsidiary Grajewo

000, of PLN (458) thousand.

19.6. Exchange differences on net investments in subsidias

Until January 23rd 2013, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.Ad maceivables under loans advanced to its
Russian subsidiaries Pfleiderer OOO and PfleidetBF OOO. The loans were treated as net
investments in these subsidiaries; therefore, aor@ance with 1AS 21, exchange gains/(losses)
on translating these receivables were presentethas comprehensive income (a separate item
of equity) under exchange differences on net imaests in subsidiaries. In 2013, all exchange
gains/(losses) on net investments relate to disuged operations. As at December 31st 2013 and
December 31st 2014 receivables value is PLN 0.

19.7. Dividends

The Parent did not pay dividend in 2014.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share were calculated based on tlii¢ @requity holders of the Parent attributable
to ordinary shares and the weighted average nuwiberdinary shares outstanding during the

twelve months.

Net profit of the owners of the Parent attributafoleordinary shares for the financial year ended

December 31st 2014 amounted to PLN 103,256 thousahdreas net profit attributable to

ordinary shares for the financial year ended Deegrtist 2013 was PLN 152,541 thousand (of

which PLN 55,024 thousand related to net profitrfroontinuing operations, and PLN 97,517

thousand to net profit from discontinued operatjons

The weighted average number of ordinary sharedamdig in the discussed periods used to
calculate basic and diluted loss per share wasllasve:

Number of ordinary shares as at January 1st

Number of ordinary shares as at December 31st
Weighted average number of shares as at December 31

Earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
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Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
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21. Borrowings and other debt instruments
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Non-current liabilities
Non-current portion of interest-bearing bank borirmgys 63,696 86,801
Total 63,696 86,801

Current liabilities
Overdraft facilities repayable in less than

12 months from the end of the reporting period 22,955 26,652
Current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings 21,700 41,078
Total 44,655 67,730
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Bank borrowings

The Group has credit facilities available in thericof overdraft facility and short- and long-termrfion of special-purpose bank borrowings. As atéaber
31 2014, liabilities under bank borrowings were P108,351 thousand.

All credit lines used by the Group bear variableiiast equal to WIBOR plus margin.

Terms and repayment schedules of the bank borreviagt December 31st 2014 and December 31st 2013:

As at Dec 31 2014 As at Dec 31 2013
Non- Non-
Maturity date Credit limit Current current Current current
Lender Currency Interest rate Security portion portion portion portion
Millennium S.A. PLN 1M WIBOR + margin  Jun 252018 mortgage 75,000 2,373 0 5,042 0
Millennium S.A. PLN 1M WIBOR + margin  Jun 25 2016 mortgage 25,000 2,582 0 6,110 0
Alior Bank S.A. PLN 1M WIBOR + margin  Jun 252018 mortgage 75,000 826 0 0 0
Alior Bank S.A. PLN 1M WIBOR + margin  Jun 252016 mortgage 25,000 868 0 4,491 0
Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. PLN 1M WIBOR + margin  Jpb 2018 mortgage 45,000 0 0 0 0
Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. PLN 1M WIBOR + margin  Jpb 2016 mortgage 15,000 2,396 0 5,905 0
Bank OchronySrodowiska S.A.  PLN 1M WIBOR + margin  Jun 252018 mortgage 40,000 2,725 0 5,104 0
mortgage, registered pledge,
PKO Bank Polski S.A. PLN 1M WIBOR + margin  Aug 3015 assignments 54,000 11,185 0 37,078 0
mortgage, registered pledge,
PKO Bank Polski S.A. PLN 3M WIBOR + margin  Oct 2618 assignments - 21,700 63,696 4,000 86,801
354,000 44,655 63,696 67,730 86,801
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On June 26th and 27th 2013, Pfleiderer Grajewo @h%. Parent) and the subsidiaries Pfleiderer
Prospan S.A. and Silekol Sp. z 0.0. entered intceaticredit facility agreements. The total credit
limit available under the facilities provided byufobanks amounts to PLN 300,000 thousand and
secures the financial liquidity of the Parent asdsubsidiaries.

21.1.  Credit facility agreement with Bank Millennium S.A.

On June 26th 2013, the Parent entered into twatdeedlity agreements with Bank Millennium

S.A., for an aggregate amount of PLN 100,000 thadisimcluding a PLN 75,000 thousand multi-
purpose credit facility agreement and an overdiafility agreement of up to PLN 25,000
thousand .

At the same time, Pfleiderer Prospan S.A., a sidoyidbf the Parent, entered into an overdraft
facility agreement with Bank Millennium S.A., foptio PLN 10,000 thousand.

Moreover, Silekol Sp. z 0.0., a subsidiary of therdnt, entered into an overdraft facility
agreement with Bank Millennium S.A., for up to PIR,000 thousand.

Total liabilities of all the three borrowers undie four credit facility agreements with Bank
Millennium S.A. may not exceed PLN 100,000 thousamde multi-purpose credit facility
agreement provides for the repayment of the efdma after five years from execution of the
agreement, while the overdrafts are to be repattlinvithree years. The facilities are used to
finance the borrowers' day-to-day operations.

21.2.  Credit facility agreement with Alior Bank S.A.

On June 26th 2013, the Parent entered into a PLOD®@3housand credit facility agreement with
Alior Bank S.A. The facility, used to finance tharBnt's day-to-day operations, is to be repaid in
full within five years from the agreement executdate.

At the same time, the Parent and the subsidiaflegd@rer Prospan S.A. and Silekol Sp. z o.0.
entered into an overdraft facility agreement wilfloABank S.A., for up to PLN 25,000 thousand,
under which the bank granted to the Parent an cagrtimit of PLN 25,000 thousand and

separate sub-limits of PLN 10,000 thousand to édieir Prospan S.A. and Silekol Sp. z o.0.
each.

The facility, used to finance the borrowers' day&y operations of the borrowers, is repayable
within three years from the agreement executioe.dbstal liabilities of all the three borrowers
under the two credit facility agreements with AliBank S.A. may not exceed PLN 100,000
thousand.

21.3.  Credit facility agreement with Bank Zachodni WBK SA.

On June 26th 2013, the Parent entered into a PLBDA%housand multi-purpose credit facility
agreement with Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. The creddilfy, taken out to secure liquidity and

finance capital expenditure, is to be repaid ihvuthin five years from the agreement execution
date.

At the same time, the Parent and the subsidiaflegd@rer Prospan S.A. and Silekol Sp. z o.0.
entered into an overdraft facility agreement witanB Zachodni WBK S.A., for up to PLN
15,000 thousand (a joint overdraft limit for altél borrowers).

The facility, designed to secure liquidity and fiea capital expenditure, is to be repaid in full
within three years from the agreement executior.d@btal liabilities of the three borrowers
under the two agreements with Bank Zachodni WBK. $Ay not exceed PLN 60,000 thousand.

21.4.  Credit facility agreement with Bank Ochrony Srodowiska S.A.

On June 27th 2013, the Parent entered into a PLADAGhousand multi-purpose credit facility
agreement with Bank Ochrorrodowiska S.A. to finance the Parent's day-to-dpgrations.
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The facility is to be repaid within five years frahre date of execution of the agreement.
Intentional credit agreements:
Investment facility agreement with PKO BP S.A.

On January 15th 2007, Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.csubsidiary, entered into a PLN 235,022
thousand investment facility agreement with PKOSR. It is a special-purpose facility obtained
to finance the construction of the MDF board prdutucplant in Grajewo. As at December 31st
2014, the Group's debt outstanding under thisifacilas PLN 85,396 thousand (December 31st
2013: PLN 90,801 thousand).

Multi-purpose facility agreement with PKO BP S.A.

On August 29th 2007, Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.0.,ubsgliary, entered into a PLN 65,000
thousand multi-purpose facility agreement with PEP S.A. The agreement provides for a PLN
30,000 thousand overdraft facility, a PLN 30,000ugand revolving working capital facility, and
a PLN 5,000 thousand guarantee and letter-of-cliedit Under an amendment signed on March
23rd 2009, the amount of the multi-purpose facilitgs reduced to PLN 57,000 thousand.
Following execution of the amendment, the faciigreement provides for an overdraft facility of
PLN 25,900 thousand, a revolving working capitatilfy of PLN 30,000 thousand, and a
guarantee and letter-of-credit limit of PLN 1,1@0@usand. Under the amendment, the term of the
facility was extended until August 31st 2015. Theoant of the multi-purpose facility loan was
reduced over the three following years startingnfrd011 and As at December 31st 2014, the
amount outstanding under the facility was PLN 1%, &®usand.

Liabilities under borrowings from related parties

As at December 31st 2014 and December 31st 20&3Gtbup did not carry any borrowings
from related parties.

Employee benefit obligations
Dec 31 2014  Dec 31 2013

Salaries and wages 3,981 3,496
Personal income tax 1,516 1,048
Social security 4,644 4,192
Social Benefits Fund 1,678 1,717
Retirement bonus obligations 11,549 8,329
Unused holiday entitlement obligations 3,949 3,571
Employee bonus obligations 7,018 7,699
Total 34,335 30,052
Non-current portion 10,986 8,020
Current portion 23,349 22,032

34,335 30,052

Retirement bonus and disability severance paymentatigations

Every employee reaching the retirement age (67syéased on the transitional regulations — Dz.
U. of June 6th 2012, item 637), who has the redqueagth of service, for which they can provide
evidence, is entitled to receive retirement boritrmployees with permanent work disability,
entitling to disability benefits under the sociakarity scheme, are entitled to receive disability
severance payment. The amount of retirement bondsability severance payment is computed
based on the employee’s one-month pay. The amdumbraus or severance payment increases
proportionately following ten years of service lag¢ tCompany at the rate of 10% of the base pay
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for each year of service above ten years, andviolip 20 years of service at the Company — at
the rate of 20% of the base pay for each year micgeabove 20 years. Pursuant to z Arf:§92

of the Labour Code, retirement and disability samee payments must not be lower than the
employee’s one-month pay.

Obligations under retirement and disability seveeapayments were determined by a qualified
actuary using the actuarial projected unit credithad, assuming annual remuneration growth
rate at 4% and a discount rate of 2.7%.

Assumptions used for calculation of the retiremenbonus:

- Data on staff turnover was derived from the stiagsbof Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., Pfleiderer
Prospan S.A., Silekol Sp. z o.0., Pfleiderer MDFE 5p.o., and Jura Polska Sp. z 0.0., as well
as from the statistics available to HALLEY.PL AKTBRMNJSZE Sp. z 0.0., an actuarial firm.
To reflect the nature of staff movements, the |lefedtaff turnover was assumed to fall as the
employees’ age increases.

- The mortality rate was based on the likelihood edthh depending on age, based on the 2013
Life Expectancy Tables for Poland compiled by thenial Statistics Office (GUS), which are
life expectancy tables generally accepted in Poldngas assumed that the population of The
Group's employees has the mortality rate providethe tables, adjusted for the mortality
multiplier. It was further assumed that the motyalate is constant throughout the year.

- The likelihood of becoming a disabled person wasetaon the historical data of the Social
Insurance Institution and estimates prepared hyaaet firm HALLEY.PL AKTUARIUSZE
Sp. z 0.0. On the basis of generally available dathin-house analysis, the rate was set at a
fixed level, regardless of age, length of servicesex. The model does not show significant
sensitivity to slight changes of this parameter.

- The retirement age for men is 67 (based on theitfanal regulations of June 6th 2012).

- In accordance with the rules governing the awardlenigth-of-service awards, persons
terminating their employment with the Company Idkeir right to any future length-of-
service award, retirement bonus or disability sewee payment.

- The date for calculating all entittements was tlegibning of each calendar year, with the
assumption that the entitlements are evenly digtibthroughout the year.

- The remuneration growth rate was assumed at 4% rpam.

- The discount rate on future benefits was assumad’éé.

Employee bonus obligations

The Group recognises a provision for quarterly amdual bonuses paid to the Group employees.
They are recognised with respect to specific cotagléasks for which the employees will receive
cash remuneration paid in cash in the future.

54



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP

Supplementary notes to the full-year consolidatedriancial statements for the

financial year ended December 31st 2014

(all amounts in PLN thousand)

23. Provisions

Provisions for
employee claims

As at Jan 1 2014 786
Increase 29
Reversal 0
As at Dec 31 2014 815
Non-current portion 815
Current portion 0
815

Provisions for employee claims

Provisions for
employee claims

As at Jan 1 2013 739
Increase 47
Reversal 0
As at Dec 31 2013 786
Non-current portion 786
Current portion 0
786

Provisions for employee claims were recognisedieecthe cost of cancelling the loans granted
to employees to finance share purchases, to thentex@xceeding the carrying amount of
receivables under loans advanced to employeebdbptrpose.

24. Trade and other payables

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Trade payables 125,260 130,833
Trade payables to related parties 4,886 5,784
Liabilities under factoring agreements 42,811 37,462
VAT liabilities 809 154
Liabilities under investment deliveries 18,374 18,091
Liabilities from derivatives (forward transactions) 394 0
Prepaid deliveries 2,096 2,437
Liabilities related to shares acquired in a sulasidi 0 29,360
Other liabilities 11,659 16,139
Total 206,289 240,260

For details on liabilities under factoring agreetsesee Note 17. Other liabilities are related to

accrued expenses and deferred income.

Trade and other payables include the followingrizial liabilities:

Dec 31 2014  Dec 31 2013

Trade payables 125,260 130,833
Trade payables to related parties 4,886 5,784
Liabilities under factoring agreements 42,811 37,462
Liabilities for investment projects 18,374 18,091
Liabilities from derivatives 394 0
Liabilities related to shares acquired in a sulasidi 0 29,360
Other liabilities 10,274 13,641
Total 201,999 235,171
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Financial instruments
Objectives and methods of financial risk managemerdpplied by the Group

The Group manages all types of financial risk dbscr below which may have a significant
effect on its future operations; in particular, Beoup focuses on market risk, including interest
rate risk, currency risk, credit risk, and liquyditsk.

The objective of the Group's credit risk managenemd reduce losses which could be incurred
due to customers’ insolvency. This risk is mitighteith use of receivables insurance and
factoring services.

The objective of currency risk management is toimise losses arising from unfavourable
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group mmsritocurrency position in order to project its
cash flows. To manage the currency risk, the Grpumarily relies on natural hedging and,
where necessary, forward contracts.

The objective of financial liquidity managementasprotect the Group from insolvency. This is
achieved through regular projection of debt levelsa five-year horizon, and arrangement of
appropriate financing.

The Group is exposed to credit risk, interest rele and currency risk in the ordinary course of
its business. Financial derivatives are used tgéedrrency risk..

25.1. Credit risk

Transactions which expose the Group to credit inskude trade receivables, receivables from
loans and cash and cash equivalents. In accordaiticehe Management Board’s policy, the
Group's credit risk exposure is monitored on aroamgbasis.

Credit risk related to cash is limited as the Grdeposits its assets only in financial institutions
with a recognized financial standing.

Credit risk related to receivables from loans i$ diversified, the Group has a claim on a loan
from one entity - 3 Spare Sp. z 0.0., which isgnificant concentration of credit risk as at 31
December 2014.

The Group evaluates credit standing of all custeméro require trade credit above pre-defined
limits. The Group does not require any securiticostomer assets.

The Group insures its trade receivables. As at Dbee 31st 2014, approximately 90% of total
trade receivables from non-related parties were@m/with trade credit insurance. The insurance
policies mitigate credit risk — if a customer fditspay, the insurer covers the loss.

The Group did not incur any significant losses tlueustomer default. Impairment losses are
recognised on uninsured receivables and on amoonssponding to the Group’s deductibles in
receivables insured, based on detailed analyslseddccounts receivable.

The carrying amount of each financial asset, inagdfinancial derivatives, represents the
maximum credit risk exposure.
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The total credit risk exposure was as follows:

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Loans advanced and receivables 107,415 90,387
Cash and cash equivalents 18,512 16,450
Other non-current financial assets 0 18,738
Total 125,927 125,575

As at December 31st 2014 and December 31st 204 aghing structure of trade receivables was

as follows:

Gross value Impairment loss
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2014
Not overdue 61,097 169
Overdue by:
0-180 days 19,551 2,361
180-360 days 112 25
More than 360 days 6,942 6,704
Total 87,702 9,259
Gross value Impairment loss
Dec 31 2013 Dec 31 2013
Not overdue 51,247 584
Overdue by:
0-180 days 29,540 3,023
180-360 days 40 2
More than 360 days 9,204 7,038
Total 90,031 10,647

Changes in impairment losses on trade receivahlése twelve months ended December 31st

2014 and December 31st 2013 are presented below.

Jan 1- Jan 1-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Balance at beginning of the period 10,647 11,453
Change in impairment losses (1,388) (806)
Balance at end of the period 9,259 10,647
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25.2. Interest rate risk

The Group holds cash at banks and carries receiwvabider loans granted, as well as liabilities
under bank borrowings and other debt instrumemterést rate risk is connected with interest
payments on financial instruments bearing inteag¢dloating rates only. As at the end of the

reporting period, the Group did not hedge agaimstnterest rate risk. Its current receivables and
liabilities are not exposed to the interest ragk.ri

Variable-rate financial instruments Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Financial assets 7,347 216

Financial liabilities 108,351 191,993
115,698 192,209

Sensitivity of cash flows from variable-rate finandal instruments

A 1% change in interest rates would lead to a changnet profit by the amounts presented
below. The analysis is based on the assumptiorothat variables, especially currency exchange
rates, remain unchanged; the following analysierssto cash flows:.

Jan 1-Dec 31 2014 Jan 1-Dec 31 2013
increase decrease increase decrease
1% 1% 1% 1%
Variable-rate financial instruments (1,763) 1,763 (5,449) 5,449
Difference in amount of interest and effect on
profit/(loss) before tax (1,632) 1,763 (5,449) 5,449
Difference in amount of interest and effect on
net profit/(loss) (1,428) 1,428 (4,414) 4,414
Effect on equity 0 0 0 0

Sensitivity of fair value of fixed-rate financial instruments

The Group does not carry any significant fixed-frtancial assets or any liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss and does not dsevatives transactions as fair value hedges.
Therefore, changes in interest rates would haveffext on the statement of comprehensive
income through changes in the fair value of finahicistruments.

25.3.  Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk through tré@esactions denominated in foreign
currencies, including both purchases of materiald merchandise, and sale of finished goods.
Therefore, any foreign exchange gains or lossestireg from exchange rate fluctuations mostly
offset each other (natural hedging). The Group afsmrs capital expenditure in foreign
currencies. The Group monitors its foreign currepogitions on an ongoing basis and hedges
open positions with forward transactions. Forwand awap transactions included purchase of
foreign currency at a predetermined rate. In 2@id,Group used forward contracts to hedge its
currency risk related to business transactionsqxpf goods). The forward contracts used to
hedge the Group’s business transactions consibeisale of EUR at a pre-determined rate. This
helps to secure margins on export sales and tgatidtithe risk of adverse changes of the margins
due to appreciation of the Polish zloty.

As at December 31st 2014, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.éd 80 open EUR/PLN FX forward
contracts for the sale of EUR 65,080 thousand satitiement dates falling between January 29th
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2015 and December 29th 2016. Valuation of the &etisns as at December 31st 2014 was
positive at PLN 1,213 thousand (fair value — |1l

In addition, as at December 31st 2014 Silekol Spoz a subsidiary, held three open EUR/PLN

FX forward contracts for the sale of a total of EBR00 thousand with settlement dates falling

before the end of March 2015. As at Decembét 3014 the forward contracts were measured at
PLN 394 thousand (fair value level 2)

Forward and swap contracts are measured at thefezzth month.
As at December 31st 2014, no other Group compasypaety under derivative contracts.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk, calculatettieé exchange rates effective at the end of the
reporting period (PLN ‘000):

As at Dec 31 2014: EUR USD RON
Cash 16,061 27 0
Trade receivables 49,075 0 0
Other receivables - escrow 19,180 0 0
Trade payables (44,657) 0 (18)
Balance-sheet exposure, gross 39,659 27 (18)
Transactions in derivative instruments * (302,111) 0 0
Net exposure under financial instruments (262,425) 27 (18)

* The FX forward contracts are set to hedge futesh flows mainly from sales agreement
denominated in EUR, estimated contract value ansciwonPLN 306 m till the end of 2016.

As at Dec 31 2013: EUR USD RON
Cash and cash equivalents 9,911 137 0
Trade receivables 47,422 0 0
Other receivables - escrow 26,957 0 0
Trade payables (35,920) 0 (16)
Other liabilities (29,601) 0 0
Balance-sheet exposure, gross 18,769 137 (16)
Transactions in derivative instruments (10,575) 0 0
Net exposure under financial instruments 8,194 137 (16)
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Sensitivity to currency exchange rate changes

A 5% change in the value of a foreign currency etation to the Polish zloty would lead to
changes of profit before tax, net profit, and egai specified below. The analysis is based on the
assumption that other variables, in particularriggerates, remain unchanged.

As at Dec 31 2014: +5% -5%
EUR 747 (747)
uUsD 1 1)
RON (1) 1
Effect on profit/(loss) before tax 747 (747)
Effect on net profit/(loss) 747 (747)
Effect on equity (11,234) 11,234
As at Dec 31 2013: +5% -5%
EUR 410 (410)
uUsD 7 )
RON (1) 1
Effect on profit/(loss) before tax 416 (416)
Effect on net profit/(loss) 416 (416)
Effect on equity 0 0

The sensitivity analysis was based on the followéxghange rates of the Polish zloty against
foreign currencies.

Exchange rate as at Exchange rate as at
Currency Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
EUR 4.2623 4.1472
usD 3.5072 3.0120
RON 0.9510 0.9262
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25.4. Liquidity risk

The table below presents an analysis of the Grofipssicial liabilities by maturity as the end ofetheporting date. The amounts presented in the i

contractual, non-discounted cash flows.

As at Dec 31 2013:

Overdraft facilities
Liabilities under borrowings and other debt insteummts

Trade and other payables

As at Dec 31 2014

Overdratft facilities
Liabilities under borrowings and other debt insteums

Trade and other payables

Carrying Contractual Below 6 6-12 1-2 2-5 '\{[Ir?;ﬁ
amount cash flows months months years years 5
years
26,652 26,652 26,652 0 0 0 0
127,879 142,419 2,314 39,695 4,098 96,312 0
235,171 235,171 235,171 0 0 0 0
389,702 404,242 264,137 39,695 4,098 96,312 0
Carrying Contractual Below 6 6-12 1-2 2-5 '\{lr?;i
amount cash flows months months years years
5 years
22,955 23,296 12,026 11,270 0 0 0
85,396 92,741 11,924 12,488 24,234 44,095 0
201,999 201,999 201,999 0 0 0 0
310,380 318,036 225,=949 23,758 24,234 44,095 0
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As at December 31st 2014, the Group’s debt outstgnehder the bank borrowings was PLN 108,351
thousand. As at December 31st 2014, unused cuadiities amounted to PLN 320,867 thousand. The
Group also held cash of PLN 18,512 thousand.

25.5. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and liabilitissclose to their carrying amounts as at Decemftst 3
2014 and December 31st 2013.

25.6.  Capital management

The key ratio used by the Group to monitor equityhie ratio of equity to total assets. At the ehd o
2014, the ratio was 62.15%, up from 58.30% a yeéorb.

The table below presents the value of equity andtjuity to total assets ratio.

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Equity 756,370 652,275
Total assets 1,216,993 1,118,793
Ratio:
Equity 62.15% 58.30%
Total assets

The Group did not pay dividend in 2014.

Pursuant to the Commercial Companies Code, thenPigrebliged to create statutory reserve funds by
transferring at least 8% of profit for a given fircéal year to the statutory reserve funds untilaheunt
of the statutory reserve funds reaches one-thitHeCompany’s share capital.

Operating lease agreements

The Group uses some of its production assets wpmgating lease agreements. The average lease term
is three years and the agreements will expire t622018. Monthly lease payments are charged to the
reporting period's profit or loss using the strailyme method.

The Group also leases passenger cars under ogdesise agreements. The term of all these agreement
is 36 months and the agreements will expire in 2805/.

The costs incurred by the Group under the oper&timge agreements in 2014 were PLN 7,295 thousand
(2013: PLN 7,279 thousand).

The operating lease payments outstanding as a¢ploeting date are presented in the table below:

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
From 1to 5 years 1,499 10,891
Up to one year 7,095 7,433
Total 8,594 18,324
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27. Contractual commitments to purchase property, plantand equipment and intangible
assets

As at December 31st 2014, the Group had contractoi@mitments to acquire property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The commitmeritéderé¢o 13 open investment projects and were
incurred under agreements concluded by the Gropa®f its investment activities.

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Commitments to acquire property, plant and equigmen 17,291 25,726
- fixed assets 17,062 25411
- intangible assets 229 315

28. Contingent liabilities

As at December 31st 2014, the Group did not iderdify significant contingent liabilities except
possible liability resulting from the antitrust peedings described in Note 31.
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29. Material related-party transactions

In the 2014 financial year, the Group executeddiewing commercial transactions with related pegtwhich are not Group entities:

Jan 1-Dec 31 2014

As at Dec 31 2014

Acquisition of

property,

plant and Investment
Entity Revenue Other income Operating cost  equipment Trade receivables Trade payables liabilities
Pfleiderer Service GmbH - - 49 - - - -
Pfleiderer GmbH - - 4,962 - - 1,265 -
Pfleiderer Holzwerkstoffe GmbH & Co. KG 2,919 145 19,821 21 - 2,922 533
Pfleiderer Neumarkt GmbH 25,081 - - - 8,010 - -
Pfleiderer Leutkirch GmbH 5,778 - 91 - 2,386 - -
Pfleiderer Gitersloh GmbH 20,272 - 731 - 8,298 52 -
Jura Speditions GmbH 32 - 3,974 - - 647 -
Pfleiderer Arnsherg GmbH 511 - 14 - 314 - -
Kunz Faserplattenwerk Baruth GmbH 50,265 - - - 17,716 - -
Pfleiderer France S.A.S. - - 9 - - - -
Pfleiderer B.V. - - 16 - - - -
Pfleiderer Industrie Limited - - 4 - - - -
Total 104,858 145 29,671 21 36,724 4,886 533

All related-party transactions were executed oaranis length basis.
No security was created for any outstanding retédg and all such receivables will be settledashc No guarantees were issued to or receivedritated

parties. In the reporting period, no costs relaedoubtful or non-performing receivables undeatedi-party transactions were recognised.
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In the 2013 financial year, the Group executeddhiewing transactions with related parties whick aot Group entities:

Jan 1-Dec 31 2013 As at Dec 31 2013
Acquisition of
property, Investment
Revenue Finance plant and Balance of trade commitments/

Entity Operating cost costs equipment receivables Trade payables liabilities
Pfleiderer Service GmbH 23 1,575 879 - 258 146
Pfleiderer GmbH 2 4,689 - - - 1,037
Pfleiderer Holzwerkstoffe GmbH & Co. KG *) 4,762 17,890 - 501 225 2,980 498
Pfleiderer Neumarkt GmbH 32,699 - - - 8,751 831
Pfleiderer Leutkirch GmbH 926 39 - - 599 14
Pfleiderer Gutersloh GmbH 25,124 1,683 - - 6,659 101
Jura Speditions GmbH - 3,984 - - - 675
Pfleiderer Holzwerkstoffe Gschwend GmbH - - - - - -
Pfleiderer Arnsherg GmbH 982 - - 14 -
Pfleiderer Baruth GmbH 55,106 - - - 18,173 -
Pfleiderer France S.A.S. - 4 - - - -
Pfleiderer B.V. - 23 - - - -
Pfleiderer Industrie Limited - 18 - - - -
Total 119,624 29,905 879 501 34,679 5,784 498
Discontinued operations
Blitz 11-446 GmbH 4,866 - - - 4,147 -
Total 124,490 29,905 879 501 38,826 5,784 498

*) On July 28th 2014, Pfleiderer Holzwerkstoffe Gschwend GmbH merged with and Pfleiderer Hol zwerkstoffe GmbH. Thus, to ensure
comparability of data the balancesof settlements of the two companies were aggregated.
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Remuneration of members of the Management and Supésory Boards

Remuneration of members of the Parent's ManageBwanrt paid and payable for the reporting period:

Jan 1— Jan 1—

Name Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Wojciech Gytkiewicz 1,407 1,338
Dariusz Tomaszewski 805 766
Rafat Karcz 807 794
Radostaw Wierzbicki 0 834
3,019 3,732

In addition, members of the Parent's ManagementrdBoeceived the following remuneration for
holding management positions at Pfleiderer Progpan

Jan 1- Jan 1-

Name Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Wojciech Gytkiewicz 962 898
Dariusz Tomaszewski 554 521
Rafat Karcz 518 487
Radostaw Wierzbicki 0 153
2,034 2,059

In the reporting period Mr Rafat Karcz and Mr DazuTomaszewski held management positions at
Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.; without receiving anynigeration for the services rendered.

As at December 31st 2014, Mr Dariusz Tomaszewskimller of the Management Board of Pfleiderer
Prospan S.A., had an outstanding debt of PLN 26sidwad, under a loan taken out in 1997 from the
Privatisation Fund to finance purchase of Prospanes.

As at December 31st 2014, the other members ohPaildanagement Board had no outstanding loan-
related debt towards the Group.

As at December 31st 2014, members of the ManagearehtSupervisory Boards held the following
number of Pfleiderer Grajewo shares:

- President of the Management Board Wojciegtkidwicz - 5,400 Company shares
- Member of the Management Board Rafat Karcz 73 @ompany shares
- Member of the Management Board Dariusz Tomaszewski - 4,108 Company shares

The managerial contract between the Parent and aflt Karcz, Member of the Management Board,
provides, in case of termination of the contractotee December 31st 2015, a contractual penalty
amounting to a remuneration remaining until Decanttiest 2015. Contract provides for a 12-month
notice period with effect as of the end of caleruf-year.

The managerial contract between Pfleiderer Pro§pAnand Mr Dariusz Tomaszewski, Member of the
Management Board, contains a provision whereby Mmdszewski is emitted to receive a one-off
termination benefit equal to his one-month remuti@naf the contract is terminated by notice.

The managerial contract with Mr Wojciechytidewicz, President of the Management Board, presid
in case of termination of the contract before Ddpen81st 2015, a contractual penalty amounting to a

66



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP
Supplementary notes to the annual consolidated fimecial statements for the financial year
ended December 31st 2014

(all amountsin PLN thousand)

remuneration remaining until December 31st 2015tf@at provides for a 12-month notice period with
effect as of the end of calendar half-year.

Remuneration paid to members of the Parent's SispeyvBoard in the reporting period was as follows:

Jan 1— Jan 1—-
Name Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Michael Wolff 210 210
Jochen Schapka 105 105
Gerd Schubert 53 0
Richard Mayer 105 88
Jan Waniak 105 105
Gerd Hammerschmidt 52 105
Hans — Kurt Von Werder 0 17
630 630

As at December 31st 2014, members of the SupewiBoard of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. had no
outstanding debt under loans from the Group.

Members of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Supervisory Bahddnot hold any shares in the Parent.
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Supplementary information to the consolidated stateent of cash flows

Structure of cash and cash equivalents

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Cash in hand and at banks 18,512 16,450
Overdraft facility (621) 0
Cash disclosed in the consolidated statement of ¢as
flows 17,891 16,450
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables ,97(83 43 149
Decrease in investment liabilities (283) (9,040)
Liabilities under acquisition of non-controllingtarests 30,322 (30,322)
Liabilities from derivatives (394) 0
Other 6 625 (7,453)
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities 2,299 (3,666)

Anti-trust proceedings

On April 2nd 2012, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. (the é¥dj and Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. (a subsidiary)

received a decision of the President of the Offit€ompetition and Consumer Protection, dated March
30th 2012, concerning the instigation of anti-trpsiceedings on suspicion that Kronospan Szczecinek
Sp. z 0.0., Kronospan Mielec Sp. z 0.0., Kronoppl 5 0.0., Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. and Pfleiderer

Prospan S.A. acted in collusion to frustrate coiitipat on the domestic chipboard and fibreboard

markets.

In the course of the proceedings, Pfleiderer Graj@A. and Pfleiderer Prospan S.A., its subsidiary,
provided additional information required by the i©df At present, based on the available information
the Parent’s Management Board is not able to asisestsk of a negative outcome of the proceedorgs
determine the estimated closing date of the prongsd

Other than the proceedings referred to above, tla@ee no court, arbitration or administrative
proceedings pending with respect to any liabilibeslaims of the Group companies, whose value &voul
represent 10% or more of the Parent’s equity.
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Events subsequent to the end of the reporting perib
After 31 December 2014. following changes in thenposition of the Supervisory Board took place:

In accordance with a resolution of the Extraordm@eneral Meeting dated January 30th 2015, Mr
Michael Wolff was recalled from the position of @imaan of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Supervisory Board
and Mr Gerd Schubert was recalled from the posibibllember of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Supervisory
Board.

On January 30th 2015 Mr Paolo G. Antonietti and Mrchael F. Keppel were appointed to the
Pfleiderer Grajewo Supervisory Board.

On February 16th 2015 the Supervisory Board apedimilr Paolo G. Antonietti for a position of
Chairman of Supervisory Board and Mr. Michael Fpge for a position of Vice Chairman of the
Supervisory Board.

On 16 February 2015, the Supervisory Board of &fledr Grajewo S.A.

- elected Mr. Michael Wolff to the Management Boafdi® Company and entrusted him a function of

President of Management Board,

- elected Dr. Gerd Schubert to the Management BoltideoCompany and entrusted him a function of

Chief Operating Officer;

- recalled Mr. Wojciech gtkiewicz from a function of President of ManagemBuiard and entrusted

him a function of Member of Management Board -efhiransformation Officer.

Accounting estimates and judgement

The preparation of consolidated financial statesémtconformity with IFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions tlet dffe application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income argdenses. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewediro ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in whichda$t@mates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about significant areas of uncertainith respect to the estimates as well as aboutalit
judgements made in applying accounting policiggavided in the following notes:

Notes to the annual consolidated financial stateéspeéPhapter 6, Section d (v) , e (iv) — usefubdivof
property, plant and equipment and intangible assetdgtermined based on estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible ass®lsverified at least annually.

Notes 3, 10 — Goodwill, recoverable goodwill, reexable amount of non-financial non-current assets —
if there is an indicator of impairment, the recalde amount is determined as the higher of faineval
less cost to sell or value in use (based on digeducash flows) by applying the appropriate distoun
rate (cost of capital, growth rates),

Note 14 — Corporate income tax — recognition opooate income tax or settlement of tax loss carried
forward based on assumption that in future taxadademe will be generated,

Note 17 — Derecognition of trade receivables caldrne factoring arrangements — based on analysis of
risk and benefit transfer, control retention angrde of involvement,

Note 22 — Measurement of liabilities under defieetployee benefits — employee benefits are evaluated
by an actuary. The valuation is based on assungptiegarding interest rates, remuneration increase,
inflation rate, and employment turnover,
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- Notes 23, 28 and 31 — Provisions and contingebtlili@s - recognition of provisions and contingent
liabilities requires estimating the probable outflof economic benefits and making the best estirogate
expenditure required to settle present obligatich@end of reporting period,

- Note 25 — Valuation of financial instruments — faalue of financial instruments is measured using

valuation models for financial instruments,

- Note 26 — Classification of lease agreements —eleggeements are classified as finance leases or
operating leases on the basis of an analysislsf @sd benefits.

Michael Wolff
President of the Management Board

Rafat Karcz
Member of the Management Board, Chief Financial
Officer

Gerd Schubert

Member of the Management Board, Chief
Operating Officer

Wojciech Gatkiewicz
Member of the Management Board, Chief
Transformation Officer

Ewa Staaska

Person responsible for the accounting
records

Grajewo, March 18th 2015
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Dariusz Tomaszewski
Member of the Management Board, Sales Director
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Financial highlights

PLN ‘000 EUR ‘000
Jan 1- Jan 1- Jan 1- Jan 1-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 312013 Dec 312014 Dec 312013
Revenue 1,522,819 1,462,139 363,502 347,219
Operating profit 142,933 108,738 34,119 25,823
Profit before tax 128,014 80,680 30,557 19,159
Net profit attributable to owners of the parent NG 152,541 24,648 36,224
Net cash from operating activities 183,507 126,746 43,804 30,099
Net cash from investing activities (89,632) 552,144 (21,395) 131,119
Net cash from financing activities (92,434) (679,958) (22,064) (161,472)
Total net cash flow 1,441 (1,068) 344 (254)
Basic earnings per share (in PLN/EUR) 2.08 3.07 0.50 0.73
Diluted earnings per share (in PLN/EUR) 2.08 3.07 0.50 0.73
Average PLN/EUR exchange rate 4.1893 4.2110
PLN ‘000 EUR ‘000
Dec 312014 Dec 312013 Dec 312014 Dec 312013
Total assets 1,216,993 1,118,793 285,525 269,771
Liabilities 460,623 466,518 108,069 112,490
Non-current liabilities 176,518 134,647 41,414 32,467
Current liabilities 284,105 331,871 66,655 80,023
Equity 756,370 652,275 177,456 157,281
Share capital 16,376 16,376 3,842 3,949
Number of shares 49,624,000 49,624,000 49,624,000 49,624,000
Book value per share (in PLN/EUR) 15.24 13.14 3.58 3.17
PLN/EUR exchange rate as at the end of the 4.2623 41472

reporting period
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General information

The Pfleiderer Grajewo Group consists of singlasitim enterprises. The Group’s parent is
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., whose principal place u$ibess in Grajewo, a town in north-eastern Poland.

The Parent, under its former name of Zaktady Phdrdivych S.A. of Grajewo, was originally registered
on July 1st 1994 by the District Court, Commercalurt of Lonza, in Section B of the Commercial
Register under entry No. 270. Subsequently, on Bthy2001, it was registered by the District Codrt o
Biatystok, 12th Commercial Division of the Natior@burt Register, under entry No. KRS 0000011422.

On September 18th 2002, the Company’s ManagemesrtdBeceived the decision of the District Court
of Bialystok to enter the Company's new name in tational Court Register. Accordingly, on
September 18th 2002, the Parent’'s name was chaodg#teiderer Grajewo S.A. The registered office of
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. is situated at ul. WiérovaGrajewo, Poland. The shares of the Parent are
publicly traded. In accordance with the Polish 6ifisation of Business Activities,
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. is registered under No.11B2

Tax Identification Number (NIP): 719-10-00-479
Industry Identification Number (REGON): 450093817
2.1. Pfleiderer Grajewo Group companies and their princpal business activities

The Pfleiderer Grajewo Group, with many years giezience on the market of wood-based products, is
an arm of the international Pfleiderer Group arsdBtusiness Centre for Eastern Europe. The Group
enjoys a strong position on the markets of Ceatndl Eastern Europe and grows dynamically by ergerin
new markets, reaching new segments and enhansipgoiluct mix.

The mission of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group is &iablish long-term relations with both direct
customers and product end users. The Group stiivesn and maintain complete customer confidence
and develop a fully professional approach at &kl of its relationship with customers.

The Group operates manufacturing plants with varfimoduction profiles.
Pfleiderer Grajewo Group companies and their pp@dbusiness activities:
Principal business activity of Pfleiderer Grajewo SA., the Parent:

- manufacture and veneering of wood and wood-basmtlipts,
- paper finishing,
- trade at home and abroad.

Pfleiderer Prospan S.A.

A joint-stock company entered in the commercialigig maintained by the District Court of Kalisz
under No. RHB1754 on September 23rd 1997 as ZakbagtyWiorowych Prospan S.A. On September
17th 2001, the company was registered with theribisCourt of Lod-Srodmigcie in Lodz, 20th
Division of the National Court Register under ertiy. KRS: 0000042082.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 250744416
Tax Identification Number: 619-17-42-967
Registered address: ul. Bolestawiecka 10, 98-4@rWz6w, Poland

Principal business activity:

- manufacture of laminated and raw chipboards aneretlood and wood-based products,
- paper finishing,

- trade at home and abroad,

- generation and distribution of heat.
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Silekol Sp. z 0.0.

A Company entered in the National Court Registerthiy District Court of Opole, 8th Commercial
Division of the National Court Register of Opoleder entry No. KRS 0000225788 on January 6th 2005.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 160003017

Tax ldentification Number: 749-19-69-061

Registered address: ul. Mostowa nr 30 K, 47-22¢dzerzyn-Kale,
Poland

Principal business activity:

The company is a source of steady supplies of adieessed in chipboard manufacture to the Paretht an
its subsidiaries.

- manufacture of dyes and pigments,

- manufacture of other organic and inorganic chersjcal
- manufacture of paints and varnishes,

- manufacture of glues and gelatines.

Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0:

A Company entered in the National Court RegistetH®yDistrict Court of Biatystok, 12th Commercial
Division of the National Court Register in Biatyktaunder entry No. KRS 174810, on October 9th 2003.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 330994545
Tax Identification Number: 719-13-99-317
Registered address: ul. Wiérowa nr 1, 19-203 Grajdé¥oland

Principal business activity:

- sale and intermediation in the sale of raw andtameid chipboards, films and foils,
- veneering of chipboards,
- manufacture of laminated and raw chipboards aneratlood-based materials.

Jura Polska Sp. z o.o.

A Company entered in the National Court Registerthyy District Court of Katowice, Commercial
Division of the National Court Register, under M&RS 149282, on November 24th 1999.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 276746151
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 629-215-85-14
Registered address: ul. Wiérowa 1, 19-203 Grajé&atand

Principal business activity:

- transport,

- road transport of goods with specialised vehicles,
- road transport of goods with universal vehicles,

- lease of trucks.

Unifloor Sp. z 0.0. in liquidation

A Company entered in the National Court Registerthiy District Court of Biatystok, Commercial
Division of the National Court Register, under M&S 0000237233, on June 29th 2005.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 200021250
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 719-149-38-49
Registered address: ul. Bolestawiecka 10, 98-40&r\8z6w, Poland

-5-
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Unifloor Sp. z 0.0. is currently in liquidation.

Pfleiderer Services Sp. z 0.0.

A Company entered in the National Court RegistetHgy District Court of Biatystok, XII Commercial
Division of the National Court Register in Bialyktaunder No. KRS 0000247423, on December 20th
2005.

Industry Identification Number (REGON): 200052769
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 719-15-03-973
Registered address: ul. Wiérowa 1, 19-203 Grajé¥atand

The company has suspended its operations.

Grajewo OO0

A limited liability company incorporated under tlavs of the Russian Federation, registered on Augus
12th 2009 by Interregional Inspection No. 9 for tevgorod Region at the Ministry of Customs and
Taxes of the Russian Federation.

Uniform Registration Number: 1095321004130

Tax Identification Number (NIP): 5321135070

Registered address: 21/43 Studenitzeskaya StreetikyV Novgorod,
Russia

The company trades in Russia.

2.2. Jointly-controlled entities
Blitz 11-446 GmbH
A Company entered in the Commercial Register byGbert in Nuremberg, under No. HRB 28 166.

HRB Registry Number: 28 166
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 201/116/21366
Registered address: Ingolstadter Strasse 51, N&trtmrmany

Principal business activity:

- exports, in particular to Russia and Eastern Eyrope
- provision of investment-related services.

The business of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., Pfleid®mspan S.A. and Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0. cosisist
in the manufacture and veneering of wood and wased products, impregnation of paper, trade in
Poland and abroad, provision of industrial serviegated to its core business, as well as otheficesy
based on resources held. Subsidiary Grajewo OO@edran Russia. The other companies provide
services and supply raw materials to the Grougiesti

Information on the entities and their consolidatisrprovided in the supplementary notes to the ahnu
consolidated financial statements.
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2.3. Management of the Parent and its subsidiaries

As at the end of the reporting period, the compmsitof the Management Board of
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. was as follows:

1. Wojciech Gytkiewicz President of the Management Board
2. Rafat Karcz Member of the Management Board
3. Dariusz Tomaszewski Member of the Management Board

As at December 31st 2014, the same Management Bxdswdnanaged the activities of its subsidiary
Pfleiderer Prospan S.A..

In the 12 months ended December 31st 2014, there ma& changes in the composition of the Parent’s
Management Board. On February 16th 2015, the SigoeywBoard of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.:

- appointed Mr Michael Wolff as the President of Beent's Management Board,

- appointed Mr Gerd Schubert as the Member of thedgdament Board, Chief Operating Officer,

- recalled Woijciech @kiewicz from the position of President of the Mgament Board, and appointed
him as the Member of the Management Board, Chiah3formation Officer.

The table below presents the composition of th@agament boards of the other subsidiaries as at
December 31st 2014:

Jura Polska Sp. z o.0. Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z.0.0 _ I8kol Sp. z 0.0. Grajewo OO0
President }
of the Management Board Krzysztof Brzostek Rafat Karc: Janusz Zowade
Member: Dariusz Tomaszews Marek Filusch
Member: Ewa Staska
Managing Director: Elena Nedoshkovskaya

As at December 31st 2014 Unifloor Sp. z 0.0. ,rdithave a Management Board as the Company was in
the process of liquidation. Liquidator is Mr Rysz&@ruszka.

On October 1st 2014, Mrs Ewa S¢a was appointed to the position of Member of Maagement
Board of Silekol Sp. z 0.0.

As at this Report’s date, the Parent's Managemeatdconsisted of:

1. Michael Wolff President of the Management Board
2. Rafat Karcz Member of the Management Board
3. Gerd Schubert Member of the Management Board
4. Wojciech Gytkiewicz Member of the Management Board
5. Dariusz Tomaszewski Member of the Management Board

There were no changes in the composition of theadgament Board of Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. after
December 31st 2014.

2.4. Supervisory Board of the Parent

As at December 31st 2014, the composition of therRa Supervisory Board was as follows:

1. Michael Wolff Chairman of the Supervisory Board
2. Jochen Schapka Member of the Supervisory Board
3. Gerd Schubert Member of the Supervisory Board
4. Richard Mayer Member of the Supervisory Board
5. Jan Waniak Member of the Supervisory Board



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP

Directors’ Report on the operations of the Pfleideer Grajewo Group in the period
January 1st — December 31st 2014

During 12 months ended December 31st 2014, thewolly changes occurred in the composition of the
Parent’s Supervisory Board:

1. On June 23rd 2014, Mr Gerd Hammerschmidt resigmeth fthe position of a Member of the
Supervisory Board of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. effiecfrom June 29th 2014.

2. On June 30th 2014, Mr Gerd Schubert was appoimtaétie position of the Member of the Parent’s
Supervisory Board.

The following changes in the composition of the &usory Board occurred after December 31st 2014:

1. On January 30th 2015, pursuant to a resolutiorhefRarent’s Extraordinary General Meeting, Mr
Michael Wolff was recalled from the position of @imaan of the Supervisory Board, and Mr Gerd
Schubert was recalled from the position of Membi¢he Supervisory Board.

2. On January 30th 2015, the Parent’s ExtraordinanyeGe Meeting appointed the following persons to
the Supervisory Board Mr Paolo G. Antonietti andWichael F. Keppel.

On February 16th 2015 the Supervisory Board apediiélr Paolo G. Antonietti for a position of
Chairman of Supervisory Board and Mr. Michael F.pgel for a position of Vice Chairman of the
Supervisory Board.

As at this Report’s date, the Supervisory Boardsisiad of:

1. Paolo G. Antonietti Chairman of the Supervisory Bba

2. Michael F. Keppel Deputy Chairman of the Superyiddoard
3. Jochen Schapka Member of the Supervisory Board

4. Richard Mayer Member of the Supervisory Board

5. Jan Waniak Member of the Supervisory Board

All duties and responsibilities of the audit conmadt were transferred to the Parent’s Supervisogrdio
Structure of the Group as at December 31st 2014

In the period from January 1st to December 31sd2®fleiderer Grajewo S.A. was the parent with
respect to the following entities:

Consolidated subsidiaries: Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
1. Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. Wieruszéw 100% 100%
2. Silekol Sp. z o.0. Kdzierzyn Kale 100% 100%

3. Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z.0.0: Grajewo 100% 100%
4. Jura Polska Sp. z 0.0. Grajewo 100% 100%
5. Unifloor Sp. z 0.0. in liquidation Wieruszéw 100% 0QPRo

6. Grajewo OOO Novgorod, Russia 100% 100%
Equity-accounted jointly-controlled entities:

7. Blitz 11-446 GmbH Neumarkt 50% 50%
Entities which are not consolidated and are not eqty-accounted:

8. Pfleiderer Services Sp. Grajewo 100% 100%

Re. 5indirectly through Pfleiderer Prospan SA.
Re. 6 purchase of shares on April 16th 2013.
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Structure of the Group as at December 31st 2014:

Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.

Parent
Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.
Subsidiary Subsidiary
(100%) (100%)
Umflo_or _Sp._z.o.o. in Grajewo 000
liquidation
Subsidiary Subsidiary
(100%) (100%)
Jura Polska Sp. z o.o. Silekol Sp. z 0.0.
Subsidiary Subsidiary
(100%) (100%)
Pfleiderer Services Sp. z 0.4
Subsidiary
(100%)

Changes in the Group’s structure in the reporting geriod

In the period from January 1st to December 31s#2@ie structure of the Group did not change
relative to December 31st 2013.

Even though certain economic events took plackéncurrent reporting period, they did not directly
affect the Group’s structure and followed from gireviously executed agreements.

On January 20th 2014, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., hes gurchaser, and Pfleiderer Service GmbH
located in Neumarkt, Germany, as the seller, sigmedagreement for the purchase of shares in
Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o0.0. located in Grajewo, asstiary. The share purchase agreement was signed
in the performance of the preliminary purchase ament of December 27th 2013, following
fulfilment of a condition provided for in the prelinary agreement (i.e. court registration of share
capital increase at Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.). &indhe agreement, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.
purchased 135,328 non-preference shares with agbae of PLN 500 per share. The total purchase
price for the shares was EUR 6,988 thousand (aivagut of PLN 29,070 thousand).

Following the purchase, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.dBolL00% of Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.'s share
capital.

Pfleiderer Service GmbH is the parent company EHidérer Grajewo S.A.
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Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.’s shareholding structure

igigel\jglrdclr? %;ILU(Z:BUE Ni?:gsof Ownership interest Number of votes at GM % Of(;/&tes at

Pfleiderer Service GmbH 32,308,176 65.11% 32,308,176 65.11%
Aviva OFE Aviva BZ WBK 4,928,816 9.93% 4,928,816 9.93%
ING OFE 2,639,144 5.32% 2,639,144 5.32%
Other shareholders 9,747,864 19.64% 9,747,864 19.64%
Total 49,624,000 100.00% 49,624,000 100.00%

In the period from January 1st 2014 to the datéhisf Directors’ Report, the number of shares of the
Parent held by its main shareholder, Pfleiderevi8eiGmbH, did not change.

The information on the number of Pfleiderer GrajesvA. shares held by Aviva OFE is sourced from the
most recent notification of shareholding changeseineed by the Parent on July 10th 2007. The
information on the number of Pfleiderer Grajewo .Shares held by ING OFE is sourced from the most
recent notification of shareholding change, reaivg the Parent on June 5th 2009.

The Group is not aware of any other changes ishigseholders structure.
External and internal factors with a bearing on theGroup’s business

8.1. External factors with a bearing on the Group’s busness:

- Broader collaboration with customers, based on -tengn framework agreements, providing the
parties with assurance of stable cooperation asithtadevelopment.

- Customer insolvency risk — the Group monitors tharfcial liquidity of its customers on an ongoing
basis, and mitigates the risk by using trade ciaditrance.

- Close cooperation with suppliers — key raw matsnmirchased by the Group include wood and wood
waste, decorative paper, chemical substances, aoHine parts. The Group mitigates the related risk
by using diversified sources of supplies. Increasdahe prices of the raw materials affect the G@rou
as well as its competitors and therefore have nerad impact on the Group’s competitive position.

- Currency risk — the Group is not exposed to angiBagant currency risk. It monitors its exposure to
exchange-rate fluctuations on an ongoing basiglies on natural hedging and forward transactions
to hedge the risk.

- Seasonality — sales typically fall in the secondrtgr and peak in the second half of the calenear.y
Seasonal changes do not give rise to a signifidaktfor the Group as lower sales in the period are
accompanied by lower purchases of raw materials. Gitoup’s liquidity remains stable in the second
quarter.

8.2. Internal factors with a bearing on the Group’s busness:

- Technological process — the technologies employeithds Group result in exposure to fire hazard. To
mitigate the risk, the Group uses a number of teehrand organisational safeguards. The risk of
unplanned downtime is reduced through the impleatemt of an annual maintenance and
modernization as well as maintaining a strategicksof spare parts.

- Debt risk — as the Parent, Pfleiderer Grajewo ®dars all the burdens related to the financing of
investment projects. The debt level is monitoredaonongoing basis. To mitigate the liquidity risk,
the Group uses a full spectrum of available finahicistruments.
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Current and future activities of the Group

9.1. Plans and development prospects for 2015

- Start of comprehensive structural integration of B&st and BC West business units. The unification
of processes and activities is intended to imprthe Group’s competitiveness and unlock new
markets.

- Continuation of the long-term investment prograntmepgrade the Group’s plants to better align its
production capacities with market needs and gemext efficiencies.

- Continued roll out of standardised visual idenéfion for Pfleiderer Partner sale outlets.

- Adapting the product offering to meet market needw®t only in terms of quality, but also design —
through continued collaboration with designers amfive presence at trade events for interior
designers (promotion of new designs for finisheuhiture products).

- Expansion onto European markets.

- Implementation of new technical systems and imprg\vhe efficiency of the Group through further
optimisation of the production processes and asa®shgs programme.

- Promotion of the Pfleiderer brand as a modern amtimuously developing organisation, which
implements state-of-the-art technologies and rdsphe natural environment.

9.2. In 2014, the efforts of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. wez focused on the following tasks:

- Development of a new model of cooperation with comrs to increase sales on the existing and new
markets and shorten delivery times.

- Activities geared towards enabling effective expam®n the interior design market.

- Enhancement of efficiency and production procefz@sigh tight cost control.

- Improving the quality of products and services.

- Analysis of production and sales volumes and aidigghem to current market demand.

- Optimisation efforts designed to improve the Graupperating efficiency.

- Securing of wood and chemicals supplies.

- Improvement of the Group’s working capital.

- Promotion of the Company’s image as a financigbypke and reliable business partner.

- Strengthening of Pfleiderer’'s market position bgmoting the Pfleiderer brand and vision.

- Market launch of a new decor collection.

- Analysis of the Group’s financial standing, curreates strategy and organisation of the production
and distribution processes in order to improvecgdficy and identify areas in need of restructuring.

- Expansion and consolidation of the dealership nétwereation of standardised visual identification
for Pfleiderer Partner sale outlets.

- Finalisation of acquisition of non-controlling inésts in subsidiaries.

- Prolongation of permission to operate in the spemanomic zone by Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.0. for
10 years.

Information material to the assessment of the persmel, assets, financial standing and
performance of the Group and their changes, and fothe assessment of the Group’s ability
to fulfil its obligations

10.1. Financial standing of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group

The structure of financing of the Group’s assets a&follows as at the reporting date (PLN ‘000):
Dec 31 2014  Dec 31 2013

Equity (attributable to owners of the parent) 756,370 652,275
Total equity 756,370 652,275
Non-current liabilities 176,518 134,647
Long-term capital (total equity + non-current liigs) 932,888 786,922
Current liabilities 284,105 331,871
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The Group finances its operations with own fundsd abank borrowings. In June 2013,
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. (the Parent) and the sidnéed Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. and Silekol Spoz o.
entered into credit facility agreements. The totaldit limit available under the facilities withifobanks
amounts to PLN 300,000 thousand and ensures tiecial liquidity of the Parent and its subsidiaries

The Pfleiderer Grajewo Group also supports its ajp@ns with a non-recourse factoring programme,
whereby it sells insured trade receivables to PEKZRtoring Sp. z 0.0. and BZ WBK Faktor Sp. z o0.0.
This form of financing was available to Pfleide@majewo S.A., Pfleiderer Prospan S.A.,
Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0. and Silekol Sp. z o0.ad was limited to PLN 245,000 thousand. The faotpri
agreements with BZ WBK Faktor Sp. z 0.0. have leeatuted for an indefinite period, while the terin o
the agreements with PEKAO Factoring Sp. z o.ot isa@st one year. The agreements are automatically
prolonged for the next year if neither party nesfithe other party of its intention not to extemd a
agreement, with the proviso that such notice magdwgt no later than two months before the expirgt of
given agreement.

The internal financing within the Pfleiderer GragwGroup comprises loans advanced by
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. to its subsidiary Pfleiddv#DF Sp. z 0.0., as well as a short-term note
(commercial paper) programme. The notes are isdyedPfleiderer Grajewo S.A. and acquired by
Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. The programme and the lea@sdesigned to provide financing to all of the
Group companies and optimise cash management whtbiGroup.

10.2.  Workforce and remuneration at the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group

As at December 31st 2014, the Group employed 1s2&7, including the management personnel and
staff working under managerial contracts or appgainby the Supervisory Board. The Group’s
employment structure as at the end of the repopé@rgpd was as follows:

Employees Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
- direct production employees 666 663
- indirect production employees 272 272
- administration, office and other employees 329 337
Total 1,267 1,272

Workforce at Group companies:

Workforce Employees Employees Administration
in 2014 directly involved indirectly and office
in production involved in employees

Company production

Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. 570 270 132 168
Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. 428 214 116 98
Grajewo OO0 2 0 0 2
Jura Polska Sp. z o.0. 32 10 0 22
Silekol Sp. z 0.0 93 53 24 16
Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z.0.0: 142 119 0 23
Unifloor Sp. z o0.0. in liquidation 0 0 0 0
Total 1,267 666 272 329

Remuneration paid to the members of the Pfleidérajewo Management Board, including bonuses, in
the period January 1st — December 31st 2014:

1. President of the Management Board Wojciegkkidwicz PLN 1,407 thousand
2. Member of the Management Board Rafat Karcz PLN #B@nsand
3. Member of the Management Board Dariusz Tomaszewski PLN 805 thousand
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In addition, members of the Parent’'s Managementdoeceived the following remuneration for holding
managerial positions at Pfleiderer Prospan S.A.:

1. President of the Management Board Wojciegkkidwicz PLN 962 thousand
2. Member of the Management Board Rafat Karcz PLN thb8isand
3. Member of the Management Board Dariusz Tomaszewski PLN 554 thousand

The managerial contract between the Parent and afit Karcz, Member of the Management Board,
provides, in case of termination of the contractotee December 31st 2015, a contractual penalty
amounting to a remuneration remaining until Decengfst 2015. Contract provides for a 12-month
notice period with effect as of the end of calertuf-year.

The managerial contract between the subsidiaryidefler Prospan S.A. and Mr Dariusz Tomaszewski,
Member of the Management Board, contains a pravisiitling Mr Tomaszewski to receive a one-off
termination benefit equal to his one-month remuti@ndf the contract is terminated by notice.

The managerial contract with Mr Wojciechit@ewicz, President of the Management Board, presjdn
case of termination of the contract before Decenfdest 2015, a contractual penalty amounting to a
remuneration remaining until December 31st 20151tat provides for a 12-month notice period with
effect as of the end of calendar half-year.

Remuneration paid to the members of Parent’s SigmeywBoard in the reporting period:

1. Chairman of the Supervisory Board Michael Wolff PRMO thousand
2. Member of the Supervisory Board Jochen Schapka RS\thousand
3. Member of the Supervisory Board Richard Mayer P10 thousand
4. Member of the Supervisory Board Jan Niak PLN 105 thousand
5. Member of the Supervisory Board Gerd Schubert PBRhBusand
6. Member of the Supervisory Board Gerd Hammerschmidt PLN 52 thousand

As at December 31st 2014, the members of the Mamage and Supervisory Boards of
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. had no outstanding delt¢oParent under loans.

As at December 31th 2014, Mr Dariusz Tomaszewskindgiement Board Member, had outstanding debt
of PLN 26 thousand under a loan from subsidiargiBérer Prospan S.A. This liability is related tman
taken out from the Privatisation Fund in 1997 twmafice the acquisition of shares in
Pfleiderer Prospan S.A.

10.3.  Number of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. shares held by th management staff

As at the date of this Report, the Management Baarimbers held the following number of
Pfleiderer Grajewo shares.:

- Member of the Management Board Wojciecitkiewicz - 5,400 Company shares
- Member of the Management Board Rafat Karcz - 3@athpany shares
- Member of the Management Board Dariusz Tomaszewski - 4,108 Company shares

Members of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Supervisory Batiddnot hold any shares in the Parent.
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Production and sales structure
11.1. Production volume and structure

In 2014 and 2013, the production volumes of ther fmain product groups at three subsidiaries
(Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., Pfleiderer Prospan Smd Bfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0.) were as follows:

Jan 1- Jan 1- change
Dec 312014 Dec 312013 (%)

Gross production of raw chipboargfimished goods;

semi-product to laminated chipboards) ths cubic m 1,184 1,111 7%
Laminated chipboards ths sgm 37,103 35,290 5%
Raw MDF boardgfinished goods; semi-product to

lacquered MDF boards) ths cubic m 243 226 8%
Lacquered MDF boards ths sgm 29,926 29,575 1%

In 2014 the production volume increased in eachir f®y product groups. The table above presents
percentage change on the previous year.

11.2. Sales volume and structure

Revenue reported by the Group in 2014 was PLN 18822thousand, up 4% compared to 2013.The
share of exports in total sales declined slightiytlie previous year (by 3 pp), and accounted &6 84
Group’s total sale in 2014.

Revenue by product group was as follows:

Jan 1- % share
Dec 31 2014 (%)

By product group

Revenue from sale of products: 1,451,582 95.32%
Chipboardgraw boards, laminated boards, fibre mats,

MFP) 792,644 52.05%
MDF boardgraw MDF, enamelled MDF, fibre mats) 303,393 19.92%
Glues(basic resin, specialised resin, formalin) 258,226 16.96%
Other(films, foils, edge banding, packaging, and other) 97,319 6.39%
Revenue from sale of materials 7,017 0.46%
Revenue from sale of merchandise 24,152 1.59%
Revenue from rendering of services 40,068 2.63%
Total sales 1,522,819 100.0%

Sales volumes of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group’s @gucts:

Jan1 Jan1
Sales by key product groups Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Raw chipboard ths. cubic m 475.1 478.6
Laminated board ths. sqm 35,503.8 34,156.8
Raw MDF boards ths. cubic m 156.5 149.7
Lacquered MDF boards ths. sqm 28,545.6  25,699.5
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Revenue by region was as follows:

Jan 1- Jan 1-

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Domestic sales 1,004,167 926,045
- revenue from sale of products 965,094 892,292

- revenue from sale of merchandise and materials 16,185 12,759

- revenue from rendering of services 22,888 20,994
Foreign sales 518,652 536,094
- revenue from sale of products 486,488 500,622

- revenue from sale of merchandise and materials 14,984 21,139

- revenue from rendering of services 17,180 14,333
Total: 1,522,819 1,462,139

11.3. Sales of key products by distribution channels, ba&sl on sales data for
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. at Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.0.

The furniture industry continues to be the mostangnt sector for Pfleiderer Grajewo Group as it
accounts for 90% of the Group'’s total sales. Theurtakes steps to more effectively place its petslu
on the interior design market. On the other hahdoduses efforts on expanding its presence on the
construction market, which is becoming increasingigre attractive for chipboard manufacturers in

Poland.

The long-term sales strategy of the Pfleiderer &vajGroup is based on three key distribution chignne

1. direct sales to industrial customers,
2. Sales to the Pfleiderer Partner dealership net@RiFknetwork)
3. Export sales

Sales structure in 2013-2014 (PLN ‘000)

600 000
500 000+

400 000

300 000+

200 000+

100 000+

2013 2014
|  DExports ®Other mIndustry ©PP network |

Figure: Sales structure in 2013-2014 (PLN ‘000)
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In the Polish market, direct sales to large andiamegsized furniture manufacturers and the Pfleidere
Partner network continued to represent the mosbitapt distribution channels. Compared with the
previous year, in 2014 sales to large furniture ufiacturers grew by 11%, while the value of saleth&
Pfleiderer Partner network increased by 8%. Expsatss decreased by 12% comparing to previous year,
which was primarily attributable to lower film sal®o the Russian production plant, which had (sedh
early in 2013 and lower demand on Eastern markatstal instable geopolitical situation. Sales taeoth
domestic distribution channels also declined by 12%

The shares of individual distribution channelsatat sales in 2014 were as follows:

Shares of distribution channels in 2014 sales:

Exports

PP network 24.4%

25,8%

Other
3,6%

Industry
46,2%

Figure: Sales by distribution channel in 2014 (%)

The year-on-year changes in the shares of indiVidig&ibution channels in total sales were asofol:

- The share of direct sales to large and medium-dizetdture manufacturers increased from 42.7% to
46.2%.

- The share of sales to the Pfleiderer Partner n&tgiaw up from 24.6% to 25.8%.

- The share of sales through other distribution cebnfell down from 4.2% to 3.6%.

- The share of exports declined from 28.5% to 24.4%.

12. Procurement

In 2014, the structure of wood supplies was prafljicche same as in the previous years. Wood for
production was purchased from each plant’'s trawkti sources. Group is not dependent on a single
supplier. The value of transactions did not excEe¥b of the total purchases with any of the supplier
2014.

The structure of groups of products in the supplindividual plants is slightly different. This due to
production profiles, local market conditions and turrent price relationships between differenesypf
raw material.

13. Economic and financial data

The cost of raw materials and consumables contitméd® the largest component of the Group’s cost
structure. Also the cost of services accounts feigaificant portion of the cost base at individ@abup
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companies. This follows from the fact that certaixiliary functions were outsourced and certairetyp

of services were contracted from external companiB®, there has been a gradual growth of tratispor
costs related to product sales and materials peawemt. Finance costs are a significant component of
profit and loss. This is a result of the large talpexpenditure made by the Group. Other itemsrofitp
and loss did not materially change relative togdrevious periods.

In 2014 and 2013, the Group earned the followidgssaargins:

Jan 1- Jan 1-
Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013
Profit before tax 8.41% 5 5206
Revenue
Net profit (attributable to owners of the parent)
6.78% 3.76%

Revenue

The improved ratios are proof of stability of theoGp’s financial condition. Repayment of bank loans
and refinancing in mid-2013 resulted in a significeeduction in the cost of financing which refkedt
into improved profitability ratios.

Use of bank borrowings

Dec 31 2014 Dec 31 2013

Debt under bank borrowings 108,351 154,531
Cash 18,512 16,450
Net debt under bank borrowings 89,839 138,081

In June 2013, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. (the Paremi the subsidiaries Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. and
Silekol Sp. z 0.0. entered into credit facility egments which currently continue in force. Theltotedit

limit available under the facilities with four bakmounts to PLN 300,000 thousand and ensures the
financial liquidity of the Parent and its subsidkat

14.1.  Credit facility agreement with Bank Millennium S.A.

On June 26th 2013, the Parent entered into twatdeadlity agreements with Bank Millennium S.Aqrf
an aggregate amount of PLN 100,000 thousand, imgua PLN 75,000 thousand multi-purpose credit
facility agreement and an overdratft facility agrestof up to PLN 25,000 thousand.

At the same time, Pfleiderer Prospan S.A., a sidigidentered into an overdraft facility agreemeith
Bank Millennium S.A., for up to PLN 10,000 thousand

Moreover, Silekol Sp. z 0.0., a subsidiary of tlednt, entered into an overdraft facility agreemweitt
Bank Millennium S.A., for up to PLN 10,000 thousand

Total liabilities of all the three borrowers undie four credit facility agreements with Bank Milldum
S.A. may not exceed PLN 100,000 thousand. The +pulppose credit facility agreement provides for the
repayment of the entire loan after five years frexacution of the agreement, while the overdraféstar
be repaid within three years. The facilities aredus® finance the borrowers’ day-to-day operations.

-17 -



PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO GROUP

Directors’ Report on the operations of the Pfleideer Grajewo Group in the period
January 1st — December 31st 2014

14.2.  Credit facility agreement with Alior Bank S.A.

On June 26th 2013, the Parent entered into a PLBD@%housand credit facility agreement with Alior
Bank S.A. The facility, used to finance the Paretay-to-day operations, is to be repaid in fulihva
five years from the agreement execution date.

At the same time, the Parent and the subsidiafiesgd€rer Prospan S.A. and Silekol Sp. z 0.0. euter
into an overdraft facility agreement with Alior Bas.A., for up to PLN 25,000 thousand, under which
the bank granted to the Parent an overdraft lifnRIAN 25,000 thousand and separate sub-limits ¢d PL
10,000 thousand to Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. an#&@itgp. z 0.0. each.

The facility, used to finance the borrowers’ daydty operations of the borrowers, is repayableiwith
three years from the agreement execution datel Tiakdities of all the three borrowers under ttveo
credit facility agreements with Alior Bank S.A. magt exceed PLN 100,000 thousand.

14.3.  Credit facility agreement with Bank Zachodni WBK S A.

On June 26th 3013, the Parent entered into a PLN085thousand multi-purpose credit facility
agreement with Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. The creddilfty, designed to ensure liquidity and finance
capital expenditure, is to be repaid in full witliive years from the agreement execution date.

At the same time, the Parent and the subsidiafiesd€rer Prospan S.A. and Silekol Sp. z 0.0. euater
into an overdraft facility agreement with Bank Zadhi WBK S.A., for up to PLN 15,000 thousand (a
joint overdraft limit for all three borrowers).

The facility, intended to secure liquidity and firc® capital expenditure, is to be repaid in fulthivi
three years from the agreement execution date. Tiatalities of the three borrowers under the two
agreements with Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. may not edceLN 60,000 thousand.

14.4.  Credit facility agreement with Bank Ochrony Srodowiska S.A.

On June 27th 2013, the Parent entered into a PLN080thousand multi-purpose credit facility
agreement with Bank Ochror§rodowiska S.A. to finance the Parent’'s day-to-d@erations. The
facility is to be repaid within five years from thlate of execution of the agreement.

14.5. Investment facility agreement with PKO BP S.A.

On January 15th 2007, Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.osubsidiary, entered into a PLN 235,022 thousand
investment facility agreement with PKO BP S.A.dtd special-purpose facility obtained to finanee th
construction of the MDF board production plant irajewo. As at December 31st 2014, the Group’s debt
outstanding under this facility was PLN 85,396 themd (December 31st 2013: PLN 90,801 thousand).

14.6.  Multi-purpose facility agreement with PKO BP S.A.

On August 29th 2007, Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z o.oulasidiary, entered into a PLN 65,000 thousand multi
purpose facility agreement with PKO BP S.A. Theeagnent provides for a PLN 30,000 thousand
overdraft facility, a PLN 30,000 thousand revolvivgrking capital facility, and a PLN 5,000 thousand
guarantee and letter-of-credit limit. Under an admant signed on March 23rd 2009, the amount of the
multi-purpose facility was reduced to PLN 57,00@usand. Following execution of the annex, the
facility agreement provides for an overdraft fagilof PLN 25,900 thousand, a revolving working ¢ai
facility of PLN 30,000 thousand, and a guaranteglatter-of-credit limit of PLN 1,100 thousand. Uamd
the amendment, the term of the facility was extendaetil August 31st 2015The amount of multi-
purpose facility was reduced over the followingethiyears starting from 2011 and as at balance sheet
date and currently has a value of PLN 54,000 taodsAs at December 31st 2014, the amount
outstanding under the facility was PLN 11,185 tlzmas

14.7.  Liabilities under borrowings from related parties

As at December 31st 2014 and December 31st 20&35tbup did not carry any liabilities under loans
from related parties.
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Defaults under borrowing agreements where no remedl action was taken before the end
of the reporting period

As at December 31st 2014, no such events occurred.
Feasibility of the Group’s investment plans for 202
The Group continues a long-term investment prograndesigned to align its production capacities to

market needs and to enhance its cost effectivemedsproductivity. In 2014, the Pfleiderer Grajewo
Group incurred capital expenditure of PLN 113,8@@usand.

16.1. PFLEIDERER GRAJEWO S.A.

Operating investments in 2014: planned: PLN 46ip82sand realised: PLN 57,524 thousand
Construction of sorting mill for wood shavings P11K,692 thousand
Upgrade of wood waste collection line PLN 12,093 thousand
Modernisation of storm water and industrial wastiewaewage system PLN 5,232 thousand
Visual design of sales points PLN 2,808 thousand
Modernisation of steel belt PLN 2,305 thousand
Modernisation of burner at dryer PLN 1,573 thousand
Construction of wood chips handling line PLN 1,029 thousand
Other investment projects below PLN 1m each PLN'95 thousand

The investment projects planned for 2015 total PIBN855 thousand. The programme primarily includes
projects designed to reduce costs, optimise pramugirocesses and implement new IT systems. The
largest projects are:

Start of Phase 3 of upgrade of wood waste colledine PLN 3,500 thousand
System of removing mineral components from dusténbustion PLN 1,500 thousand
Continued roll out of visual design at sales points PLN 2,500 thousand
Implementation of new IT systems PLN 3,800 thousand
16.2. PFLEIDERER PROSPAN S.A.

Operating investments in 2014: planned: PLN 368@tsand realised: PLN 37,969 thousand
Upgrade of wood shavings sorting plant PLN 10,242 thousand
Upgrade of bunkers at hopper stations PLN 4,500 thousand
Modernisation of drivers PLN 2,833 thousand
Modernisation of steel belt PLN 2,611 thousand
Knife sharpener for wood shavers PLN 2,000 thousand
Upgrade of grinding line PLN 1,991 thousand
Modernisation of film warehouse PLN 1,988 thousand
Other investment projects below PLN 1m each PLNQ4 thousand

The investment projects planned for 2015 total FIN51 thousand. The programme primarily includes
strategic projects designed to reduce costs amddse production volumes. The most important ptejec
are:

Construction of biomass-fired boiler room PLN 28,9housand
Modernisation of kitchen worktop laminating line 122,000 thousand
Modernisation of insulation on heating trays PLEQD thousand
Modernisation of control system PLN 1,000 thousand
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16.3. SILEKOL Sp. z o.0.

Operating investments in 2014: planned: PLN 4,04$and realised: PLN 10,369 thousand
Extension and modernisation of formalin unit PLNSH thousand
Implementation of new technology for resin prodoicti PLN 1,447 thousand
Other investment projects below PLN 1m each PLMBfhousand

The investment projects planned for 2015 total L8380 thousand.

16.4. PFLEIDERER MDF Sp. z o.0.

Operating investments in 2014: planned: PLN 2608sand  realised: PLN 7,779 thousand
Modernisation of steel belt PLN 2,158 thousand
Painting line (end-of-lease purchase) PLN 1,235 thousand
Other investment projects below PLN 1m each PLN@& thousand

The investment plan for 2014 provided for the exiecuof an investment programme consisting in the
purchase of four installations (new painting lipanel saw, grinder, and packaging line), desigioed t
increase the profitability of the product offerinbhe execution of the programme has been postponed,
and the programme is currently being reassessed.

The investment projects planned for 2015 total RIBN99 thousand, and include mainly restructuring
projects designed to improve cost and productiditieficy. The largest planned investment projects
comprise:

Replacement of technological line parts PLN 6,700 thousand
Painting line wastewater treatment system PLN 1,399 thousand

Marketing activities in 2014

Marketing objectives:

- Positioning Pfleiderer as a premium brand;

- Enhancing the Pfleiderer brand recognition amogitects, designers and end users;
- Strengthening the Pfleiderer Group’s position ia ithvestment market;

- Strengthening Pfleiderer Group’s position in locerkets;

- Strengthening the Pfleiderer Group’s position & tlonstruction market.

17.1.  Objectives achieved in the furniture and interior cesign market
a) Product policy

- Market launch of new collection of decors, laminlthipboard and kitchen worktops;

- Launch of the decor project with Oskart@ and Piotr Kuchdski;

- Market launch of the new line of Duropal high-prgsslaminates;

- Continued development of new products while redy¢ire number of slow-moving products; active
management of the product portfolio.

b) Communications policy

- Intensification of PFL's/Pfleiderer's communicatioith the market;

- Enhanced internal and external visual presencéefPfleiderer Partner sales network domestically
and in selected exports markets;

- Organisation of training courses for the salesd@ployed by the Pfleiderer Partner network;

- Support of advertising activities of the PfleidePartner network domestically and internationally;

- Product displays at the Pfleiderer Partner’'s doimesid international customers;

- Enhanced presence of pattern books on the donaestitoreign markets;
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- Direct distribution of marketing materials amongndsstic customers of the Pfleiderer Partner
network;

- Participation in regional fairs and events orgashibg the Pfleiderer Partner network in Poland and
abroad;

- Use of public transport vehicles, both domesticaltg internationally, as carriers for kitchen workt
advertising campaigns;

- Billboard campaigns;

- Intensification of advertising and PR activitiesidmed to promote Pfleiderer kitchen worktops i th
press and on the Internet;

- Organisation of meetings with key customers fronhlmmmestic and exports markets;

- Active promotion of the Pfleiderer brand and pradun social media;

- Participation in architecture and design eventshsas the Loz Design Festival and the Night with
Design in Wroctaw, and display of solutions forrfishings and interior design markets in the largest
urban centres (in cooperation with VIRTUS).

- Promotion of new items in the Pfleiderer produatge fitted in the finished furniture products
presented at the MEBLE furniture industry fair iozRai; Pfleiderer’'s conference at the Arena Design
trade fair;

- Active PR efforts and advertising initiatives foedganainly on presenting inspiring solutions for lgom
interiors and general public buildings;

- Cooperation with higher education institutions: tbeiversity of Arts of Pozna and the ASP
Academy of Fine Arts of Wroctaw;

- Using the Company’s quarterly press conference tdevto the presentation of financial results as an
opportunity to meet members of the press (bothnfifed and general-interest magazines as well as
interior-design and other trade magazines.

17.2.  Activities in the construction market

a) Product policy

- Preparation for the market launch of the mfp Clirage board.
b) Communications policy

- Intensive promotion of the new nffgonstruction board brand in the contractor, inweand end-user
segments of the market;

- Participation in regional construction fairs, sashthose organised by the PSB Group;

- Organisation of regional training courses for tetaiand contractors;

- Promotional campaign for the mfp® board;

- Organisation of meetings with the Company’s custsime

- Continuation of activities designed to enhance tVsamisual presence at retail outlets;

- Development of a joint product catalogue with partoompany — presentation of solutions for the
construction industry

The overall expenditure of these activities in theiture, interior design and construction mankeis
financed from marketing budgets.

Material related-party transactions in 2014

Information on material transactions executed wethted parties is presented in Note 29 to thedefter
Group’s annual consolidated financial statement

In 2014, the Group did not execute any relatedypaansactions other than on an arms’ length basis.
Management of Pfleiderer Grajewo Group’s financialresources in 2014

Financial resources management involves borrowimgngement, which is used to finance working
capital, current operations, investment and cashagement.
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Proper management of financial resources is arfacigporting the implementation of other management
areas, including operational management, strategianvestment projects. This is done in the fitate
through regular financial projections, includingjerctions of debt in the horizon of five years, dhen
arranging the appropriate sources of funding, & firm of bank loans, bonds and factoring. Cash
Management Group Pfleiderer Grajewo aims at opingizhe financial costs by minimizing cash and
devoting cash surpluses to repay bank loans, whialy at any time be re-used. The second cash
management objective is to reduce the currencytdswhich the Group due to the large export and
import is exposed.

In 2014, Parent Company Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. sutskidiaries financed all relevant projects by the
use in the first place surplus generated from djpegraactivities, using bank loans, factoring anddho
issues (internal financing where the issuer is itler Grajewo S.A. and investor is
Pfleiderer Prospan S.A.)

19.1. Notes

As at December 31st 2014, the par value of thenPardebt under notes in issue totalled PLN 279,300
thousand. The notes are used to optimise the marageof financial liquidity within the Group, redeic
external debt and finance day-to-day operations.

19.2.  Bank borrowings

In June 2013, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. (the Paremg the subsidiaries Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. and
Silekol Sp. z 0.0. entered into currently bindimgdit facility agreements. The total credit limitadlable
under the facilities with four banks amounts to PR00O,000 thousand and ensures the financial liuidi
of the Parent and its subsidiaries. For detailéatiination on the Group’s existing debt, see sectidrio

this consolidated Directors’ Report.

As at December 31st 2014, debt outstanding unaebdnk borrowings taken out by the Group totalled
PLN 108,351 thousand.

19.3.  Borrowings from related parties
As at December 31st 2014, the Group did not caipi@ans from related parties.

The Group maintains a comprehensive payment cgpacitl high credibility in the assessment of
strategic lenders. In view of the above, even @kimo account the possible deterioration of the
macroeconomic situation, Management Board belithasthere are no risks that could lead to a nsdlteri
deterioration or loss of liquidity.

For detailed information on all liabilities undearik borrowings and other debt instruments as vell a
contingent liabilities and security instruments eaaisDecember 31st 2014, see Note 21 and Note 28,
respectively, to the consolidated financial stateimef the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group.

Financial instruments

20.1.  Derivatives
Forward and swap transactions included purchag&efn currency at a predetermined rate.

In 2014, the Parent executed 33 forward contramtshie total amount of EUR 33,000 thousand. As at
December 31st 2014, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. held@n EUR/PLN FX forward contracts for the sale
of EUR 65,080 thousand with settlement dates falthletween January 29th 2015 and December 29th
2016. As at the reporting date, these transactier® measured at PLN 1,213 thousand (fair value —
level 2).

Additionally, in 2014, the subsidiary Silekol Spo. executed 6 forward contracts for the totabamnt

of EUR 11,400 thousand. As at December 31st 201#ld 3 open FX forward contracts for the sala of
total of EUR 5,800 thousand with settlement datdkénfy before the end of March 2015. As at the
reporting date, the valuation of these transactias negative at PLN 394 thousand (fair value €llgy.
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According to IAS 39, if a cash flow hedge is effeef any gain or loss on the hedging instrumeratied

to the effective portion of the hedge should bevgaised in other comprehensive income under equity,
whereas any gain or loss relating to the ineffecfortion should be recognised in profit or loss fo
current period.

As at December 31st 2014, no other subsidiaries ws@unterparties under derivative contracts.

20.2.  Guarantees, sureties and security provided by the Gup
As at December 31st 2014, the Group had the fafigwontingent liabilities and security:

20.2.1.Mortgage over properties and registered pledge ovarlant and equipment:

A mortgage on properties and a registered pledge plant and equipment serve as security for an
investment credit facility granted to Pfleiderer MBp. z 0.0. by PKO Bank Polski S.A. on Januanh 15t

2007. It is a special purpose facility obtainedfittance the construction of the new MDF board

production plant in Grajewo. The mortgage securdmlality of up to PLN 356,860 thousand. The

registered pledge over plant and equipment sediafgities of up to PLN 450,000 thousand and was
created over a changing set of assets owned bid&fée MDF Sp. z 0.0. The pledge is reviewed on a
quarterly basis to take account of changes in thesidiary’'s movable assets (plant and equipment,
vehicles).

As at December 31st 2014, the Group’s debt undefattility totalled PLN 85,396 thousand.

20.2.2. Mortgage on property located at ul. Wiérowa, Grajewo and registered pledge over assets
and rights

A mortgage of up to PLN 80,000 thousand createtherproperty located at ul. Wiérowa 1, Grajewo, on
which the MDF plant is situated, serves as sectwitya multi-purpose credit facility for the totanount

of PLN 57,000 thousand, granted to Pfleiderer MIPFZ0.0., a member of the Pfleiderer Group, by
PKO Bank Polski S.A. on August 29th 2007.

The pledge was created under an agreement oneamgispledge over assets, dated July 30th 2010,
concluded between Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0. and A&k Polski S.A. of Warsaw. The pledge, with
the maximum security amount of PLN 83,163 thousaral created for the benefit of PKO Bank Polski
S.A. to secure claims under a PLN 57,000 thousandti-purpose credit facility granted to
Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0. by PKO Bank Polski S.A.the basis of an agreement of August 29th 2007.
The pledge was created after the facility repayndeme had been postponed until August 31st 2016. Th
same assets are also encumbered with a pledgectesatier for the benefit of PKO Bank Polski Sir.
connection with an investment credit facility agreat of January 15th 2007.

As at December 31st 2014, the Group’s debt undefattility totalled PLN 11,185 thousand.
20.2.3. Mutual sureties granted within the Group

As at December 31st 2014, subsidiaries of the d&fter Grajewo Group disclosed sureties grantethéor
liabilities of other Group companies. No surety guarantee was disclosed for liabilities of entities
outside the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group.

The sureties were granted by Pfleiderer Grajewo, feiderer Prospan S.A. and Silekol Sp. z omal a
secured exclusively the liabilities of other Gragmpanies under bank borrowings.

a) Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., the Parent, issued sietes for a total amount of up to PLN 65,752
thousand.

As at December 31st 2014, the amount of underlgiglot secured with the sureties was PLN 5,373
thousand.
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b) The subsidiary Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. grantedrssueeties for a total amount of up to PLN 268,000
thousand, with the largest of the sureties being:

- two sureties for a total amount of up to PLN 118,0Bousand, securing the repayment of credit
facilities extended to Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. bgnR Millennium S.A. under an agreement of June
26th 2013,

- two sureties for a total amount of up to PLN 118,0Bousand, securing the repayment of credit
facilities extended to Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. byoABank under an agreement of June 26th 2013.

As at December 31st 2014, the amount of underlgdiglgf secured with the sureties was PLN 8,424
thousand.

¢) The subsidiary Silekol Sp. z 0.0. issued seventiggrdor a total amount of up to PLN 268,000
thousand, with the largest of the sureties being:

- two sureties for a total amount of up to PLN 118,0Bousand, securing the repayment of credit
facilities extended to Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. bgnk Millennium S.A. under an agreement of June
26th 2013,

- two sureties for a total amount of up to PLN 118,@Bousand, securing the repayment of credit
facilities extended to Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. hioABank under an agreement of June 26th 2013.

As at December 31st 2014, the amount of underldiglgf secured with the sureties was PLN 9,045
thousand.

The credit facilities are secured with a mortgagedeveloped properties, i.e. the Parent’s prodactio
plant in Grajewo and the Wieruszow production ptambed by Pfleiderer Prospan S.A., as well as with
pledge over the production plants’ machinery.

Other Group subsidiaries did not issue any suretiggziarantees.
20.2.4. Loans granted

As at 31 December 2014 3Spare Sp z o.0. liabilitbeBfleiderer Prospan SA amounted to PLN 7,347
thousand (PLN 7,000 thousand is principal amoulnly B47 thousand is interest for 2014). In the perio
January 1, 2014 r. To 31 December 2014. Pfleiderespan SA accrued PLN 347 thousand interest on
the loan. On 12 January 2015 Pfleiderer ProspareSéived from 3Spare Sp. z 0.0 PLN 347 thousand as
payment of interest on the loan. In addition, onJa@uary 2015 Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. received from
3Spare Sp. z 0.0 PLN 2,000 thousand as part db#tmerepayment.

Financial risks related to the Group’s operations

21.1. Objectives and methods of financial risk managemenapplied by the Pfleiderer Grajewo
Group

The Group manages all types of financial risk deedrbelow, which may have a significant effectitsn
operations in the future. In its risk managementess, the Group focuses on the following risk sype

- credit risk,

- currency risk,

- liquidity risk,

- interest rate risk.

The objective behind credit risk management isetduce the Group’s losses which could follow from
customers’ insolvency. This risk is mitigated wille use of receivables insurance and factoringcsy

The objective of currency risk management is toimiise losses arising out of unfavourable changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group monitors itseruay position from the point of view of cash flows.
To manage its currency risk, it first relies onumat hedging and where necessary uses forwardamistr
The time horizon adopted for position monitoringl éredging transactions is up to 24 months.
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The objective of financial liquidity managementasprotect the Group from insolvency. This objeetis
pursued through regular projection of debt levels ifive-year horizon, and arrangement of apprgria
financing.

The Group is exposed to credit risk, interest resleand currency risk in the ordinary course odibass.
Financial derivatives are used to hedge the rislited to exchange rate fluctuations.

21.2. Credit risk

Transactions which expose the Pfleiderer Grajewoufsrcompanies to credit risk concern trade
receivables and loans granted. The credit riskeélto trade receivables is limited, as the custdrase

is very wide and the risk is highly diversified. &rbfore, the credit risk concentration is insigrdfit.
Moreover, the Group operates a strict receivablasagement policy, whereby the risk of customer
insolvency is mitigated through the use of tradeditrinsurance and full factoring. In 2014, ovef/©0f

the Group’s trade receivables were secured inanthis In the event of insolvency of customers wheeha
insurance coverage, compensation is paid by theensEach customer has a trade credit limit (Ugual
covered by an insurance limit).

A subsidiary Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. has loan wed@és from one entity: 3 Spare Sp. z 0.0., sechyed
a registered pledge on movable property to the atmmuPLN 8.8 million and a promissory note linite
to the value of the debt.

21.3. Interest rate risk

The Group holds funds in bank accounts and habitie® under bank borrowings. The interest ragk ri
is related to interest payments under borrowings fbating interest rates. The Group does not bedg
the interest rate risk. The Group monitors thellefinterest costs in relation to EBIDTA.

21.4.  Currency risk

Foreign currency transactions relate both to puebaf raw materials and sale of goods. Therefore,
the event of any exchange rate fluctuations thaltteg foreign exchange gains and losses are partly
offset. Furthermore, the Group makes capital exprredin foreign currencies, and therefore it morst

its foreign currency positions on an ongoing basid hedges open positions — first, through natural
hedging (that is through carefully selecting cucies for contracts), and second, through forward an
swap transactions. The Group monitors its curreiskyexposure in terms of cash flows rather thaofir

or loss.

In 2014, the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group entered antoumber of EUR/PLN forward contracts to hedge
against currency risk related to planned tradesaietions.

As at December 31st 2014, Pfleiderer Grajewo Seid BO open EUR/PLN FX forward contracts for the
sale of EUR 65,080 thousand with settlement daa#sd between January 29th 2015 and December
29th 2016. As at the reporting date, these trammsectvere measured at PLN 1,213 thousand.

As at December 31st 2014, the subsidiary SilekokSpo. held 3 open FX forward contracts for take s
of EUR 5,800 thousand with settlement dates faliefpre the end of March 2015. As at the reporting
date, these transactions were measured at ne§ativ&94 thousand.

21.5.  Price risk associated with financial instruments
The Group is not exposed to any material priceaidociated with financial instruments.
21.6.  Liquidity and material cash-flow disruptions risk

Parent and subsidiaries companies are protectadsagmy material cash-flow disruptions thanks to
credit facilities available at any time. Materiast-flow disruptions are also unlikely due to costo
diversification. All extraordinary expenditure i$vays planned well ahead and accounted for in the
liquidity management process.
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The Group monitors its liquidity on an ongoing lsadioth with respect to short-term liquidity (a few
days forward) and long-term liquidity (a few yeéosvard).

Structure of assets, equity and liabilities disetbs the consolidated balance sheet:

Current ratio Quick ratio Average collection Average payment  Inventory turnover

period period ratio
Average Average
Current Current assets trade and other trade and other Average
assets - inventories receivables payables inventories
Current liabilities Current liabilities Net reves / 360 Net revenue / 360 Net revenue / 360
Dec 31 2014 1.15 0.51 28 days 53 days 42 days
Dec 31 2013 0.99 0.45 22 days 54 days 43 days

As at December 31st 2014, the Pfleiderer Grajewou@rhad debt under bank borrowings of PLN
108,351 thousand. It also had unused credit feeslinf PLN 320,867 thousand. The Group also hedti ca
of PLN 18,512 thousand.

The Group monitors its financial ratios on an ongobasis and, based on its short-term financialgpla
analyses the risk of failure to maintain the radbthe required levels.

Court proceedings

On April 2nd 2012, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. (the étd) and Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. (a subsidiary)
received a decision of the President of the Offit€ompetition and Consumer Protection, dated March
30th 2012, concerning the instigation of anti-trpgiceedings on suspicion that Kronospan Szczecinek
Sp. z 0.0., Kronospan Mielec Sp. z o0.0.,, Kronopg. & o0.0., Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. and
Pfleiderer Prospan S.A. acted in collusion to fatst competition on the domestic chipboard and
fibreboard markets.

During the proceedings, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. &iigiderer Prospan S.A., its subsidiary, provided
additional information required by the Office. Ategent, the Parent's Management Board is not able t
assess the risk based on the information avail@ble or determine the estimated closing date ef th
proceedings.

Other than the proceedings referred to above, trer@o court, arbitration or administrative pratiegs
pending with respect to any liabilities or clainfstlee Group companies, whose value would represent
10% or more of the Parent’s equity.

Material settlements under court proceedings

As at December 31st 2014, the Group did not camgyraaterial settlements under court proceedings. In
2014, there were no circumstances which would snliste the recognition of any provisions for casts
court proceedings.

Corrections of errors of past periods

In 2014, the Group did not correct any errors aft peeriods.
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Corporate governance

Appointment and removal of the management staff

Pursuant to the Parent’s Articles of Associatidre Management Board members are appointed and
recalled by Parent's Supervisory Board. The Arictd Association and resolutions of the Parent’s
General Meeting do not provide for any special pewer the Management Board members with respect
to making decisions on the issue or repurchasbhaks.

Parent’'s management bodies

The Parent's Management Board must consist ofet levo members. Members of the Management
Board are appointed for a joint five-year term fifce. The Supervisory Board appoints the Presidént
the Management Board and, upon his/her requestottier members of the Management Board. The
Management Board exercises all powers in the scdpmanaging the Parent’'s operations with the
exception of powers reserved for the Parent’'s ajbgerning bodies under law or the Parent’'s Arsicié
Association. The proceedings of the Managementdaad the matters assigned to individual members
of the Management Board are defined in detail @ Rules of Procedure of the Management Board,
adopted by the Parent’s Management Board and apgtoy the Supervisory Board.

The General Meeting appoints the members of theeiSigory Board. The Supervisory Board must
consist of five, seven or nine members. Membeth®fSupervisory Board are appointed for a joingfiv
year term of office. The Supervisory Board sup@withe Parent’s activities and operations. The ppwe
of the Supervisory Board are defined in the Arsabé Associations and in law, including the Comradrc
Companies Code. The Supervisory Board adopts ks f procedure, which define operations of the
Supervisory Board in detail.

Amendments to the Parent’s Articles of Association

The Articles of Association of the Parent are aneehdh line with the procedure specified in the
Commercial Companies Code. No special provisiorts wespect to this practice are set forth in the
Parent’s Articles of Association.

Proceedings of the Parent’'s General Meeting

The General Meeting of the Parent has the powersifegd in the Commercial Companies Code and the
Articles of Association. The proceedings of the &ah Meeting are governed by the Articles of
Association and the Rules of Procedure of the Géieeting, available on the Parent’'s web site.

Shares in the Parent

The Parent has not issued any securities confesjiggial control powers. In addition, there are no
limitations on the exercise of voting rights attedho the shares issued by the Parent. Also, théseno
rights related to the securities issued by the rRasbich would be separate from the ownership ef th
securities.

Neither the Articles of Association of the Paramir the Parent’s other internal regulations proviste
any restrictions on the transferability of the Pérghares. Therefore, transfer of ownership ofRheent
shares is subject only to the limitations imposed the applicable laws and the stock-exchange
regulations.

Financial statements of the Parent and the Group

The Parent’s financial statements are prepared dBparate organisational unit. All financial stadens
are reviewed, verified and approved at severaldeatethe Company, which significantly minimizesks
related to financial reporting.

The Pfleiderer Grajewo Management Board declares the Parent complies with the corporate
governance rules contained in the Code of BesttiPeator WSE Listed Companies, appended to the
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WSE Supervisory Board Resolution No. 19/1307/2@E2ed November 21st 2012, with the exception of
the following rules, which the Group does not apply

Rule .12

The Group should enable its shareholders to exethis voting right during a General Meeting eitimer
person or through a proxy, outside the venue ofGbkaeeral Meeting, using electronic communication
means.

Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. does not comply with thikergiven the small number of shareholders attendin
the Parent’'s General Meetings. In the opinion af Bfleiderer Grajewo Management Board, non-
compliance with the above rule does not adversiigciathe shareholders’ ability to participate het
Company’s General Meetings.

Rule 111.6

At least two members of the Supervisory Board ghanéet the criteria of being independent from the
Company and entities with significant connectionthvihe Company. The independence criteria should
be applied under Annex Il to the Commission Reconaagon of February 15th 2005 on the role of non-
executive or supervisory directors of listed comearand on the committees of the (supervisory)doar
Irrespective of the provisions of point (b) of thenex, a person who is an employee of the compiay,
subsidiary or an associated company cannot be demaeet the independence criteria describedan th
Annex. In addition, a relationship with a shareleolgrecluding the independence of a member of the
Supervisory Board as understood in this rule ia@nal and significant relationship with any shatdar
who has the right to exercise at least 5% of akks@t the General Meeting.

Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. does not observe this fulgtead, it ensures that an independent membezser
on the Supervisory Board as specified below:

In accordance with the Parent’'s Articles of Asstioig at least one member of the Supervisory Board

consisting of five members, two members of the Bupery Board consisting of seven members, and

three members of the Supervisory Board consistingre members must be independent and satisfy the
following criteria:

- they are not members of the governing bodies leid&frer Grajewo S.A.’s parent or of such parent’s
subsidiaries,

- they are not employed by Pfleiderer Grajewo S.pdeent or by such parent’s subsidiaries,

- they are not relatives (a spouse, direct descerataditect ascendant) of a member of the governing
bodies of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. or Pfleidererj@na S.A.’s parent.

Rule IV.10

The Group should enable its shareholders to paatiei in a General Meeting using electronic
communication means through:

1) real-life broadcast of General Meetings,
2) real-time bilateral communication where sharehaldeay take the floor during a General Meeting
from a location other than the General Meeting.

Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. does not comply with thikergiven the small number of shareholders attendin
the Parent's General Meetings. In the opinion af Pfleiderer Grajewo Management Board, non-
compliance with the above rule does not adversiigctathe shareholders’ ability to participate het
Company’s General Meetings.

Auditor
The separate and consolidated financial statenagataudited and reviewed on the basis of the decisi

made by the General Meeting on June 23rd 2010 qoigment of the auditor. Pursuant to the
resolution, the following entity was appointed thalitor:

KPMG Audyt Spétka z o.0. spotka komandytowa,
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ul. Chtodna 51,
00-867 Warszawa, Poland

The financial statements were audited pursuanth® dagreement executed between KPMG and
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.

The agreement, dated April 14th 2014, providedherreview of the interim group reporting package f
Q1 2014. The fee due to KPMG under the AgreemestfaN 45 thousand. The agreement, dated 3 July
2014, provided for the review of the interim staaldne and consolidated financial statements of
Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A., the Parent, and the gnayorting package of the Pfleiderer Grajewo Group.
The fee due to KPMG under the Agreement was PLNhdBisand. The most recent agreement with
KPMG, dated October 8th 2014, provided for an awdithe annual stand alone and consolidated
financial statements of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. @mhual group reporting package of the Pfleiderer
Grajewo Group for the financial year ended Decenffdst 2014, prepared in accordance with the IFRS.
The fee due to KPMG under the agreement is PLNth83sand.

The total fee for the audits specified above witioant to PLN 311 thousand (PLN 302 thousand for the
previous financial year).

Audit Committee

All duties of an audit committee were assignechtoRfleiderer Grajewo Supervisory Board.
Non-recurring events affecting the Group’s financia performance

No non-recurring events which might affect the iditeer Grajewo Group’s financial performance
occurred in 2014.

Changes in the composition of the Parent’s ManagemeBoard
In the 12 months ended December 31st 2014, no ekaiogk place in the composition of the Parent’s
Management Board.

On February 16th 2015, the Supervisory Board diéérer Grajewo S.A.:

- appointed Mr Michael Wolff President of the Parelanagement Board,

- appointed Mr Gerd Schubert Member of the ManageiBeatd, Chief Operating Officer,

- recalled Mr Wojciech @tkiewicz from the position of President of the Mgament Board, and
appointed him as the Member of the Management Bdaeshsformation Director.

As at this Report’s date, the Parent's Managemeatdconsisted of:

1. Michael Wolff President of the Management Board
2. Rafat Karcz Member of the Management Board
3. Gerd Schubert Member of the Management Board
4. Wojciech Gytkiewicz Member of the Management Board
5. Dariusz Tomaszewski Member of the Management Board

Changes in the composition of Parent’'s Supervisorgoard

In the 12 months ended December 31st 2014, thewfimly changes took place in the composition of the
Parent’s Supervisory Board:

1. On June 23rd 2014, Mr Gerd Hammerschmidt resigmedh fthe position of Member of the
Supervisory Board of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. effecfrom June 29th 2014.

2. On June 30th 2014, Mr Gerd Schubert was appoirgedl mew member of the Parent's Supervisory
Board.
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The following changes in the composition of the Sujsory Board took place after December 31st 2014:

1. On January 30th 2015, pursuant to a resolutiorhefRarent’'s Extraordinary General Meeting, Mr
Michael Wolff was recalled from the position of @imaan of the Supervisory Board, and Mr Gerd
Schubert was recalled from the position of Memidehe Supervisory Board.

2. On January 30th 2015, pursuant to the resolutioth@fParent’s Extraordinary General Meeting Mr
Paolo G. Antonietti and Mr Michael F. Keppel wapainted to the Supervisory Board.

On February 16th 2015 the Supervisory Board apedir Paolo G. Antonietti for a position of
Chairman of Supervisory Board and Mr. Michael F.pgel for a position of Vice Chairman of the
Supervisory Board.

As at this Report’s date, the Supervisory Boardsisiad of:

1. Paolo G. Antonietti Chairman of the Supervisory Bba

2. Michael F. Keppel Deputy Chairman of the Superyiddoard
3. Jochen Schapka Member of the Supervisory Board

4. Richard Mayer Member of the Supervisory Board

5. Jan Waniak Member of the Supervisory Board

Other activities of the Group

On 9 January 2014 Silekol Sp. z 0.0., the subsidibPfleiderer Grajewo S.A. signed an agreemettt wi
Grupa Azoty Zaktady Azotowe ¢€izierzyn S.A. for the supply of urea, which Silels@. z 0.0 uses as a
key raw material in the manufacture of adhesivenamesins. The agreement has been concluded for a
period of five years, and the total value of urede¢ supplied throughout its term is estimatedlat P
694.2 million.

Moreover on 9 January 2014 Silekol Sp. z 0.0., sbbsidiary of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. signed an
agreement with Grupa Azoty Zaktady Azotowe Putawé.Sor the supply of urea, which Silekol Sp. z
0.0 uses as a key raw material in the manufactisdbesive amino resins. The agreement has been
concluded for a period of five years, and the tetlle of urea to be supplied throughout its tesm i
estimated at PLN 216.4 million.

Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0., the entity operatingsimecial economic zone sought the cancellation of a
decision permitting the activity in the zone tillSeptember 2016 and thus applied to extend theitaei

in the area till the end of the zone activity. Ob Mlovember 2014 the entity received a favourable
decision of the Minister of Economy in this respé a result permission to operate in the zonéresp

at the end of the period for which special econotiiéc zone was established, which is currently3tll
December 2026 year. The consequence of extendeg@dimission is actualization of the government
grant value due to exemption from corporate inctame The government grant increased by PLN 62 662
thousand. The amount is quantification of tax tlitais estimated, will not be paid due to extended
operating in the special economic zone (see note fi¥e consolidated annual financial statements).

On December 30th 2014, Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A.Paeent, and its subsidiaries Pfleiderer ProspAn S.
and Pfleiderer MDF Sp. z 0.0., as the supplier, lealdryki Mebli Forte S.A. of Ostréw Mazowiecka, as
the customer, executed an agreement for the sopplpod-based boards.

The Agreement was concluded for the period fromudan 1st 2015 to December 31st 2016. The
Agreement provides for the supply of raw and lan@dachipboards, as well as raw and varnished HDF
boards. The total value of deliveries to be maddeurthe Agreement is estimated at EUR 71,000
thousand (PLN 306,280 thousand). The selling psfo@ood-based boards will be determined according
to the pricing formula set out in the Agreementsdzhon the prices of key raw materials used in the
production of such boards.
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Events subsequent to the end of the reporting period

After December 31st 2014 there were changes in ositipn of Management Board and Supervisory
Board of the Parent Company Pfleiderer Grajewo $Atail description of the changes has been
presented in paragraphs 29 and 30 of this report.

On 12 February 2015. Parent Company received, eordance with the terms of the agreement, the
remaining part of receivables from the sale of Rumsanits,consequently transaction was finally closed.

Economic forecast for the foreseeable future

Given the current economic climate, the Group wftain from publishing its forecast for 2015 urlkie
market volatility subsides and the Polish markduafiture manufacturers becomes more stable.

Management Board of Pfleiderer Grajewo S.A. GrajewpMarch 18th 2015

Michael Wolff
President of the Management Board

Rafal Karcz Gerd Schubert

Member of the Management Board, Chief Member of the Management Board, Chief
Financial Officer Operating Officer

Wojciech Gitkiewicz Dariusz Tomaszewski

Member of the Management Board, Chief Member of the Management Board, Sales Director

Transfor mation Officer
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